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T 3¢t of content

PART I: GENERAL INFORMATION

1. History of Formation and Development.

2. Business Sectors and Operating Areas.

3. Information about the Management Model, Business Organization, and
Management Structure.

4. Development Orientation.

5. Risks in Production and Business Activities.

PART II: BUSINESS AND PRODUCTION STATUS IN 2024

Operational status of production and business.

Organization and personnel.

Investment status and project implementation.

Financial situation.

Shareholder structure, changes in the owner's investment capital.

AN A T ol

Report on the environmental and social impact evaluation of the company
PART III: REPORT AND EVALUATION OF THE BOARD OF MANAGERS

Evaluation of production and business results.

Financial situation

Improvements in the organization structure

Production and business plan for 2025 and development orientation until 2030.

Nk wh -

Report on the environmental and social responsibility evaluation of the company.

PART IV: EVALUATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON THE
COMPANY’S ACTIVITIES

1. Evaluation of The Board of Directors on the company’s activities.

2. Evaluation of The Board of Directors on the company's environmental and social
responsibilities

3. Evaluation of The Board of Directors on the Board of Managers’ activities.

4. Plan, and orientation of the Board of Directors.

PART V: MANAGEMENT

1. Board of Directors.

2. Board of Supervisors.

3. Transactions, remuneration, and benefits of the Board of Directors, Board of
Managers, and Board of Supervisors.
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MECCACTET FRPPOMNM THE £ 1ITATREANM AN OR

THE RPOARD

Dear valued shareholders, valued
Customers, valued Partners, and All Laborers
of Dabaco Group,

First of all, on behalf of the leaders of
Dabaco Group, I would like to extend my best
wishes for health, success, and happiness to all
of you, who have been and continue to
accompany,  trust, invest in, and
wholeheartedly contribute to the strong
development of Dabaco over the years.

Dabaco Group is not only a major brand in
the agricultural and food industry in Vietnam
but also a symbol of determination, creativity, and the ability to adapt flexibly in all
circumstances. Although 2024 continues to witness many challenges from the global
economy, with market fluctuations, political changes, and factors impacting supply
chains, Dabaco Group remains strong in its development, affirming its leadership
position in the industry. We have been and are actively transforming to not only meet
but also lead new trends in production and consumption, particularly in the agricultural
and food sectors.

The development strategy of Dabaco Group does not focus on the domestic scale but
has extended transboundary, reaching international markets. We always aim to build a
sustainable production and business value chain of 3F (Feed — Farm — Food), from
animal feed production, farming, to processing and distributing high-quality food
products. By strongly investments in research and development, the application of
advanced technologies in production, and improvements in management efficiency have
helped Dabaco Group continuously increase productivity, reduce costs, and enhance
competitiveness. Moreover, Dabaco is steadfast in its strategic vision of sustainable
development, committed to delivering long-term value to shareholders. We are not only
focused on strong short-term growth but also on building a solid foundation for long-
term development, contributing to creating value for the community, society, and
protecting the environment.

In 2025, we are confident that we will continue to strengthen our strategy to upgrade
3F value chain (Feed — Farm — Food) and future), continue to expand production scale,
enhancing export activities, expanding into international markets, and consistently
upholding our commitment to quality and creativity with the plan of “Identity
integration”, combining global norms with Viet Nam’s identity, orienting to sustainable
value, of which agricultural sectors, environment, community and people are
harmonized developed.

We sincerely thank our shareholders, partners, and all laborers for their trust,

accompanies, and investment in Dabaco. Your trust and support are a great motivation
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for us to keep moving forward on our development path. Dabaco Group is committed to
relentless efforts, continuous creativity, and striving to reach even greater heights.
[ wish you all good health, brilliant success, and complete happiness in 2025 and the

years to come..

OF THE BOARDP

Nguyén Nhir So

DABACO.COM.VN |3
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COMPANY INTRODUCTION

DABACO GROUP

DABACO GROUP

English name: Dabaco Group
Abbreviated: Dabaco
Headquater: No 35 Ly Thai To, Vo Cuong district, Bac Ninh city, Bac

Ninh province

Company code:

2300105790

Charter capital :

3,346,691,450,000 dong

Owner’s equity

6,766,079,699,901 dong

Stock code: DBC (listed at Hochiminh stock exchange)
Telephone: (0222) 3826 077 — 3895 111

Fax: (0222) 3896 000 — 3825 496

Website: www.dabaco.com.vn / www.dabaco.vn
Fanpage: facebook.com/dabaco.com.vn

Email: contact@dabaco.com.vn / contact@dabaco.vn

DABACO.COM.VN |4




ANNUAL REPORT 2024 Q DABACO GROUP
VISION — MISSION - VALUES

<AM NHjy,

MISSION

A leading group in the agriculture — food sector with a sustainable 3F value
chain (feed — farm — food); Pioneering in application of advanced scientific and
technological solutions in agriculture in the most efficient manner.

VISION

Controlling the value chain in the agriculture and food sector, providing
the community with high-quality, safe, and effective products and services
with the utmost respect and responsibility. This contributes to the
development and enhancement of the position of Vietnamese agriculture and
food brands in the international market.

CORE VALUE

Pursuing the development of sustainable agriculture, focusing all resources
with the goal of creating a closed, modern public-private agriculture and food
business. Delivering value based on the philosophy of the "three benefits" —
benefits for the country, the people, and the company.

DABACO.COM.VN | 5



ANNUAL REPORT 2024 g DABACO GROUP
THE HISTORY OF FORMATION AND DEVELOPMENT

o ST

; "f = ; ESTABLISHED THE COMPANY WITH THE FIRST NAME :
HA BAC AGRICULTURAL PRODUCTS COMPANY

A,

L T i it
b ol

_1097.1998 [

BUILT DAI BAC FEED MILL WITH CAPACITY OF 5
TONS/HOUR AND LAC VE INDUSTRIAL
BREEDING CHICKEN ENTERPRISE.

4 o200

ESTABLISHED OF THE COMPANY BRANCH IN HANOI AND THE
FIRST PETROLEUM STATION IN LAC VE - TIEN DU - BAC NINH
ESTABLISHED OF THUAN THANH POULTRY AND LIVESTOCK
BREEDING ENTERPRISE.

ESTABLISHED OF HIGH-QUALITY TOPFEEDS
FEED MILL, WITH CAPACITY OF 250,000
TONS/YEAR — THE LARGEST CAPACITY AT THAT

TIME

ESTABLISHED OF THUAN THANH LEAN PIG BREEDING
ENTERPRISES.

BUILT THE COMPANY HEAD OFFICE AT NO 35 -
LY THAI TO - VO CUONG - BAC NINH CITY - BAC
NINH PROVINCE.

01/01/2005 - THE COMPANY WAS OFFICIALLY
EQUITIZED WITH THE NAME: BAC NINH
AGRICULTURAL PRODUCTS JOINT STOCK COMPANY.
ESTABLISHED OF KHAC NIEM RAW MATERIAL
PROCESSING FACTORY.

DABACO.COM.VN | 6
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DABACO GROUP

THE HISTORY OF FORMATION AND DEVELOPMENT

200 L

ESTABLISHED OF KINH BAC AQUA FEED MILL
ESTABLISHED OF LIVESTOCK PROCESSING
INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
LIMITED AND LAC VE BREEDING PIG
ENTERPRISE

- 200s [

ESTABLISHED OF DABACO PIG BREEDING
COMPANY LIMITED, DABACO PIG BREEDING
INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
LIMITED, DABACO FOOD PROCESSING COMPANY
LIMITED, DABACO VETERINARY DIAGNOSTIC
=t .

T ¢

ESTABLISHED OF DABACO FEED MILL WITH
CAPACITY OF 200,000 TONS/YEAR AND DABACO
LAC VE SUPERMARKET

ESTABLISHED HIEP QUANG TRADING COMPANY
LIMITED

_oou [

ESTABLISHED DABACO HI-TECH AGRICULTURE
COMPANY LIMITED AND SOME PROJECT
ENTERPRISES TO IMPLEMENT BT PROJECTS
26/03/2011 - RENAMED AS DABACO GROUP

p
Lo

4 NUOI GAD CAPDARAGD
{ NUOI THUY SR

ESTABLISHED BAC NINH TRADING COMPANY
LIMITED, DABACO TAY BAC ONE MEMBER CO., LTD
ESTABLISHED STAGE 1 OF DABACO TAN CHI PORT

o T

ON MARCH 18™ 2008, THE COMPANY'S SHARES WERE
LISTED ON THE STOCK EXCHANGE AT THE HANOI
STOCK EXCHANGE.

ON APRIL 29™ 2008 -
VIETNAM CORPORATION

RENAMED TO DABACO

ESTABLISHED CHICKEN SLAUGHTERING FACTORY,
DABACO REAL ESTATE COMPANY LIMITED, DABACO
INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT AND
CONSTRUCTION INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED,
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THE HISTORY OF FORMATION AND DEVELOPMENT

,; ®

ESTABLISHED OF HOAN SON FEED MILL

Sy

2013

ESTABLISHED OF DABACO CENTER FOR
APPLICATION RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT OF
LIVESTOCK AND POULTRY BREEDING. POULTRY
BREEDING ENTERPRISE. SUPER EGG LAYING
CHICKEN ENTERPRISE

ESTABLISHED DABACO GIA BINH SUPERMARKET
ESTABLISHED THE AUTOMATIC EGG PROCESSING
LINE — IMPORTED FROM NETHERLAND

ESTABLISHED NASACO HA NAM FEED MILL
COMPANY LIMITED, DABACO HA NAM BREEDING
PIG COMPANY LIMITED, DABACO HAI PHONG
BREEDING PIG COMPANY LIMITED, DABACO PHU
THO BREEDING PIG COMPANY LIMITED AND
DABACO BIOTECHNOLOGY CENTER

28/12/2016 INAUGURATED LE-INDOCHINA HOTEL
WITH 5-STAR STANDARD

ESTABLISHED DABACO LUONG TAI BREEDING PIG
COMPANY LIMITED

INAUGURATED TU SON COMMERCIAL CENTER,
HO DIEU HOA PARK, INDUSTRIAL PARKS IN HA
NAM, PHU THO, LUONG TAIL HAI PHONG, BINH
PHUOC AND NASACO HA NAM FEED MILL,
PLASTIC TARPAULIN FACTORY, EGG PROCESSING
FACTORY.

ESTABLISHED VIETNAM-JAPAN ORGANIC
FERTILIZER COMPANY LIMITED AND DABACO
PLANT OIL COMPANY LIMITED.

DABACO.COM.VN |8
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THE HISTORY OF FORMATION AND DEVELOPMENT

IN APRIL 2018 INAUGURATED DABACO QUE VO
COMMERCIAL CENTER

ESTABLISHED DABACO TUYEN QUANG CO., LTD.,
KHUC XUYEN INDUSTRIAL CLUSTER INVESTMENT
AND DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD., H2 ROAD
CONSTRUCTION CO., LTD.

TR ¢

05/2019 - INAUGURATED DABACO PLANT OIL
CRUSHING PLANT AND DABACO POULTRY EGG
PROCESSING FACTORY. ESTABLISHED DABACO
BINH PHUOC COMPANY LIMITED

] o0

05/2020 — GROUNDBREAKING CEREMONY FOR ROUTE

H2
12/2020 — AWARDING OF THE SONG COMPOSITION
CONTEST ABOUT DABACO

250 MAK THANH LAF TAF DOAN DABACO WET NAM

29/04/2021 — 25TH ANNIVERSARY OF DABACO LW - PRI
GROUP AND RECEIVING THE 3RD FIRST CLASS v i HIUL AN |:er||.'-' 5 ING HEHE MUAT s g
LABOR MEDAL i B o BF P

07/2021 — ESTABLISHED DABACO QUANG NINH
JOINT STOCK COMPANY

10/2021 — ESTABLISHED DABACO THANH HOA
COMPANY LIMITED, ESTABLISHED LE-
INDOCHINA TOURISM AND HOTEL COMPANY
DANANG BRANCH

12/2021 — SUCCESSFUL TRIAL OF PHASE 3 OF
AFRICA SWINE FEVER VACCINE, GOAL TO EARLY
ELIMINATE THIS DISEASE.

04/2022 — DEPUTY MINISTER PHUNG DUC TIEN
WORKED AT DABACO ON ACCELERATION OF ASF
VACCINE COMMERCIALIZATION

05/2022 — ESTABLISHMENT OF DABACO BINH
PHUOC FEED MILL

08-12/2022 — DABACO AND CANADA PROMOTE
COOPERATION IN TRADE RELATIONS AND
DEVELOPMENT OF HI-TECH AGRICULTURE

DABACO.COM.VN | 9
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THE HISTORY OF FORMATION AND DEVELOPMENT
YEAR 2023 - 2024

¢ T

Restructuring some member units
towards focusing on core areas and
simplifying  the  organizational
structure and workforce

IANUARY - 2023 O

Completed and operated the project
of  high-tech  breeding and
commercial pig farming area in
Thach Thanh district, Thanh Hoa
province; phase 2 projects in Phu

Tho, Tuyen Quang...; Increase the

nun;ber (})If ori(ginalgbréeding pigs .
Established DACOVET

Pharmaceutical &  Veterinary

Company Limited and actively

promoted research and testing of

African swine fever vaccine (ASF)

Built the Crushing Oil Plant, Phase
2 with a capacity of 1,000 tons of
soybean/day

In  August 2024, the Company
successfully offered shares to the
public to existing shareholders and
issued shares under the ESOP
program, increasing the Company's
charter capital to VND
3,346,691,450,000, equivalent to
334,669,145 shares..

|'I|:-|||I.ﬂ.u“.
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GOLDEN ACHIEVEMENTS

DABACO.COM.VN | 11




ANNUAL REPORT 2024 e DABACO GROUP
GOLDEN ACHIEVEMENTS
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GOLDEN ACHIEVEMENTS
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GOLDEN ACHIEVEMENTS
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ANNUAL REPORT 2024 Q DABACO GROUP
AREA OF OPERATIONS

On its journey to fulfill its mission of controlling the value chain in the agriculture
and food industry, Dabaco is fully confident in competing with major regional and
global brands in both quality and pricing. This confidence stems from its strong
advantages in highly skilled human resources, advanced technology, and a closed-loop
value chain: Feed — Farm — Food. This modern and complete production model, which
Dabaco has meticulously built and developed to a very high standard, embodies its
unique identity. Dabaco continues to research and innovate, aiming to transform
scientific values into health benefits for consumers through Fresh and distinctive
agricultural and food products.

DO . g

POULRY, CATTLE
BREEDING

FEED ONTRACED

FARMS

it Fatsee

PACKAGING AND —E 'E":!_ﬂ%"g—‘
TARPAULINS

PRODUCTION POUTRY

EGGS

PLANT OIL

ICRO OGANIC
ERTILIZER

SLAUGHTER- VETERINARY

ING AND FOOD
PROCESSING L

AND
SERVICE
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ANNUAL REPORT 2024 Q DABACO GROUP
DISTRIBUTION NETWORK AND MEMBER UNITS

With the goal of continuous

development and expanding its
business scale, Dabaco's
products have spread across
nearly all provinces and cities
nationwide. The company has
established a network of
thousands of agents and
distributors, which continues to
grow in both quantity and
quality. This network serves as
a crucial bridge, ensuring that
Dabaco's high-quality products
.ﬁ"x reach farmers and consumers in
an easy and convenient manner.
A
\

A A
Dabaco owns la systerig of feed
mills in key ar from North to

South, with a tot 1 ca ac1t§( of over

',I \ Cudin ddo Modng Sa

1 million tons/year, |w1th | familiar L]
brands such | as ', DABACO, H“'."".
Topfeeds, Nasaco, I.Kinh '. Bac, m.a.-.gn::.
Khangti Vina, é;rowfek:d, Nutreco, &
Sunshine, S-Star, IlAllFeélds. III"L QuyNhan ®
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ORGANIZATION CHART OF OPERATIONS

| Board of Sharetidters —|
| Bewd of Dunectond | Bard of Sugeryiion

Board of Managery

]
I -
Ecar of | Fimance amd Tethnical = - Prnet - 1
Diremers H:FRH:'-'HI |Jf ecousses Tty ;:th"':r'“hﬂ; Mot i::un-‘n:ﬂml ;-me.fln
otice | partmEnt | M Departmacs Degarimare TR Departmnt st . Pt

Liafl memitsry Inind-weniine
I b arihay | T | Eixfijl fiinl

DABACO Group is organized according to the model of a joint stock company,

headed by all shareholder, the Board of Directors, the Board of Supervisors, and
the Executive Board, including the General Director and Deputy General
Directors. By the experience and the breakthrough management and operation
ability of the Board of Directors has boots the company grown stronger in both
scale and quality.
DABACO Group consists of subsidiaries, affiliated companies, and associated
companies operating in many Sectors and industries. An enterprise with
thousands of laborers, a wide distribution channel, and tens of thousands of
billions of VND in revenue... but the core value and origin of DABACO GROUP
is the human factor. "Taking responsibility, cooperation, and welfare as the motto
of action" is the guiding principle in the process of building a team as well as
finding and retaining the most suitable people in all areas of expertise of
DABACO GROUP.

DABACO.COM.VN | 17
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DABACO FEED MILL

mé DABACO GROUP

MEMPRER IINIT

Address: Khac Niem Industrial Park — Bac Ninh City — Bac Ninh Province

Tel: 0222 3 821 243

Recognizing technology as a key factor in
producing high-quality products, the DABACO
high-quality feed mill is equipped with a modern,
highly automated production line with a capacity
of 200,000 tons per year, produces a wide range
of products for livestock, poultry, and waterfowl,

meeting all growth and development stages of

animals. Sampling, raw material intake, and bagging processes are carried out by

robots and remotely controlled via a central control system, ensuring high

accuracy, reducing labor, and consistently guaranteeing that the Finished products

delivered to consumers meets high and uniform quality standards. The application

of advanced technology and high automation in the production process of

DABACO’s feed mill not only enhances product quality but also boosts the

efficiency and competitiveness of the enterprise in the market.

TOPFEEDS FEED MILL
Address: Khac Niem Industrial Park — Bac Ninh City — Bac Ninh Province
Tel: (0222) 3 829 434 | Fax: (0222) 3 822 195
TOPFEEDS FEED MILL has a capacity of . .

250,000 tons/year, producing products with

=== --_-I -
- i | i

® 3 1
N |

diverse types and quality. The management Tl

system according to ISO 9001, 22,000 standards
helps the factory stabilize output, improve
quality, and reduce costs. The automatic
equipment line is imported synchronously from

countries with developed animal feed production

o -
~r—

-

such as the US, EU, Taiwan... The factory is continuing to upgrade modern

equipment, invest in improve knowledge, and constantly improve to enhance

product quality.

DABACO.COM.VN | 18
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MENMPRER IINTIT

NASACO HA NAM FEED MILL COMPANY LIMITED

Address: Hoa Mac Industrial Park, Hoa Mac, Duy Tien, Ha Nam
Tel: (0226) 3.567.666 | Fax: (0226) 3.585.555
_ Charter capital: VND 100 billion, 100% owned
- gmm:"‘ by the Group.
pisi———

. pp— Nasaco Ha Nam feed mill is invested and built on
= —— l an area of 68,000m2, with a capacity of 350,000
_:_......- if tons/year, European technology, is a large-scale
AL factory with the most modern technology
p—— nowadays, producing all lines of feed products for
pigs, chickens, geese, ducks, quails and cows
with high and stable quality. The automated technology line system is controlled
by PLC software. In particular, the VILAS National Standard Laboratory is fully
equipped with a system of modern machinery and equipment and a team of
experienced engineers to ensure good analysis and control of technical and

nutritional indicators of raw materials and animal feed

NUTRECO COMPANY LIMITED

Address: Dai Dong Hoan Son Industrial Park, Tien Du, Bac Ninh

Tel: 02223.847.995 / 847.997

Charter capital: VND 50 billion, 100% owned
by the Group.
NUTRECO Company Limited is the largest
animal feed and aqua feed mill in Vietnam. The
company's products are manufactured on modern
production lines imported entirely from Europe
with a capacity of over 300,000 tons/year. With

advantages in transportation, abundant human
resources, and strong financial capacity, the Company not only focuses on
expanding production but also focuses on researching and developing new
products, as well as improving production processes to meet the increasing
demands of the market.

With its vision and mission, the Company constantly strives to maintain and
strengthen 1its leading position in the animal feed and aqua feed industry in
Vietnam, while bringing maximum value and benefits to the community and
society.

DABACO.COM.VN | 19
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MEMRER ITINIT

DABACO HOAN SON FEED MILL

Address: Dai Dong — Hoan Son Industrial Park, Hoan Son, Tien Du, Bac Ninh

Tel: (0222) 3848 202

Specializing in the production of animal feed
for piglets, DABACO Hoan Son Feed mill
invests in a system of infrastructure, modern
equipment, and American production lines. The

outstanding value of the feed mill is the system of

§ i o i T L e

DARACO HOAN SON expanding, pelleting and conditioning machines

to create porosity for pellets, which is very good
for the digestive system, stimulating the appetite
of piglets. The management system is built according to ISO 9001 and ISO 22000
standards, ensuring stable output, improving quality, and reducing product costs.
Compliance with these standards not only helps to enhance the reputation and
trust of customers, but also helps to increase production efficiency and minimize

risks related to food safety.

DABACO BINH PHUOC FEED MILL COMPANY LIMITED

Address: Suoi Doi, Tan Hung, Dong Phu, Binh Phuoc

Tel: (0271) 3835 836

Charter capital: VND 30 billion, 100% owned
by the Group.

DABACO Binh Phuoc Feed Mill produces and
supplies to the market a variety of animal feed
products for pigs, chickens, ducks, quails,
meeting the growth and development stages of
livestock. Crystallizing modern technology, the
Factory is invested in an automatic production
line operated by a central control system.
Therefore, product quality is strictly controlled, reaching high precision, meeting
the nutritional standards of the formula. In particular, the technology of pelleting
and conditioning raw materials helps increase the porosity and aroma of pellets,
stimulates appetite, is good for the digestive system, helps optimize livestock

performance and improve animal health.

DABACO.COM.VN | 20
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MEMBER UNIT

KINH BAC AQUA FEED MILL
Address: Khac Niem Industrial Park, Bac Ninh City, Bac Ninh

Tel: (0222) 3825 111 — 3829 949

Kinh Bac Aqua feed mill is invested in a modern,
synchronous equipment line, originating from Europe, with
a capacity of 60,000 tons/year. Producing a variety of
products to meet the needs of intensive aqua feed, towards
sustainable agricultural development, biosafety. Including
floating and sinking pellets for scaly fish, catfish, red
tilapia, frogs, etc,...

NUTRECO AQUA FEED MILL

Address: Dai Dong Hoan Son Industrial Park, Tien Du, Bac Ninh
Nutreco Aqua feed Mill is invested in modern

technology, applying maximum automation, new extrusion
technology, smart drying technology, superfine grinding
system. By the modern technology, the feed mill can
produce a variety of products, meeting nutritional
requirements to ensure optimal FCR. In particular, the feed
mill applies a closed quality control process, ensuring

maximum food hygiene and safety. synchronous, high
level of automation, producing aqua feed products
including both floating and sinking pellets.

KINH BAC CAGE FISH PRODUCTION - EXPERIMENTAL
FARM

Address: Han Quang — Que Vo — Bac Ninh
In order to exploit the potential and effectively use the

e e i natural river water surface, DABACO has invested in the
i WUKT - THUT BHIL,,

Kinh Bac Cage Fish Production and Experimental Center
on the Duong River. This is a very modern model with a
scale of 100 cages, expected to produce about 1,000 tons of
high-quality, high-value commercial fish each year such as
red tilapia, spotted catfish, grass carp and fish. This
production and experimental center is not only a cage fish

production facility but also a research and testing center for
advanced fish farming methods combining modern technology and extensive expertise,
implementing production and management processes according to the highest standards,
from fish care, farming environmental conditions to harvesting and product processing.
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DABACO NUCLEAR (GGP) BREEDING PIG COMPANY LIMITED

Address: Tan Chi, Tien Du, Bac Ninh

Tel: (0222) 372 1649

Charter capital: 120 billion VND, 100% owned
by the Group

DABACO nuclear (GGP) Breeding pig
Company Limited has the largest nuclear (GGP)
pig herd in the country nowadays with 4,500
original breeding pigs, great-grandparent and
grandparent pigs of various breeds such as Duroc,
Pietrain, Landrace, Yorkshire, imported from
Canada, Denmark, USA, etc. The company is

responsible for in-depth scientific research,
transfer of technical advances, breeding of original breeds, production and
business, and international cooperation in the Sector of pig farming.... The
company is one of the few enterprises to be granted the Certificate of High-tech
Agricultural Enterprise in Vietnam. The NUCLEAR (GGP) pig herd is Dabaco's
"treasure" for selecting, pure breeding and producing grandparent and parent
female pigs and boars to transfer to the Group's farm system and the Market using
advanced breeding technologies in the world.

DABACO LUONG TAI BREEDING PIG COMPANY LIMITED

Address: Thanh Khe, Lai Ha, Luong Tai, Bac Ninh

Charter capital: VND 50 billion, 100% owned
by the Group

DABACO Luong Tai Breeding pig Company

Limited is a breeding pig unit with breeding
productivity equivalent to developed countries in
Europe and the US. In addition to crossbreeding !
and producing high-quality parent pigs from '
original breeds of Landrace, Yorkshire, etc., the ﬂ,ﬂﬂﬂ{m lm Im
company also pays special attention to raising,
preserving, maintaining genetic resources and
developing rare native pig breeds of Vietnam
such as purebred Mong Cai pigs, purebred I pigs, and Lung Pu pigs. This not only
helps preserve valuable genetic resources but also contributes to maintaining and
developing Vietnam's historical and cultural heritage in the livestock industry.
The diversity and quality of pig breeds provided by the company not only help to
improve livestock productivity but also promote the sustainable development of
the pig farming industry in Vietnam.

=1 pOAN DABACO VI
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LAC VE BREEDING PIG ONE MEMBER COMPANY LIMITED

Address: Lac Ve, Tien Du, Bac Ninh

Tel: (0222) 3723 938

Charter capital: VND 26 billion, 100% owned by
the Group

Lac Ve Breeding pig Company Limited has a
scale of 2,200 sows. The automatic feeding

system is one of the company's highlights.

Providing feed by tanker helps ensure a regular
and effective supply of feed to the pig herds.
This system helps optimize the time and effort of farm’s workers. The farrowing
pens are equipped with specialized cages provided by Big Dutchman, ensuring
the best living environment for sows and piglets. The pens are designed to be
spacious and airy, with automatic temperature and humidity sensors, helping to
maintain ideal living conditions for pigs in all weather conditions. The application
of these modern technologies and equipment not only helps to increase breeding

efficiency but also ensures the health and comfort of the pig herd.

DABACO HAI PHONG BREEDING PIG COMPANY LIMITED
Address: Trai Vien, Luu Kiem, Thuy Nguyen, Hai Phong
Tel: 0982 993 707
Charter capital: VND 35 billion, 100% owned
by the Group
With a scale of 2,200 sows, DABACO Hai Phong
Breeding Pig Company Limited has invested
systematically and modernly in the livestock

equipment system. This is considered an

advanced livestock area, focusing on high
technology and mainly producing high-quality
pig breeds to supply the market. In addition, the company's products are always
guaranteed to meet food hygiene and safety conditions, which is of particular
concern in the context of the food industry increasingly paying attention to this
factor. This is also a factor that helps strongly develop the 3F value chain (Feed -
Farm - Food) of Dabaco Group.
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DABACO HA NAM BREEDING PIG COMPANY LIMITED

Address: Thuong Vy, Nhan Chinh, Ly Nhan, Ha Nam

Tel: 02266505666

Charter capital: VND 40 billion, 100% owned
by the Group.

DABACO Ha Nam Breeding Pig Company
Limited is built on an area of 130,000m?, with a
scale of 4,400 sows. The company is located in
Ly Nhan district, Ha Nam province - one of the
largest breeding pig and slaughtering centers in
the North. The modern, closed-loop barn system
1s imported synchronously from Big Dutchman
(Germany), one of the leading units in livestock
equipment from Germany. With the combination
of ideal location, large scale and modern equipment system, DABACO Ha Nam
Breeding Pig Company Limited has been and is strongly contributing to the
development of Dabaco Group.

DABACO PHU THO BREEDING PIG COMPANY LIMITED
Address: Te Le, Tam Nong, Phu Tho

Tel: 0210 8821821 -q
Charter capital: VND 50 billion, 100% owned 1o
by the Group. ' o —

- &

Dabaco Phu Tho Breeding pig Company
Limited with a scale of 6,000 sows and 20,000
regular pigs, built on an area of nearly 71 hectares
in Phu Tho Province, this is one of the largest and

most modern parent breeding pig areas until now.
The entire breeding and reproduction process at
Dabaco Phu Tho Breeding pig Company Limited
is strictly controlled and complies with Dabaco's strict standards. Notably, 4.0
technology is strongly applied in this farm where each individual pig is tagged
with a chip and managed through the most modern management software in
Vietnam. This allows for close control of each individual pig, from health to
reproductive performance, from nutrition to vaccination schedules. The
application of 4.0 technology not only increases efficiency and saves costs, but
also ensures the safety and quality of the final product.
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DABACO TUYEN QUANG COMPANY LIMITED

Address: Dinh Trung, Phuc Ung, Son Duong,
Tuyen Quang

Tel: 0207 6561666

Charter capital: VND 50 billion, 100% owned by
the Group.

DABACO Tuyen Quang Company Limited
belongs to DABACO Group, investing in the Project
of a complex for producing livestock and poultry
breeds on an area of over 41 hectares with csale of
2,400 sows and 45,000 grower pigs regularly.

DABACO BIG BREEDING DEVELOPMENT
INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

Address: Lac Ve Industrial Park, Tien Du, Bac
Ninh

Tel: (0222) 3724 323

Charter capital: VND 30 billion, 100% owned
by the Group.

DABACO Breeding pig DEVELOPMENT
INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED was
established in August 2008 with the mission of
developing pig farms to supply the market.
Currently, the Company has a system of pig
contracted farms in most of the northermn
provinces such as Bac Ninh, Bac Giang, Hung
Yen, Hanoi, Vinh Phuc, Hoa Binh, Hai Duong...

DABACO THANH HOA COMPANY LIMITED.
Address: Cong Hang, Thach Tuong, Thach Thanh, Thanh Hoa

Tel: (0222) 3724 323

Charter capital: VND 100 billion, 100% owned

by the Group.

This is a large-scale, high-tech breeding and
commercial breeding pig area built according to
advanced technical standards of the world's leading
livestock industries, with outstanding advantages
ensuring optimal conditions in breeding, helping to
optimize productivity, product quality..., with a
scale of 6,200 grandparent and parent sows and
70,000 grower pigs.
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DABACO HOA BINH COMPANY LIMITED

Address: Lung hamlet, Cuoi Ha commune, Kim Boi district, Hoa Binh province
Main business and production Sector: Pig farming.
Charter capital: VND 100 billion, 100% owned by the Group.

DABACO QUANG NINH JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: Trung Luong village, Trang Luong commune, Dong Trieu town,
Quang Ninh province
Main business and production Sector: Pig farming.
Charter capital: VND 100 billion, 99% owned by the Group.
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DABACO BREEDING CHICKEN COMPANY LIMITED

Address: Kmo6, National Highway 38, Lac Ve
commune, Tien Du district, Bac Ninh Province

Tel: (0222) 3723 713

Charter capital: VND 10 billion, 100% owned
by the Group.

DABACO BREEDING CHICKEN
COMPANY LIMITED, the leading brand of
colored chicken breeds in the Vietnamese market,
affirms its No. 1 brand with exclusive chicken
breeds  developed from  research  and
crossbreeding results. Chicken breeds such as J-
Dabaco Chicken, Tan Ho Chicken, Noi Chicken, Mia Chicken, 9-spur Chicken...
have been recognized and trusted by the market. The company's system of farms
and breeding centers is located in Yen The (Bac Giang), Bac Ninh, with a total
breeding herd of up to 350,000 chickens. Each year, the Company produces from
25 to 30 million colored chicken breeds of various types, supplying the chicken
farming industry nationwide.

9-SPUR CHICKEN RESEARCH CENTER

Address: Huong Van, Lac Ve, Tien Du, Bac Ninh

Tel: (0222) 3724 487

DABACO 9-spur chicken research -center
plays an important role in conducting research,
breeding and preserving rare 9-spur chicken
breeds. This place is not only a center for
implementing research projects but also a
destination for building typical model farms,
introducing and guiding breeders. The 9-spur
chicken breed, one of the outstanding successes
of Dabaco Group, is not only the result of
combining folk legends and scientific advances
but also a harmonious combination of the
quintessence of traditional multi-spur chicken breeds and modern breeding and
Crossbred methods. This is not only a breed of chicken with good qualities but
also a symbol of the spirit of literature and martial arts, at the same time
expressing the moral tradition and contributing to the building of the spiritual
culture of the Vietnamese people. The DABACO 9-spur chicken breed research
center is constantly researching to preserve and develop this breed, thereby
contributing to the richness and enrichment of the nation's cultural heritage. This
is not only an effort in the Sector of animal husbandry but also an important step
forward in preserving and developing Vietnamese culture.
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YEN THE ORGINAL BREEDING CHICKEN CENTER
- Address: Ban Rung Dai, Tam Tien, Yen The,
Bac Giang.
Dabaco Yen The Original breeding chicken
Center plays an important role in carrying out the

task of researching, preserving and developing
rare chicken breeds and genetic resources. This

| Termue e T R

""';'f'-";;:;," center not only creates high-quality breeding

sources for Dabaco Group's internal farms but
also contributes to the development of Bac Giang
province and the chicken farming industry of the whole country. Through
carrying out this task, Dabaco Yen The Original breeding chicken Center has

shaped a development direction for Dabaco Group according to the value chain,
in the context of the current 4.0 technology revolution. Focusing on researching
and developing rare chicken breed genetic resources not only helps to increase
genetic diversity and quality of chicken breeds but also promotes the progress and
sustainability of the chicken farming industry. At the same time, the application
of 4.0 technology in management and production also helps to increase efficiency
and minimize risks, thereby promoting the comprehensive development of
Dabaco Group in the Sector of poultry farming.

PS BREEDING CHICKEN AREA

Address: Noi Vien, Lac Ve, Tien Du, Bac Ninh

Inaugurated and put into operation since 2014,
Dabaco PS chicken area has invested in a
modern, highly automated equipment system. The
barn system 1is built according to European
standards, closed barns, feeding, drinking, air
ventilation, and automatic manure scraping
systems imported from Big Dutchman
(Germany).

The company has strategic cooperation in
breeding technology with foreign countries to
research and apply the latest advances in molecular genetics and quantitative
genetics in the selection and improvement of chicken breeds with outstanding

productivity and quality.
The PS chicken source produced by the Center is mainly provided to the PS
farms of the group and breeding farms nationwide.
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DABACO POULTRY BREEDING ENTERPRISE

Address: Hien Van, Lac Ve, Tien Du, Bac Ninh

The largest and most modern poultry breeding
enterprise in Southeast Asia, with a capacity of 38
million chicken/year, with an automatic incubator and
hatching system, a central air ventilation system that

. g adjusts the air as desired, imported from Chick Master
'
;. t‘! j

{":‘,lr o (USA). The factory is equipped with an automatic
vaccination system & specialized equipment for
preserving vaccines that meet international standards.

A team of highly skilled and experienced staff and engineers, working diligently

with a passion for product and service quality and constantly improving their

skills. Therefore, the quality of DABACO's breeding chickens is highly

consistent, with a rate of grade 1 chickens reaching 98 - 99%.

DABACO BINH PHUOC COMPANY LIMITED
Address: Suoi Doi, Tan Hung, Dong phu, Binh Phuoc
Tel: (0271) 2224 868

Charter capital: VND 50 billion, 100% owned by the
Group.

At the present, Dabaco Binh Phuoc Company
Limited is located in Binh Phuoc province, is the largest
and most modern colored chicken farm in Vietnam with
up to 350,000 parent chickens. The entire system of
barns and equipment for raising breeding chickens are
applied with fully automatic Artificial Intelligence using European technology, so
the quality of the breeder is consistent and outstanding in all aspects.

PROCESSING LIVESTOCK INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT

o COMPANY LIMITED
3 Address: Lac Ve, Tien Du, Bac Ninh

Tel: (0222) 3 723 523

Charter capital: VND 45 billion, 100% owned by the
Group.

Processing Livestock Investment and Development
Company Limited is a pioneer in applying high
technology in egg-laying chicken farming. The entire

barn system is designed as a closed system with modern equipment imported
synchronously from the Federal Republic of Germany, specializing in producing
fresh chicken eggs, value-added chicken eggs for consumers and the
confectionery and food industry.
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DACOVET PHARMACEUTICAL AND VETERINARY
COMPANY LIMITED

Address: Khac Niem Industrial Cluster, Khac
Niem, Bac Ninh City, Bac Ninh Province

Charter capital: VND 50 billion, 100% owned by
the Group.

Dabaco Group is one of the pioneers in
implementing strategic orientations of the high-
tech agriculture sector. The research and
production of vaccines by Dabaco Group marks
an important first step in investing in the Sector
of veterinary vaccines, a Sector that requires extensive knowledge and the use of
the world's leading technology.

The operation of the factory will
Mei T Ldr LD RS ssae e o e bring significant  benefits to  the
s I livestock units within the DABACO

:u---l l' Group, as well as contribute to
+- 4.8

enhancing  the  proactive  of

"; Vietnam’s livestock sector in
'

3 .I.

effectively preventing livestock and
poultry diseases. Vietnamese
branded vaccine products will not only help improve the health and enhance the
production performance of livestock and poultry but also be an important tool in
controlling and preventing the spread of infectious diseases.

By providing high-quality vaccine products, Dabaco Group not only helps
protect the health of livestock and poultry but also creates a safe and sustainable
livestock environment. This will help improve livestock’s productivity, reduce
mortality and disease rates, thereby enhancing economic stability for farmers and
livestock breeders.
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CATTLE, POULTRY AND ANIMAL FEED BREEDS TESTING

CENTER
Address: Hien Van, Lac Ve, Tien Du, Bac Ninh
The Cattle, Poultry and Animal Feed Testing
Center is the only unit in Vietnam equipped with
the Fan’s Feed Evaluation Network system and
software. This system allows monitoring and

evaluating all indicators related to pig farming,

from growth rate to FCR, profit and loss of each
pig, automatically, quickly and accurately.

The application of this automatic data processing software technology not only
helps improve livestock management efficiency but also optimizes the production
process and increases the reliability of results evaluation. By automating data
collection and processing, the Center can make smart and timely management
decisions, thereby improving production efficiency, optimizing resources, and
increasing productivity in pig farming.

DABACO BIOTECHNOLOGY CENTER

Address: Tan Chi, Tien Du District, Bac Ninh
Province.

Dabaco Biotechnology Center is a scientific and
technological organization under the provisions of
the Law on Science and Technology. This Center
was established with the goal of research,

development and application of biotechnology in

the Sector of animal husbandry and veterinary
medicine, especially focusing on the Sector of
genes - genetics.

The main goal of the Center is to be proactive in genetic resources and shorten the
time and cost to select and create high-quality and productive pig and chicken
breeds to serve farmers. By researching and applying advanced technologies in
the Sector of genes - genetics, the Center aims for sustainable development, while
contributing to improving the efficiency and competitiveness of the Vietnamese

livestock industry.
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DABACO VETERINARY DIAGNOSTIC CENTER
Address: Khac Niem Industrial Park, Bac Ninh
City, Bac Ninh Province.

Tel: (0222) 3717358

DABACO Veterinary Diagnostic Center is a
facility invested in modern and advanced
equipment, combined with a team of
veterinarians, engineers, and technicians with
high expertise and dedication to the profession.
The main task of the center is to diagnose and

prevent diseases for livestock companies,
breeders, as well as monitor the hygiene and production processes of member
companies in the DABACO Group.

The center also undertakes many other tasks such as testing feed, nutrition, and
performing microbiological analysis services in livestock farming. In addition,
the center also supports DABACO to overcome difficult times of the epidemic by
providing information and professional knowledge, as well as proposing
measures to prevent and handle the epidemic effectively and promptly.

LEVEL III BIO SAFETY LABORATORY

Address: Khac Niem Industrial Park, Bac Ninh City, Bac Ninh Province
Tel: (0222) 3717358
With the great attention of the Group's leaders, ] =N

BSL3 laboratory is invested with the best and the P T ——
most state-of-the-art machinery and equipment e
systems. With the purpose of the modernization e
of equipment system which is carefully selected e

pr
with advanced models and many of the latest .n“@

updated features, imported from prestigious
countries in the world. Some of the equipment used in this laboratory include:
Level 2 bio-safety incubator system brand Thermofisher and imported from the
US. Refrigerated centrifuge system of Eppendorf - Germany. Inverted microscope
of Nikon - Japan. Freeze-drying machine of Christ - Germany. Adherent cell
culture roller system of Pfeiffer - Germany. Conventional incubator system and
CO2 incubator of Memmert - Germany. These devices are carefully selected to
ensure efficiency and reliability in research and testing in BSL3 laboratories. This
contributes to enhancing the Group's research and technology development
capabilities in the biomedical and pharmaceutical Sectors.
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DABACO FOOD PROCESSING JOINT
STOCK COMPANY

Address: Nam Vien Village, Lac Ve Commune,
Tien Du District, Bac Ninh Province

Tel: (0222) 3724343; Fax: (0222) 3724296

Ownership ratio: 49.57% of charter capital

With the vision of technological development

*‘luﬁ}#ﬁlf of the Board of Directors, and the completion of
o

the 3F supply chain (feed - farm - food), the

Group has shaped a comprehensive ecosystem in

the livestock and food production industry. From the production of high-quality
animal feed (feed), through the effective farming process (farm), to the
production and distribution of safe and quality food products (food), the Group
has continuously invested and developed. Equipped with the most modern
facilities, equipment, production lines and machinery imported from Europe,
DABACO FOOD has continuously invested and developed. After 15 years of
operation, it has now become a reliable partner of supermarket systems,
restaurants and industrial kitchens across all provinces and cities of Vietnam.
Currently, the Company is constantly striving to expand the transboundary
market, bringing Dabaco Food products to the world market. This mission is not
only an opportunity to expand business but also a commitment of the Group to

provide quality and reliable products to consumers worldwide.
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DABACO VEGETABLE OIL COMPANY LIMITED

Address: Tan Chi Industrial Park, Tan Chi, Tien
Du, Bac Ninh.

Tel: 0222. 222 1888 | Fax: 0222. 222.1998

Charter capital: VND 280 billion, 100% owned by
the Group.

The company is the first edible oil plant in
Vietnam to invest synchronously in a closed process
from seed import, extraction, refining line to
bottling system, combined with on-site bottle
blowing equipment. 100% of the machinery, equipment and technological lines
are of the state-of-the-art vision imported synchronously from Desmet (Belgium).

We are proud to produce many edible oil brands (Including coba kids oil,
specifically for children, brown rice oil suitable for dieters, sesame oil and many
other products) to serve the diverse demands of customers.. Product quality and
safety are always our top priority, ensuring absolute trust and satisfaction for
customers.
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DABACO EGG PROCESSING FACTORY

Address: Dai Dong Industrial Park, Hoan Son
Ward, Tien Du District, Bac Ninh

From fresh chicken eggs that are carefully
nurtured and taken from natural sources, we are
proud to introduce to our customers the product Devi
Instant Chicken Eggs - a quintessence of the perfect
combination of great flavor and high nutritional
value with the uniqueness of precious herbs. We not
only focus on hygiene, safe processing but also put

DABACO GROUP

the respect and protection of consumers' health as

priority.

Devi Instant Chicken Eggs are processed and packaged with modern
technology, using the vacuum method to preserve, keeping the eggs fresh and the
nutrition intact for a long time. This is not only a convenient choice for daily

meals but also safe and reliable for the health of
you and your family.

Eggs are a natural source of protein and
important nutrients, helping to maintain health
and nutritional balance for the body. Thanks to
Devi Instant Chicken Eggs, you can enjoy the
great taste and nutritional supplements from herbs
easily and immediately.

In addition to Devi Instant Chicken Eggs, our
factory is also proud to produce and provide
customers with a variety of other diverse and rich

food products, such as Chicken floss and instant Chicken Feet. We are committed
to not only maintaining but also improving the quality of each product, to ensure

safety and absolute satisfaction for each customer.

We use fresh and natural ingredients, through careful processing to create
high-quality products, rich in flavor and rich in nutrition to produce Chicken floss

and instant Chicken Feet,. The combination of
modern technology and careful production
processes helps us ensure that each product meets
the highest standards of quality and food safety.
We constantly strive to meet all the needs and

desires of our customers, from providing
delicious, safe products to bringing the most
diverse and rich culinary experiences. Our
mission is to bring absolute satisfaction and trust
to every meal of your family.
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HIEP QUANG ONE-MEMBER TRADING COMPANY

LIMITED

Address: Khac Niem Industrial Park, Bac Ninh
City, Bac Ninh Province

Tel: (+84)222 3717 137 / 382 386 20 | Fax:
(+84)222 3717 137

Charter capital: VND 59 billion, 100% owned
by the Group.

Hiep Quang One-member Trading Company
Limited is proud to be one of the leading and
large-scale units in the Sector of packaging and
plastic tarpaulin production in Vietnam. Owning

two large factories and a modern closed production line system, we are
committed to providing high-quality products, diverse in types and sizes.

Our technician team of experienced technicians is always ready to manufacture
and produce all kinds of packaging and plastic tarpaulins to meet all customer
requirements. We not only supply to the domestic market but also export products
to countries all over the world.

With the mission of constantly improving quality and meeting diverse
customer needs, Hiep Quang Company is committed to providing quality
packaging and plastic tarpaulin products, ensuring the highest standards and
requirements from production to delivery. Customer satisfaction is always our top
motivation and goal.
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BAC NINH TRADING COMPANY LIMITED
Address: Khac Niem Industrial Park, Bac Ninh City, Bac Ninh
Tel: (0222) 3717 388; Fax: (0222) 3717 377
Charter capital: VND 118 billion, 100% owned

by the Group.

Bac Ninh Trading Company Limited operates
mainly in the following Sectors: Trading raw
materials for animal feed production, producing
extruded soybeans and operating supermarkets.
The company has built a system of reputable

suppliers from domestic and international

markets, contributing significantly to the Group's results and the key goal of
developing trade and services for the Province's Type I Urban Area; at the same
time contributing to form civilized and modern consumption habits, improving
the quality of life of the people.

CHUOI CAFE SIEU THI DBC TTTM DBC
PHONG THUY LY THAI TO TU SON

TTTM DBC SIEU THI DBC
QUE VO GIA BINH & LAC VE

DABACO.COM.VN | 37



ANNUAL REPORT 2024 Q DABACO GROUP
MEMBER UNIT

LEINDOCHINA TOURISM AND HOTEL COMPANY LIMITED

Address: Nguyen Dang Dao, Suoi Hoa, Bac
Ninh City.

Tel: (0222) 3629 999

Email: info@leindochinahotel.com

Charter capital: VND 210 billion, 100%
owned by the Group.
Le Indochina Hotel & Spa is proud to be the
first ideal destination in Bac Ninh province,
offering a classy experience with international
S-star certification. With a variety of rooms

from standard to premium, each space here is
designed luxuriously and delicately.

Modern and sophisticated interior equipment combined with convenient
services such as premium, duplex rooms, restaurants serving European and Asian
cuisine, international conference rooms, wedding center, Indochina restaurant,
Century 14 bar, Himalayan salt sauna and four-season swimming pool... which
create a unique, stylish and classy relaxation space, meeting all the demands of
customers, not only domestic but also international tourists.

Moreover, Le Indochina Hotel & Spa also has a branch in Da Nang, the leading
tourist city in Vietnam. This branch continues to bring the same classy experience
and quality service as in Bac Ninh province. With a prime location in Da Nang,
this hotel is an ideal stopover for tourists who want to explore the beauty of this
coastal city.

Similar to the branch in Bac Ninh, Le Indochina Hotel & Spa in Da Nang also
owns high-class facilities, luxurious rooms and attentive services to ensure guests
have a wonderful vacation. With a combination of classy space and convenient
location, this hotel is the top choice for those who want to experience
convenience and comfort in Da Nang.
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VIET NHAT ORGANIC FERTILIZER COMPANY LIMITED

Address: Khu Son, Hap Linh Ward, Bac Ninh City, Bac Ninh Province

Tel: 0222 6507 799

Charter capital: VND 35 billion, 100% owned by
the Group.

Using organic fertilizers is an inevitable solution
to increase the added wvalue of our country's
agriculture and further integrate into the world
market. Viet Nhat Organic Fertilizer Company
Limited's main business activity is the production of
high-quality micro-organic fertilizers, replacing
100% of manure, using modern Japanese production
technology, Viet Nhat organic fertilizers not only
help farmers increase agricultural productivity effectively but also contribute to
environmental protection.

TRANSECO JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: Khac Niem Industrial Park, Bac Ninh
City, Bac Ninh Province

Tel: 0222 3821 515

Ownership ratio: 33.33% of charter capital.

Transeco Joint Stock Company is an affiliated
company established by the Group, with high
capacity in the Sector of transportation, currently
owning a fleet of 06 barges, including 04 barge with
a capacity of 1,800 tons/barge and 02 barge with a
capacity of 2,350 tons/ barge Along with a fleet of
trucks, tankers, and containers serving the transportation of goods from the Port,
raw material areas to Factories, units under the Group and enterprises in the area.

DABACO TAN CHI PORT

Address: Tan Chi, Tien Du District, Bac Ninh Province

Tel: (0222) 3724398

DABACO Tan Chi Port has a total handling
capacity of 2.4 million tons/year, capable of handling
barges with a tonnage of up to 2,000 tons. Beside
that, the Port has invested in a multi-purpose pedestal
crane system with a capacity of 40 tons to serve the
loading and unloading of oversized and overweight
cargo, a container crane with bucket and a bulk cargo
suction system with a capacity of 250 tons/hour to
suck raw materials from the Port directly into the
storage silo, serving the DABACO crushing plant.
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MEMBER UNIT

TAN CHI PORT AND LOGISTICS COMPANY LIMITED

Address: Chi Dong village, Tan Chi commune, Tien Du District, Bac Ninh
Province.

Tel: 0222 3 875 636

Charter capital: VND 30 billion, 100% owned
by the Group.

Dabaco  Investment  Construction  and
Infrastructure Development Company Limited,
renamed as Tan Chi Port and Logistics Company
Limited is a member of DABACO Group,
established in 2010, operating in the Sector of
technical infrastructure construction of all types
of housing projects, railways, roads, public
works, industrial parks, urban areas; buy, sell,
rent construction machinery and equipment,....
With a team of experienced and highly skilled workers, along with creativity and
professionalism, Tan Chi Port and Logistics Company Limited is committed to
providing customers with quality services, ensuring progress and meeting all
requirements of construction projects. Through the projects implemented, the
company has affirmed its reputation and position in the construction and
infrastructure development industry, contributing to the sustainable development
of the country.

Some BT project Companies:

Van Mieu Bac Ninh Detention Pond Construction
Company Limited — Charter capital: VND 100 billion
H2 Road Construction Company Limited — Charter
capital: VND 130 billion.

Khuc Xuyen Industrial Cluster Investment and
Development Company Limited — Charter capital:
VND 43 billion.
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DEVELOPMENT ORIENTATION OF DABACO GROUP

Products

Providing products that ensure food safety and
hygiene, comply with standards and regulations, with
outstanding  value
and quality.
Diversifying  and
developing  new-
unique product
lines and products with high added value and |
intellectual content.

Production scale

All production and business facilities are
invested in building infrastructure, modern
equipment, high automation; clean, neat and
tidy working environment creates favorable
conditions for officers and laborers to work with
quality, efficiency and high productivity..

Quality Management System

Build, apply, maintain and
improve the quality management
system according to international
standards ISO 9001, ISO 22000,

HACCP, GMP, Halal and 5S good
practice program at production and
business facilities to better satisfy

customer needs.

ta
Hatural
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MEDIUM AND LONG TERM DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY

FEED - Thuc an chan e | | R
San xuat thi'c dn gia 51}“ | el
gia cam va thiy san. ||

- | T
FOOD - thuc pham ! 'h'nw
Gigt ma va ché bién thuc pham,
san ®uat rau an todn Ung dungcong nghé cao.

Develop into a strong economic Group in the Sector of agriculture — food
applying high technology according to the advanced, closed production model
(3F model) including: “Production of animal feed, poultry and aqua feed products
(Feed) — Production of livestock, poultry breeds and contracted farms (Farm) —
Slaughtering and food processing (Food) in parallel with the development of a
modern retail system according to the model of Dabaco Supermarkets and Fresh
Food Stores”, with the motto “Green growth and sustainable development”.
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DABACO GROUP

PIAT TN PROMNDITIOTTION AND RPTITAOINEQCO ACTIVITTIELS

No

Risk

Description

Control measures

Risk
related to
disease and
climate
change

Unusual climate
changing and frequent
epidemics are considered
among the unavoidable
risks that companies in the
livestock  industry in
general and Dabaco in
particular must face to.

Dabaco focuses on hygiene, ensuring strict
control of biosecurity livestock farming
processes and production processes according
to ISO 9001, ISO 22000, HACCP, GMP and 5S
good practice programs to proactively control
and suppress dangerous diseases in livestock
and poultry; at the same time, ensuring that
pork and chicken products supplied to the
market are always fresh, healthy and food safe.

Human
resource
risk

Advanced science and
technology require
workers to have high
technical skills, beside,
Requirement of  strict
biosecurity in livestock
farms, the increasing job-
hopping of young workers
causes the Company to
spend a lot of time and
money on recruitment and
training.

Enhancing the organization of training
programs to support workers in improving their
professional qualifications and skills, while
creating favorable conditions for the workforce
to access scientific and technological
advancements.  This  includes  applying
management solutions based on digital
technology platforms, ensuring compatibility
and effectiveness with the parent-subsidiary
company model, which operates across a wide
range of industries and sectors.

Establishing a fair working environment with
salary, bonuses, and benefits policies tailored to
each job position and actual conditions, along
with various incentive policies aimed at
attracting, inspiring, and fostering strong
connections between laborers and the company.

Exchange
rate
fluctuations

Foreign exchange
fluctuations are one of the
risks that impact the
company's production and
business operations, as a
significant portion of raw
materials for animal feed
production is imported
from abroad and paid in
US dollars.

Establishing foreign exchange demand,
preparing foreign exchange reserves,
forecasting,  monitoring, and  analyzing
exchange rate fluctuations to balance demand
and adjust plans accordingly.

Dabaco proactively develops production plans
and enters into contracts with major suppliers
for raw material procurement, ensuring the
stability of supply sources as well as raw
material purchase prices. Additionally, Dabaco
is also proactive in researching and developing
domestic raw material sources that can be
produced locally instead of relying on imports.

Other risks

Other risks such as natural
disasters, climate change,
inflation, war, etc.

To prevent possible force majeure risks, Dabaco
always has timely preventive and response
measures to minimize damage to production
and business activities.
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II. BUSINESS AND PRODUCTION STATUS IN 2024

2024 is a year with
positive changes in the
production activities of the
Feed Mills.

Feed Mills operated
effectively in  adjusting
production to meet the
requirements of sales volume
in 2024. This shows good
production management
ability and flexibility in
adapting to market demand.

The average productivity
of most Feed Mills increased
in 2024 comparing to 2023.
This is a positive sign,
showing that the Feed Mills
have made efforts in
optimizing production
processes, improving
workers' skills, or applying

new technologies to increase
work efficiency.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE RESULTS OF ANIMAL FEED PRODUCTION

IN 2024
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ANIMAL FEED ACCORDING TO INTERNATIONAL
STANDARDS - TRACEABILITY

2024 continues to be a
challenging year for the
global pig  farming
industry, however,
thanks to a flexible
management strategy and
continuous efforts, the
Group has achieved
many positive results in
the  production and
consumption of animal
feed.

The Group's leaders has closely directed the raw material purchasing units, ensuring
sufficient supply for production and storage according to plan. The application of
material software in updating and reporting data helps save time, costs, and improve
management efficiency. Thus, animal feed production at the Feed Mills has been
maintained stably, meeting the requirements for sales volume.

With the proactive in
operating and optimizing
the production process,
the Group's 7 Feed Mills
have basically completed
the set plan, increasing
by 25.6% compared to
2023. The  average
productivity per shift at
the Feed Mills has

increased, showing a clear improvement in production
efficiency. In particular, solutions to save raw materials and
optimize production and preservation processes have helped
improve production and business efficiency, creating a solid
foundation for sustainable development.
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->  Synchronized production technology and
equipment, automation rate reaches over 90%.

-> Production materials are strictly controlled.

-> The production process is operated automatically
and remotely controlled through the central control

system to ensure stable product quality.
Animal food sales volume to the morket

-> Applying high w2021 w2024
technology in
establishing nutritional rations.

-> Diverse types of feed products to meet the growth
and development stages of livestock, suitable for each
region and locality.

-> Products meet international standards ISO 9001,
ISO 22000, GMP good manufacturing practice
standards and a series of gold quality awards in
Vietnam and internationally.
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PIG FARMING SECTOR

In 2024, the pig farming industry continued to face many challenges due to the
epidemic situation and fluctuations from macro factors, such as high input costs and
fluctuations in pork prices. However, thanks to a reasonable production strategy, the
continuous efforts of the staff and process optimization solutions, the Group has
achieved outstanding results, reflecting the strong development and large scale of the
company.

Specifically, the consumption output in 2024 recorded impressive growth, reaching
105% of the set plan, showing strong development in breeding and herd restoration,
surpassing the set target. In addition, the output of consumed pigs grew significantly
and reflected the expansion of the company's production and product consumption
scale, meeting market demand in a difficult context. Some companies have achieved
extremely impressive results such as: Phu Tho Breeding Pig Company achieved 188%

of the piglet consumption plan, Lac Ve Breeding Pig Company achieved 590% of the
piglet consumption plan - a spectacular figure reflecting strong development and the
ability to meet market demand beyond expectations. This achievement not only shows
the Group's utmost efforts in improving production processes and breed quality but also
affirms the Group's position in the Breeding Pig industry.
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POTIIT.TRY FARMING. SFCTOR

- Breeding chicken
sector: In 2024, the breeding
chicken sector continues to
face great difficulties,
affected by  epidemics,
market price fluctuations,
and instability in broiler
prices. These factors caused
many farmer to suffer losses,
some farms did not dare to

re-raise or invest in new
ones, affecting the output of
breeding chickens. However, with a long-term development strategy and continuous
efforts, the Group still achieved positive results, demonstrating flexibility and the ability
to overcome difficulties.

In 2024, the Company continued to focus on investing in research, improving
breeds, creating unique colored chicken breeds that are favored by the market.
Accordingly, the company has maintained, selected, preserved and crossbred 12
purebred chicken
lines such as: Mia
Rooster, Mia hen, Ho
Hen, Ho Rooster, 9
spurs, C Line, D Line,
Green Eggs and
especially in the year,
developed and
preserved 03 new
chicken lines (Gray
Noi Chicken, Ben Tre
Chicken, Tien Yen
Chicken) with
outstanding economic

and technical
indicators, which are the premise for crossbreeding, developing and producing breeding
chickens in the coming time.

- In the egg-laying hen sector, the output of fresh chicken eggs sold completing
98.3% of the set plan, processed eggs are expanded market through many distributing
channels.

Despite difficulties in consumption, the technical indicators still show some
positive signs. The laying rate reached 80%, completing 102% of the set plan, and the
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number reached 283 eggs/hen/year,
completing 99% of the plan. The
Company's products have been sold
in most supermarkets in the North
and Central regions, including large
supermarket  chains such as
Winmart, Coopmart, Big C, Metro,
Lotte, AEON... and are trusted by
large confectionery and food
companies. At the same time, the

Company continues to research and launch deeply processed products, aiming to
enhance the position, brand and competitiveness of products such as Devi instant
chicken eggs with different flavors, lemongrass chicken jerky, Dachi instant chicken
feet...

In particular, Dabaco has
become a  pioneer in
implementing the method of
raising humane egg-laying
chickens, without using cages
(cage-free). This is a
breakthrough step,
demonstrating Dabaco’s strong
commitment to sustainable
development and  animal

welfare. This breeding process
not only focuses on physical health but also protects the spirit of the animals, with
specialized care and nutrition regimens monitored and certified by prestigious
international organizations. Products from Dabaco’s humane chicken farming model not

only ensure superior quality but also bring high P S S P R Py
nutritional value, meeting the needs of partners in = CERTIFICATE OF CERTIFICATION ¢
the food and confectionery export industry. This is = CERTIFIED |

|

not only a new trend in livestock farming but also
opens up great opportunities for Dabaco, affirming
its pioneering role in the industry and meeting the
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product promotion strategies, expanding the
distribution market to consume all production
output.
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FOOD PROCESSING SECTOR

To meet the increasingly high and strict demands of consumers, Dabaco continues
to affirm its pioneering position in the food industry with deeply processed products of
outstanding quality, high nutritional value and rich, quintessential flavors of Vietnamese
cuisine. Some outstanding products such as chicky Cheese sausage, Dabaco Sausage,
DBC Special Meat Spring Rolls, and food balls (fish balls, vegetable and seafood balls,
etc.) not only dominate the market but also become a familiar choice of millions of
Vietnamese families, highly appreciated by consumers for their safety and excellent
flavor.
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With commitment to bringing perfect products from input to consumers, Dabaco
deploys a closed 3F (Feed - Farm - Food) production process to strictly control from
breeding, processing to distribution, ensuring absolute food safety. Each ingredient is
carefully selected, each processing stage is strictly monitored, bringing products that are
not only delicious but also nutritious and safe.

In 2024, Dabaco Food continued to affirm the strategy "Only processing Added
vulue products gains ADDED VALUE to
businesses" with the determination to create
unique, different and breakthrough products
in the market. By applying advanced
processing technology, modern techniques
and unique recipes from leading culinary
experts, Dabaco constantly innovates,
improves  quality, brings outstanding
products, meeting the increasingly high
demands of the market. Dabaco not only
builds its brand through quality, but also
contributes to creating new consumption

I trends, for a safe, nutritious and sustainable
THUC PHAM ¢

; e.
DABACO
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VEGETABLE OIL PRODUCTION SECTOR

In 2024, Dabaco affirmed its superior position in the cooking oil industry in
Vietnam, becoming the pioneer company to own a closed production process from input
to finished products. With this model, Dabaco ensured strict control from raw material
selection, processing, to packaging and distribution stages, creating vegetable oil
products that meet international standards in quality, safety and nutrition. This closed
process not only helped Dabaco improve production efficiency but also optimized the
quality of each drop of oil, ensuring that each product reaching consumers meets the
high standards.

Dabaco not only produces popular cooking oils such as soybean oil, but also
develops high-end products such as mixed nutritional oil, sesame oil, gac oil, brown rice
oil especially specialized oil lines for -
children. All of these products are
produced from selected raw materials,
through modern production processes,
combined with advanced technology, to
ensure absolute safety and optimal
nutritional value.

Beside to the domestic market,
Dabaco also reaches out to the world,
exporting  high-quality  cooking  oil
products to many countries, affirming the
strength and reputation of the Vietnamese
brand. The uniqueness of this closed
process has helped Dabaco build a solid
trust in the hearts of consumers, becoming
the choice of Vietnamese families.
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With a commitment to provide high-quality, safe and nutritious cooking oil
products, Dabaco continues to maintain its role as a pioneer in the vegetable oil industry
in Vietnam, creating a strong and distinct mark in the market, while expanding its
export potential to the world.
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COMMERCIAL AND SERVICE SECTORS

In 2024, the commercial and
service sector of Dabaco Group
continued to be heavily invested,
expanding its scale and improving
service quality to adapt to market
fluctuations and new consumer
trends.

With a  flexible and
innovative strategy, Dabaco not
only consolidates its position in

the market but also creates more
professional and classy shopping,
accommodation and logistics experiences.

In the field of retail and supermarket services, Dabaco has promoted upgrading the
supermarket system and convenience stores according to modern models, increasing
customer experience with convenient shopping spaces, applying smart payment
technology and adding list of essential products, fresh and organic foods to meet
increasing consumer demand. Promoting programs and attractive incentives are
continuously deployed, helping to increase revenue and attract returning customers. In
addition to, the e-commerce platform and fast delivery service are also invested in and
developed, improving the ability to serve customers flexibly, optimizing the shopping
experience

The hotel and accommodation service sector has also focused on improving an
upgrading the utility system, expanding resort and culinary service packages according
to high standards to attract more customers. Although the tourism and accommodation

market still has many challenges, Dabaco has proactively taken the lead in the trend by
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DABACO GROUP

applying modern
management technology,
optimizing  operations,
and implementing
cooperation  programs
with travel and event
businesses to increase
customer sources and
improve service
exploitation efficiency.
In the Sector of
logistics, Tan Chi Port
and Transeco company

continue to affirm its important role in ensuring the loading and unloading of goods and
the transportation of raw materials for the Group's factory system and businesses in the

area. With professional operating capacity, modern equipment and an optimal

management system, the port has contributed to helping the supply chain operate
smoothly, saving costs and shortening the time of goods delivery.

In 2024, Dabaco not
only maintained its
commercial and  service
activities but also focused on
quality, experience and
added value for customers.
With a strategic vision and
thorough investment, the
Group was gradually
improving  its  position,
expanding its market and
creating sustainable values.
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VACCINE RESEARCH AND PRODUCTION SECTOR

in August 2022, Dabaco Group started construction of the Dacovet vaccine factory
with a total investment of 300 billion VND, the factory has a designed capacity of up to
200 million doses/year, becoming the 12th
vaccine factory in the country. The factory
is equipped with a modern, synchronous
equipment line system imported from
developed industrial countries such as the
US, Germany, and Japan. In particular, the
factory owns a fully automatic vial loading
and unloading system for the freeze-drying

machine - an advanced and unique

technology in Vietnam. The factory is a pioneer in applying an automatic packaging
system and strict quality control, ensuring that 100% of products are inspected for
sensory inspection and leakage before being released to the market. The factory was
officially granted Certificate of Good Manufacturer Practice (GMP — WHO)

On February 28, 2025, the African swine fever vaccine: Dacovac ASF2 was
officially licensed for commercial circulation which recognized the achievements
of a long process of investment in research and development of a vaccine
considered the most difficult in the world - a vaccine that no country has
successfully commercialized

o T 1 P T O T @ S . S N 1 I
. . i F i

LRl THU %
S riae of Acimal Bealia
LELAT CHTWG SN T U DT DA 0 ks Kk T s
e Whi's ol bo e S P B
N
it il ) TR
£ T Ui R L TR e T
Sy | s P i A b ey | TR
el g S A ey T
—s e v e | e e e b b b e
- . a — e s e d
o
fm o — S - —
=i ey by vt ey it s
B v kg i
3 -
7 T
. s FUT &
Lhk e e | M.
T e Sy [ - el o
Sl il
- - s - w, S

DABACO.COM.VN | 55



ANNUAL REPORT 2024 Q DABACO GROUP
PACKAGING AND PLASTIC TARPAULIN PRODUCTION SECTOR

In 2024, Dabaco
continued to affirm its
strength and reputation in
the Sector of packaging
and  plastic tarpaulin
production, expanding its
scale and  improving
product quality, meeting
increasingly diverse
market demands. With a
strategy of expanding
products and sustainable
growth, Dabaco not only maintains stability in the domestic market but also
continues to consolidate its position in international markets.

Dabaco's packaging products, with impressive consumption output, have
dominated the domestic market and are strongly exported to countries such as
Japan, Thailand, Korea, the US and the Philippines. In particular, the Jumbo Bag
product, a big bag, has been introduced and made a strong impression on the
market, serving the loading and transportation of heavy industrial products such

as cement, fertilizer, plastic granules, etc. The flexible load capacity from 500kg
to 2,000kg of Jumbo Bag has helped Dabaco become a reliable partner in the
freight industry. Not only meeting domestic demand, Jumbo Bag products have
also been successfully exported to demanding markets such as Korea and
Singapore, affirming the brand's outstanding quality and reliability.

In the Sector of plastic tarpaulins, Dabaco has also gained strong progress, with
high sales volume, dominating the export market and developing strongly in
regions such as  Japan,
Thailand, Indonesia, Malaysia,
France, Korea and Jordan.
Dabaco's  plastic  tarpaulin
products are known for their
outstanding  durability  and
diverse applications in many
industries, from construction,
agriculture to light industries.
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ORGANIC FERTILIZER PRODUCTION SECTOR

In 2024, Viet Nhat Fertilizer Company made strong strides in expanding the
market, promoting the supply of high-quality organic fertilizer products,
contributing to improving crop productivity and promoting green, sustainable
agriculture. Thanks to a methodical development strategy, along with investment
in modern production technology, the company has affirmed its position in the
domestic fertilizer market, especially in the Northern region.
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organic fertilizers for a
series of large-scale seed
planting projects,
supporting the
improvement of cultivated
land, optimizing nutrition
and improving the quality L hD Lk i s cus St i

of agricultural products.

In addition to expanding its distribution network, Viet Nhat Fertilizer
Company also focuses on product research and development, introducing new
generation organic fertilizers rich in microorganisms, helping to improve soil
fertility, enhance plant resistance and minimize negative impacts on the
environment. With circle production process releasing no waste and a sustainable
development orientation, the company not only focuses on economic efficiency
but also aims to accompany the Vietnamese agricultural sector for a long time,
creating a solid foundation for the development of clean, green and modern
production.
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e List of Executive Board.

General Director Mr. Nguyen Khac Thao
Year of birth 1957

Place of birth Bac Ninh

Shareholding rate 0.93%

Qualifications Bachelor of Economics

Work process

11/2023 — now

Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors cum
General Director, legal representative of DABACO
Group

05/2015 — dén nay

Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors cum
General Director of DABACO Group

05/2008 — 05/2015

Member of the Board of Directors cum Deputy
General Director of DABACO Group

01/2005 — 05/2008

Manager of Materials - Import and Export of Bac
Ninh Agricultural Products Joint Stock Company

10/1982 — 10/1985

Study at Hanoi University of Commerce

10/1979 —9/1982

Statistics Officer of CNP Son Dong Retail
Company, Luc Ngan, Bac Giang

Depﬁ?ngge;eml Mr. Nguyen The Tuong
Year of birth 1970
Place of birth Bac Ninh
Shareholding rate 1.05%
Qualifications Veterinarian, Master of Agriculture

Work process

05/2015 — now

Member of the Board of Directors cum Deputy General
Director of Dabaco Group

05/2008 — 05/2015

Member of the Board of Directors, Manager of
Technical and Quality of DABACO Group

01/2005 — 05/2008

Member of the Board of Directors, Manager of
Technical and Quality of Bac Ninh Agricultural
Products Joint Stock Company

07/1999 —12/2004

Head of Technical Department of Bac Ninh Agricultural
Products Company

05/1996 — 06/1999

Deputy Head of Technical Department of Ha Bac
Agricultural Products Company
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Deputy General

Director cum Chief Mrs. Nguyen Thi Thu Huong

Accountant
Year of birth 1964
Shareholding rate 1.38%

. ) Bachelor of Economics, Master of Business
Qualifications

Management

Work process

05/2024 — Now

Member of the Board of Directors, Deputy General
Director cum Financial Manager, DABACO Group

05/2015 — 2024

Member of the Board of Directors, Deputy General
Director cum Financial Manager, Chief Accountant of
DABACO Group

03/2011 —05/2015

Member of the Board of Directors, Financial Manager
cum Chief Accountant of DABACO Group

05/2008 —03/2011

Member of the Board of Directors, Financial Manager
cum Chief Accountant of DABACO Group

01/2005 —05/2008

Member of the Board of Directors, Financial Manager
cum Chief Accountant of Bac Ninh Agricultural
Products Joint Stock Company

05/1996 — 12/2004

Deputy Head of Finance Department, Head of Finance
Department, Chief Accountant of Bac Ninh
Agricultural Products Company

06/1986 - 04/1996

Working at the Central Statistical Cadre School

g?’p“ty General Mr. Pham Van Hoc

irector

Year of birth 1978

Place of birth Bac Ninh

Shareholding rate 0.08%

Qualifications Veterinarian, Master of Animal Husbandry
Work process

2014 — now Deputy General Director of DABACO Group

03/2011 —05/2014

Director of DABACO Breeding Pig Company Limited

07/2010 — 02/2011

Deputy Director of DABACO Breeding Pig Company

09/2009 — 06/2010

Planning Department of Bac Ninh Agricultural
Products Joint Stock Company

2003 — 05/2009

Bac Ninh Agricultural Extension Center

2001 —2003

Worked at CP Vietnam Thai Lan Joint Stock Company
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gielitzfeneral Mr. Nguyen Van Tue
Year of birth 1956

Place of birth Bac Ninh

Shareholding rate 0.04%

Qualifications PhD in Agriculture — Animal Husbandry

Work process

10/2020 - now

Deputy General Director of Dabaco Group

10/2017 —10/2020

Deputy General Director of Dabaco Group
cum Director of Nutreco Company Limited

2010 -10/2017

Director of Nutreco Company Limited

2009 - 2010

Director of NUTRECO Feed Mill

Nam 2008 — 2009

Head of the Department of Fisheries of Bac Ninh
Province

Nam 1997 — 2008

Director of the Agricultural Extension Center of Ha
Bac Province

Nam 1993 — 1996

Deputy Director of the Agricultural Extension Center
of Ha Bac Province

Nam 1981 — 1993

Working at the Department of Agriculture of Ha Bac
Province

De General
. puty Mr. Hoang Van Chung
Director
Year of birth 1979
Place of birth Ngoc. Son Commune, Hiep Hoa District, Bac Giang
Province
Shareholding rate 0.6%
Qualifications Aquatic processing engineer

Work process

Tt 5/2020 - now

Deputy General Director of DABACO Group cum
Director of NUTRECO Company Limited

10/2010 - 4/2020

Deputy Director - NUTRECO Company Limited

2007 - 2010 Assistant Sales Director - Newhope Hanoi Company
2005 - 2007 Sales Staff - Newhope Hanoi Company
2004 - 2005 Sales Staff - Sao Do Ceramic Tile Company
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Deputy General Mr. Le Minh Tuan
Manager
Year of birth 1958
Place of birth Bac Ninh
Shareholding rate 0.00005%
Qualifications Civil engineer

Work process

From 01/2023 — now

Deputy General Director of Dabaco Group.

Director of Van Mieu Bac Ninh Detention Pond
Construction Company Limited, and Director of H2

2013 -2023 Road Construction Company Limited, and Director of
Khuc Xuyen Industrial Cluster Investment and
Development Company Limited

2009 - 2013 Manager of of Que Vo 3 Industrial Park Department.

Deputy General Mr. Do Viet Quan

Director

Year of birth 1980

Place of birth Van Ha, Viet Yen, Bac Giang

Shareholding rate 0.00006%

Qualifications Master of Business Management

Work process

From 01/2023 — now

Deputy General Director, Dabaco Group. Director of
Quang Ninh Joint Stock Company.

Director of Project Management Board, Dabaco Group;

2021 - 2022 . : .
Director of Quang Ninh Joint Stock Company.

2011 - 2021 Director of Project Management Department, Dabaco
Group.

2007 - 2011 In charge of Project Management Department, Bac
Ninh Agricultural Products Joint Stock Company.

2003 - 2007 Staff of Project Management Department, Bac Ninh

Agricultural Products Company.
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L ey o Mrs. Le Thi Minh Thu
irector

Year of birth 1974

Place of birth Lai Cach Commune, Cam Giang District, Hai Duong Province

Shareholding 0.06%

rate

Certifications Master of Agriculture, Veterinarian

Work process

From 04/2023 — | Deputy General Director of Dabaco Group

to now

2010 - 03/2023 Director of Lac Ve Breeding Pig Company Limited

2006 - 2010 Director of Lac Ve Breeding Pig Enterprise

2004 - 2006 Deputy Directqr of Thuan Thanh Breeding Livestock and
Poultry Enterprise

2002 - 2004 Spegialist of Project Management Department, Bac Ninh
Agricultural Products Company

2001 - 2002 Ofﬁce}r Qual@ty and Aquat'ic Hygiene Ma.m.agement,. Cenjter for
Aquatic Hygiene and Quality Control, Ministry of Fisheries

1998 - 2001 Technical Manager and Assistant Director, PIC Vietnam
Company

1997 - 1998 Veterinary Manager at Hanoi Livestock Breeding Company

1996-1997 Veterinary Manager at Mau Xanh Company Limited

Chief Accountant Mrs. Nguyen Thi Thanh Huyen

Year of birth 1973

Place of birth Hoa Binh

Shareholding rate 0,03%

Certifications Bachalor of Fiancial and accounting.

Work process

05/2024 — Now

Chief Accountant of Dabaco Group

01/2007 — 05/2024

Vice-head of Financial and Accounting Department. of
Dabaco Group

03/1998 — 12/2006

Staff of Financial and Accounting Department, Bac
Ninh Agricultural Products Joint Stock Company.
(Nowadays as Dabaco Group)

01/1995 —02/1998

Accountant of Viet Yen Material-agricultural Shop, Ha
Bac - Ha Bac Material-agricultural Company

09/1993 — 12/1994

Accountant of Viet Yen Animal Health station — Bac
Giang Animal Health Department

Personnel Change

Full name

Position Start date End date

Bui Hai Huyen

Deputy General Manager

16/08/2023 01/02/2024
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STRUCTURE — LABOR OUALIFICATIONS — WELFARE

Understanding that In the era of integration
and digital transformation, people are the core
factor determining the sustainable development
of an enterprise, Dabaco Group pays special
attention to quality of human resource, ensuring
that each individual is well-trained, fully
equipped with skills and knowledge to meet the

requirements of integration and development in
the global business environment.

Accounting for above 30% of the total workforce, the team of manager with
undergraduate and postgraduate degrees are experienced leaders and experts,
playing a pioneering role in research, strategic planning and innovation. These are
not only people with expertise but also possess sharp thinking, management
ability according to international standards, helping Dabaco constantly improve
its competitiveness, apply advanced technology and stay ahead of the
development trends of the industry.

With 35% of its laborers trained with college, intermediate and vocational
qualifications, Dabaco has a team of highly skilled technicians and skilled
workers, who are well-trained according to strict standards. This is the core force
that helps the group maintain modern production processes, optimize productivity
and ensure product and service quality that meets international standards. Not
only stopping at operations, this team is also constantly trained and updated with
new knowledge to improve
their expertise, ready to meet
the strict requirements of the
domestic and foreign markets.

In addition to the
management and professional
team, Dabaco also has a labor
force trained on-site, playing
an important role in
maintaining stability and sustainable development. Unlike many businesses that

only recruit available labor, Dabaco focuses on internal training strategies,
ensuring that all laborers are fully equipped with skills, understand the operating
process and constantly improve their skills. The Group invests heavily in
intensive training programs, applying practical training methods combined with
advanced technology, helping the staff adapt quickly to market changes, ready to
integrate into the global production and business environment.
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The harmonious combination of
labor skill groups has created a human
resource foundation that is both elite and
flexible, helping Dabaco maintain a
strong growth rate, constantly innovate
and adapt to all market fluctuations. Not
only meeting domestic development
needs, Dabaco's staff is also competitive
in the international market, ready to
participate in the global playground with
a proactive and professional manner.

R/

o [ Policies and changes in policies for laborers: Human resource
training and development policy

Determining human resources as one of the most important assets of the enterprise,
deciding the sustainable development of the enterprise, human resource training and
development is always prioritized by Dabaco. With the orientation of sustainable
development in the form of a multi-industry economic group, Dabaco always focuses on
building a strong staff to meet all the needs of customers and the market. New laborers
are supported and guided by specialized departments to integrate and catch up with the
work. Workers who have no ideas about the job are guided to learn a trade according to
regulations, experienced workers are arranged according to their capacity and strengths
and are regularly trained to continuously enhanced their skills and develop their ability
Dabaco has implemented training courses to improve management capacity and
professional skills for the Group's laborers; Sending staff to attend seminars and lectures
on related fields, all expenses are sponsored by the Company. In addition, Dabaco also
organizes internal training courses to improve understanding, exchange, grasp
information, share
experiences, communicate,
and strengthen solidarity
among staff in the entire
Dabaco system.

Recruiment policy:

To  attract  laborers, E:
DABACO's recruitment o ‘.."' :
activities are implemented ' :
clearly and transparently with
a complete and clear process,
ensuring fairness and creating opportunities for everyone. DABACO always wants to
welcome dynamic, enthusiastic and ambitious candidates, ready to accept the challenges
of DABACQO's work and business environment. At the same time, with the goal of
contributing to job creation and promoting local economic development, the Company
has a policy of prioritizing the recruitment of local personnel in the Company’s base.
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In 2024, DABACO focused on building and
perfecting policies, regulations, and training
management processes throughout the Group's
parent company and its subsidiaries to ensure a
unified management mechanism and system with
the aim of developing human resources in a
synchronous and sustainable manner.

Company’s salary, bonus and welfare
policy

In 2024, in the context of a fluctuate
market, Dabaco Group continued to affirm its
strong commitment to taking care of the
material and spiritual lives of its laborers. Not v Tt
only maintaining a stable income level, the
Group also constantly improved its remuneration policies, creating strong
motivation for its staff and workers to work stable, long-term contributions and
maximize their capacity for the general
development.

Dabaco always considers laborers'
income as one of key factors in ensuring
their lives and creating sustainable
cohesion. Therefore, in 2024, the Group
continued to adjust its salary, bonus and
welfare policies flexibly, suitable for each stage of development and actual
situation. The remuneration system was built transparently and fairly, ensuring
worthy treatment for individuals with positive contributions. The reward
mechanism was also expanded to encourage creativity and improve work
performance, including a policy of rewarding productivity exceeding KPIs,
creating opportunities to increase income based on actual results. Technical
initiatives and solutions to
optimize  production  and
business processes of high

value was recognized and
rewarded promptly.

In addition to taking care
of the material life, Dabaco
also pays special attention to
the spiritual life of laborers.
The Group combined with the
Trade Union and the Youth
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Union, organizes many activities to strengthen the connection between laborers
and create a positive working atmosphere. Welfare programs are expanded with
activities such as organizing birthday parties, visiting sick people, supporting
sudden difficulties, giving gifts on holidays, International Women's Day March 8,
Vietnamese Women's Day October 20, Mid-Autumn Festival, International
Children's Day.

Realizing the
importance of building a
professional and
sustainable working

environment, in 2024,
Dabaco continued to
promote training
programs to improve
skills and update new
knowledge, helping the
staff to always be ready
to adapt to market

changes. Internal training
courses, In conjunction
with prestigious educational institutions, will be held regularly, especially in-
depth professional training programs for managers and potential laborers. At the
same time, the Group also expands the policy of supporting training and
advanced learning costs to encourage the spirit of learning and personal capacity
development.

With the motto of “Laborers are the most valuables assets”, Dabaco
constantly innovates to bring the best treatment policies, ensuring a prosperous
life and comfortable spirit for laborers. This 1s not only a simple concern but also
a sustainable development stategy, helping each individual have the opportunity
to maximize their capacity, contribute long-term and conquer big goals in the
future with Dabaco.
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PARTERSHIP POLICY - STRATEGIC COOPERATION
Dabaco strengthening cooperation to develop high-tech agriculture with the
Czech Republic enterprises community.

On the morning of March 20, 2024, a
working delegation led by representatives
of the Czech Ministry of Agriculture in
Vietnam, along with a group of Czech
enterprises, payed a working visit to
Dabaco Group to seek and promote
investment cooperation opportunities in the
field of high-tech agriculture as well as
export and import of agricultural products
between the two countries. Within the
framework of the Czech Agricultural Business Forum organized by the Ministry
of Agriculture in coordination with the Chamber of Commerce and the Embassy
of the Czech Republic, representatives of the Czech Ministry of Agriculture in
Vietnam and a number of typical enterprises payed a working visit to Dabaco
Group at the headquarters. The working trip aimed to connect Czech enterprises
with opportunities for cooperation in the field of high-tech agriculture such as

breeding production, veterinary medicine, food processing technology as well as
opportunities to export and import agricultural products between the two
countries of Vietnam and the Czech Republic.

Dabaco Group signed a cooperation program with the National
Agricultural Extension Center

On March 29" 2024, at the
headquarters, Dabaco Group and the
National Agricultural Extension Center
held a signing ceremony of the
Cooperation Program to promote the
application of technical advances in
livestock farming and animal feed
production in the direction of high
technology, towards sustainable livestock
development and environmental protection
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Dabaco Group promotes cooperation with Cooperl Group (France) to
develop the GGP grandparent pig project, the sperm transfer center and
smart farm in Vietnam.

On April 9th , 2024, at the headquarters
of Dabaco Group, a cooperation
agreement signing ceremony took place
between Dabaco Group and Cooperl
Group (France). The event aims to
develop Dabaco's grandparent pig herd
(GGP), making an important contribution
to the application of science and
technology in pig breeding.

DBC: Meeting with investors and visiting site at Dabaco Group

On August 8th , 2024, DABACO Group coordinated with Vietcap to organize
a meeting with investors and visit some of Dabaco's production and business
facilities in Bac Ninh. The event was mainly held with the participation of
representatives of domestic and foreign professional investment funds interested
in the agricultural sector in general and Dabaco in particular.

SIGNING A STRATEGY COOPERATION AGREEMENT BETWEEN
DABACO AND THE UNIVERSITY OF SCIENCE - HANOI NATIONAL
UNIVERSITY

On the morning of November
26th , 2024, at the headquarters
of DABACO Group, the signing
ceremony of a comprehensive
strategic cooperation agreement
between DABACO Group and
the University of Science
(USSH) - Hanoi National
University  took  place at
Dabaco's headquarters, laying
the foundation for a deep,
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substantive, comprehensive cooperative relationship, promoting research
activities, applying science and technology into practice and training high-quality
human resources.

Accordingly, DABACO and
the University of Science will
coordinate to implement a series
of key activities based on the
strengths of both sides, focusing
on key areas, including:
research, development and
application of new technologies
and materials in production;
technology transfer in key areas
of the Group; construction of a Joint Labs system that meets international
standards to meet strict requirements in scientific research and testing. The two
sides will also cooperate closely in training, creating conditions for students to
access DABACO's modern
production practices, thereby
improving their knowledge
and skills; DABACO will
participate in contributing
ideas to build the training
program of the University of
Science to ensure it is close
to reality. At the same time,
sharing  information and
international cooperation
opportunities in  science,
technology and investment is also considered one of the strategic focuses. In
particular, DABACO and HUS will jointly promote communication activities,
develop brands, and increase the influence of both parties domestically and
internationally.

DABACO AND LABIOFAM SIGN A COOPERATION AGREEMENT -
A SYMBOL OF VIETNAM - CUBA FRIENDSHIP

December 2nd , 2024, at the headquarters of Dabaco Group, Dabaco and
Labiofam Entrepreneurial Group
officially signed a cooperation
agreement 1in the fields of
pharmaceuticals, vaccines and
biotechnology, in order to
effectively exploit the strengths of
both parties in research and
development activities of applied
science and technology in the
Vietnamese market.
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MINISTER OF AGRICULTURE OF CUBA AND WORKING
DELEGATION VISITED AND WORKED AT DABACO GROUP

In the morning of December 11" 2024, the working delegation led by the
Minister of Agriculture of Cuba - Mr. Ydael Jestis Pézez Brito paid a working
visit to Dabaco Group. The working delegation also comprised the Deputy
Minister of Foreign Trade and Foreign Investment, Ambassador, Minister
Counselor and members of the Ministry of Agriculture and the Embassy of Cuba
in Vietnam.
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3. INVESTMENT STATUS AND PROJECT
IMPLEMENTATION

2024 marked a period of strong growth for Dabaco Group when a series of
important projects are deployed on a large scale, applying modern technology and
having long-term strategic significance. Despite facing many challenges in the
context of economic fluctuations, Dabaco still maintains its sustainable
development orientation,
accelerates investment progress
and expands the production
activities, affirming its
pioneering position in the fields
of high-tech agriculture
according to the circular
production model.

The group has completed
and put into operation the
Dacovet vaccine factory according to GMP-WHO standards and successfully
researched the African swine fever vaccine Dacovac ASF - a vaccine considered
as the most difficult that no country in the world has successfully commercialized
up to now. The launch of Dacovet factory is an important piece to complete

Dabaco's 3F value chain. From now on, Dabaco will continue to expand research
and development of vaccines to proactively control epidemics, protect livestock
and poultry, and minimize risks and losses to the livestock industry.

Beside that, Dabaco focus on accelerate investment progress the Oil
Crushing Expansion Project Phase II with capacity 1,000 tons of soybean/day in
order to improve consume volumn, optimize the supply chain of raw materials
such as dried beans and soya
lecithin for feed mills. The H2
road project under the BT
form 1s also being
implemented to ensure
progress, quality and
efficiency.

Dabaco is also strongly
promoting  investment in
many provinces and cities
across the country, preparing
to deploy more high-tech
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agricultural projects, and logistics systems. These projects not only help expand
market share but also increase the value of the production chain, meeting the
increasing demand of the domestic and international markets.

With a strategic vision and strong determination, 2024 marked a period of

strong investment for Dabaco, creating a solid foundation for the Group to
continue to expand, affirming its pioneering role in the agricultural - food
industry and moving towards sustainable development, deeply integrating into the
regional and world economy.
In 2024, the Group completed the issuance of shares to existing shareholders and
the ESOP program with a total amount of VND 1,330 billion to finance the
Dabaco Soybean Oil Crushing and Refining plant Investment Project. Currently,
the project is being implemented on schedule, the Company uses the proceeds
from the offering/issuance as planned and disclosured the capital use progress
report as regulations.
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ABAGD DROUF

DABACO GROUP

FINANCIAL SITUATION

Total assets VND 13,011,704,.257.872  14,121,555,827,597 8.5
Net revenue VND 11,110,000,756,812  13,573,523,231,898 222
NEHopCrating YD) 77.721,029,178  835,764.450,626 975
profit

Other profit VND 20,028,182,174 18,484,095,578 7.7
Profit before tax VND 07749211352 854248546204  773.9
Profit after tax VND 25.007,194215  769,083,752.455 2,975

Dividend ratio

%

15% (estimated)

Total Assels
S 1N S S
{5 A7 jOA Ayl A B ELE. POl 3RT. AT
N0 S-S TNE 1
e 20210 In M [ R I AES in &
Net Profit After Tax

769.083. 752455

In 2022 In 2023 In 2024
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Indicators Unit 2023 2024 ‘
1. Liquidity Indicators

+ Current ratio time 0.99 1.22

+ Quick ratio time 0.22 0.36

2. Capital Structure Indicators

+ Debt/Total assets ratio time 0.64 0.52

+ Debt/Equity Ratio time 1.79 1.09

3. Operational Efficiency Indicators

+ Inventory turnover ratio time 1.87 2.11

+ Total asset turnover ratio time 0.86 1.00
4. Profitability Indicators

+ Net profit/Net revenue ratio % 0.23 5.67
+ Net profit/Equity ratio % 0.54 13.45
+ Net profit/Total assets ratio % 0.19 5.67
+ Operating profit/Net revenue ratio % 0.70 6.16

DABACO
SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE

594660145 Chater
Domastic sharehalders: 313,597,371
Foreign shareholdars: 21,071,774
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KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS

% Shareholder structure at the time of closing the shareholder list on March

14th, 2024:
I
No Type of shareholders Number of shares Ratio (%)
| Domestic shareholders 313,597,371 93.7
- Major shareholder
(Owning more than 5% of 79,966,120 23.89
shares)
- Institutional shareholder 3,077,975 0.92
- Individual shareholder 310,519,396 92.78
1I Foreign shareholder 21,071,774 6.3
- Major shareholder
(Owning more than 5% of 0 0
shares)
- Institutional shareholder 19,985,191 5.97
- Individual shareholder 1,086,583 0.32
Total: 334,669,145 100

CO CAU CO PONG DBC

® 6 dong lom oy, mede (idn 3% oo pldnd
Litrre domestic sharcholders (over 5" .'\l“_-ll.'Tihlpl

WL dong lom e g (e 5% co sk
Larpe toreipn shareholders (over 3% owmesship)

® O ddng nho brong aode (died 1% e0 phiing

Smnll domesti sharchoklers (less than 1% cwnership)

B L domg mho moeee ngoas (e §% co phaim)
Smnll foreiym shareholders {less thon 1% ownemship)

B dong troog meo s lim i 1% - 5% co phin
Dormestic shorelsolders with 1% to 5% ownership

& i dong nendss nggosst 37 him b 1% - 5% 0 phiin
Foreign shareholders with 1% o 5% ownership
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In the flow of global integration, DABACO Group has continuously
affirmed its pioneering role with the mission of sustainable development.
Throughout its journey of formation and development, DABACO has always
been deeply aware of its responsibility—not only to customers, shareholders and
laborers, but also to the environment, society and community. With the spirit of
innovation and strong commitment, DABACO has constantly created value,
harmonized corporate interests with common development, contributing to
building a prosperous and sustainable future.

The Group’s sustainable development orientation focuses on the following
contents:

Customers 2 Shareholders,

consumers Investors
]

" i1

=) Government = Community
== agency ==

= Partners
&

Employees

In the era of deep integration, when the world economy is constantly
innovating and moving, DABACO Group continues to affirm its leading position
in the field of high-tech agriculture and food. The 3F model (Feed - Farm - Food)
is not only an advanced development pattern, but also a direction for the success
of DABACO. With a harmonious combination of technological innovation,
operational optimization and sustainable development, the Group constantly
expands its scale of operations, improves product quality, actively contributes to
the development of Vietnamese agriculture, and also creates long-term value for
society and the community.

On the development journey, DABACO not only focuses on economic
growth but is also always aware of its responsibility in protecting the
environment, implementing social responsibility and aiming for sustainable
development. These core values are not only considered as operating principles
but also become a corporate culture, affirming DABACQO's reputation and
commitment to customers, partners and the whole society.
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Sustainable relationships with stakeholders:

DABACO identifies that sustainable development comes not only from
business efficiency but also from the balance between corporate benefits and
responsibility to the community. To realize this mission, the group constantly
invests in research, applies modern technology, improves product and service
quality, and maintains strong relationships with stakeholders.

< With customers, consumers:

Customers are the main concern of
Dabaco in all activities. The Group
is committed to providing high-

quality, absolutely safe products
that meet international standards.
With a modern production system,
applying advanced technology
from developed countries,
DABACO ensures that each
product delivered to consumers

meets the strictest standards of food safety and hygiene. The Group's research and
development (R&D) centers continuously innovate, improve nutritional formulas,
and enhance product quality to meet the increasingly diverse needs of the market.
In addition, DABACO focuses on building a widespread distribution system,
optimizing the supply chain and enhancing customer experience with dedicated,
professional care services, helping the brand dominate the domestic market and
gradually reach international levels.
s With shareholders and investors:

DABACO always maintains
transparency, honesty and timely
in information disclosure, helping
shareholders and investors have a Tl e
clear view of the financial
situation, development strategy
and growth potential of the group.
With a company management

platform according to international
standards, the group aims to
optimize profits, increase stock value and ensure sustainable development in the
long term. DABACO constantly expands investment activities, develops new
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projects with high profit potential, cooperates with large financial groups and
reputable investment funds to strengthen internal strength, creating a solid
foundation for strong growth in the future. In addition, DABACO also actively
organizes investor conferences and exchange programs to strengthen cohesion,

build trust and promote sustainable cooperation.
s With laborers:

Human
resources  are
the most
valuable asset
of DABACO.
The Group
always focuses
on building an
elite team of
laborers  with
deep
professional

capacity  and
passion for creativity. DABACO's human resource policy not only ensures full
benefits in terms of income, insurance, and welfare, but also creates maximum
conditions for each individual to develop their capacity and advance in their
career. The Group implements specialized training programs, cooperates with
leading educational
institutions to  update
knowledge and improve
skills for the staffs. In
addition, DABACO
creats a professional,
united working
environment, encourages
innovation and creativity,
helping laborers
maximize their potential.

Emulation movements,
extracurricular activities, and comprehensive welfare programs are organized
regularly to improve spiritual life, increase attachment and loyalty to the Group.
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DABACO promotes the spirit of cooperation for development, aiming to build
a sustainable business ecosystem and bring long-term value to stakeholders. The

Group maintains close relationships
with domestic and foreign partners,
expanding its strategic cooperation
network with leading enterprises in the
agricultural and food sector. With
transparency in  production and
business activities, DABACO is
committed to providing clear and
accurate information and maximum
support to partners to increase common
benefits. Moreover, the Group is

willing to work with partners to implement sustainable development initiatives,
aiming to protect the environment and enhance social responsibility in business

activities.

s With the government and state agencies:

With the spirit of respect for
the law, DABACO always fully
complies with the policies and
regulations of the State, strictly
fulfills its financial obligations and
actively contributes to the national
budget. The Group accompanies the
government  in  Socio-economic
development programs, supports
initiatives to improve people's lives,

LPINBEE B & ST e

LE TRAO TANG
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thereby promoting the overall development of the country. In addition, DABACO
also actively participates in conferences and forums on economic policies,
contributes ideas to build mechanisms for the development of the agricultural
sector, creating favorable conditions for the enterprises community to develop

together.
s With community:

As a pioneer in social
responsibility, DABACO constantly
strives to  contribute to the
development of the community. The
Group implements many charity
programs, supports  education,
healthcare, environmental protection,
and sustainable development. In
particular, DABACO focuses on
investing in vocational training,
creating jobs for rural workers,
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helping to improve the quality of life of the people. Scholarship sponsorship
programs, support for difficult circumstances, building schools and hospitals have
become an important part of the Group's development strategy. With a long-term
vision, DABACO continues to expand its community activities, creating a
prosperous, civilized and sustainable society.

6.1. Environmental impact:

As a business operating in the field of
Agriculture - Food, Dabaco is deeply aware
of its responsibility in reducing greenhouse
gas emissions, contributing to environmental
protection and sustainable development. In
2024, the group continued to implement
advanced measures to control and minimize
emissions from production, transportation and
energy consumption activities. Key solutions
include monitoring and periodic maintenance

of machinery, equipment and air conditioning
systems to optimize performance and save energy. Dabaco also promotes
monitoring and optimizing the use of electrical equipment and air conditioning
according to actual needs, establishing strict regulations on turning off
unnecessary equipment outside of working hours. In addition, the group
implements an internal communication program to raise awareness and
responsibility of all laborers in using energy efficiently, committing to building a
green, clean and sustainable working environment.

Hinh dnhk: Hé thong xir IV mwde thai cdng suat 30 m' ngay.dém rai 3 nha may thire dn
chdn nmudi KCN Khdc Niém
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6.2. Raw material management:

In 2024, Dabaco continued to
affirm its pioneering position in
ensuring raw material sources for
production, despite unpredictable
market fluctuations. The
purchasing department
proactively developed a flexible
strategy, ensuring adequate supply
while optimizing costs to increase
operational efficiency. n addition,
raw material storage was carried out strictly according to plan, helping businesses
maintain stable production and avoid risks of supply chain disruption. Not only
meeting the quantity, Dabaco was committed to selecting high-quality raw
materials that meet international
standards, ensuring maximum
safety and efficiency in production.
The company also actively
expanded its supplier system,
cooperating with reputable partners
to ensure stability and
sustainability for the raw material

supply chain.

Product quality continued to
be Dabaco's top priority in 2024. Not only strictly controlling self-produced raw
materials, the company also applies a set of strict evaluation standards for
imported raw materials. This process was implemented and monitored by the
Quality Management Department at factories and member units, ensuring that all
products reaching consumers meet the highest standards. In addition, Dabaco
constantly innovated technology
and invested in  modern
production systems to maintain
superior quality. The application
of international standards in

production helps Dabaco not
only meet but also surpass the
strict  requirements of  the
domestic  and  international
markets.
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6.3. Energy and water consumption:

Dabaco identifies that the rational
and efficient use of energy resources is a
key factor in its sustainable development
strategy. In 2024, the Group promoted
green initiatives to optimize energy and
water consumption, minimizing
environmental impacts. Important
measures include the application of
energy-saving technology by using
automatic monitoring systems to monitor
and adjust electricity and water

consumption at factories, helping to

minimize waste and save operating costs. At the same time, Dabaco invested in

renewable energy, promoted research and implementation of rooftop solar power

projects at factories and farms, aiming to reduce carbon emissions. The Company

also applies advanced

wastewater treatment
technology, reusing water in
production to reduce pressure
on water resources. In
addition, Dabaco builds a
culture of energy saving and
environmental protection
among all laborers, turning

each individual into an

ambassador of sustainable development.

6.4. Compliance with environmental protection laws:

In order to ensuring good
performance in production and
business activities, the Group
also pays attention to
environmental protection and
social security issues; always
strictly follow up the regulation
on evironmental protection;

actively deployes the
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synchnoruos solution and management method of evironmental protection
widespread to unit members; invest into the sewage treatment and air treatment at
all unit members; periodicly make environmental impact report to government
authority; apply to gain evironmental release permit before offical operation;
supervise and testing the creteria that was required by national standard.

Moreover, the Group focuses on =
investing in upgrading infrastructure,
building new production facilities and

livestock farms; Pioneer in research and

application of science and technology;
invest in new, modern and advanced
technology, optimize production lines to
control, limit and reduce negative
impacts on the environment, and protect
the environment in a sustainable way.

o roranima st proucion: L A
- Due to the nature of the factory's

production, after the working day, the workshop manager checks and reminds
workers to clean the working area. Periodically, do a general cleaning inside and
outside the factory weekly.

- Every year, the Group

' launches a movement to plant
trees around the factory, both
to increase the aesthetics and

to green and clean the
“ ; i1 ] environment. Using industrial

tap water systems and reserve

tanks ensures sufficient clean

water supply for production

— ____A and daily life. Rainwater and

wastewater drainage systems

are built and installed separately, with concrete bottoms and covered with

concrete panels. Periodically clean and clear the sewers to ensure drainage of the
feed mills.

- Apply many methods to minimize the impact of noise and dust pollution on

the surrounding area, protecting the health of workers directly involved in
production.
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- The feed mills's production
line technology process is
assessed to have no impact on the
environment, noise and dust
concentration are within allowable

limits, ensuring current
Vietnamese standards and
regulations.

% For livestock and poultry

breeding production units:

- Livestock  wastewater
treatment to meet current standards before being discharge into the environment
by investing in the construction of a complete biogas system, a wastewater
treatment system using biological and physical-chemical methods for livestock
units. After treatment,
the wastewater can be
completely used for
irrigation purposes.

Units regularly
plant trees around the
livestock area,
implement  veterinary
and biosafety measures,

clean inside and outside
the unit....

- Invest in the construction of a waste treatment system with modern
treatment technology imported from Japan, including a wastewater treatment
system, manure press, sludge
press, and equipment for treating
livestock and poultry carcasses,
ensuring that the impacts on the
environment are  completely
resolved, while creating a source
of raw materials for the
production of organic fertilizers
to meet the needs of the crop

production industry.
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% For production and business units in other fields:

The member units always strictly comply with environmental protection
regulations. In addition, the Group actively participates in World Environment
Day and the National Environment Week every year through various activities
such as: organizing awareness campaigns by displaying banners at the workplace;
organizing youth groups from affiliated branches to participate in environmental
activities such as tree planting, cleaning up the surrounding living environment,
etc.; actively contributing to the "National Movement for Building New Rural
Areas."....

Thanks to the good implementation of environmental protection activities,
over the years, the Group has been assessed by the Department of Natural
Resources and Environment of Bac Ninh as a leading unit, always complying
well and not violating the law on environmental protection throughout the
production and business activities.

6.5. Laborer-related policies:

a) Laborer income:

2024 marked a major

g step forward in DABACO's
: laborer compensation policy,

——n

_ [[{][ ‘\I{",[-l demonstrating the
SHEn B ’ « g QL. 8 Company's deep
n R commitment to its human
!r - . - . resources - its most valuable
| J asset. This year, although the

livestock industry still faces
many challenges, DABACO
has proactively implemented many practical measures to improve the material

and spiritual life of laborers, far exceeding the efforts of 2023.

The most prominent point is the comprehensive salary increase policy,
ensuring that laborers' income is not only stable but also significantly improved
compared to the previous year. In addition, DABACO significantly expands its
insurance packages, not only stopping at compulsory health and social insurance,
but also adding voluntary health and occupational accident insurance programs
with higher payout levels, helping laborers feel more secure against risks in life.
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The company also pays special attention to social welfare, implementing
many practical programs such as: strengthening activities to care for cultural and
spiritual life, supporting housing for workers, providing emergency hardship
allowances, and investing in training programs to improve professional skills.
These actions are not only financial support but also demonstrate DABACO's
deep concern for the v . r
overall  life  of ' e
workers, from work
to family and future.

As a result, in
2024, DABACO not
only continued to
maintain the rate of
100% of laborers
signing employment

contracts and
complying with regulations on probationary periods, but also create an ideal
working environment, where laborers feel respected, invested in and have the
opportunity to develop themselves. These efforts have further strengthened the
motivation for laborers to stay with the Company for a long time, creating a solid
foundation for the sustainable development of DABACO in the future.

b) Labor policies to ensure the health, safety and welfare of laborers:

- Comply with the provisions of labor laws and labor regulations, collective
labor agreements on working hours and rest hours; 8-hour working day; breaks
between shifts, holidays, day leaves, etc ...

- Organize free
shift meals for all
laborers  to  ensure
cleanliness, nutrition |,
freshness and  food
safety and hygiene.

- Implement well
policies for laborers
such as visiting, paying
sick leave, maternity

leave, etc. Implement
well the social

DABACO.COM.VN | 86



ANNUAL REPORT 2024 Q DABACO GROUP

insurance, health insurance, unemployment insurance, and personal insurance for
laborers in accordance with the State's policies; do well the work of industrial life
insurance, labor protection and hygiene, sign and organize periodic health check-
ups for laborers...

- Visits to laborers who are sick, maternity, on their birthdays, griving on
their parents and parents in law funerals, and celebrating on wedding of laborers;
Giving gifts to female laborers on the occasion of March 8; giving gifts to
children of laborers with good academic achievements, International Children's
Day and Mid-Autumn Festival......

- Always create conditions for laborers to participate on issues related to the
rights and welfare of laborers such
as salary policies, labor regulations,
fire prevention and fighting
regulations, and regulations on
entering and leaving the company.

- Always pay attention to the
quality of the work of building and
signing collective labor agreements
with preferential policies to attract

talents and highly skilled workers,
creating a bond between laborers
and the enterprise. Maintain the signing of collective labor agreements, regularly
supplement and amend them to comply with the new policies of the State related
to the rights and welfare of laborers.

¢) Laborer training
activities:

- For direct workers:
Conduct  on-site  training,
ensuring that workers have
proficient skills in their
assigned positions.

- For market staff and
laborers: Provide professional
training, on-farm experimental
training, sales skills, soft skills,
etc.; Coordinate with the company's partners to organize technical training
sessions to improve sales skills and veterinary qualifications for market staff and
laborers.

- For management and technical staff: Regularly sent for training at training
facilities and large corporations in and outside the country.
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- For other subjects, depending on the specific nature of the work, the
company organizes training courses at the unit or sends staff to study such as:
production management, warehouse, electromechanical, cost management,
materials, accounting, sales, etc...

- In addition, the Group also hires foreign experts to train professional
knowledge for laborers.

6.6. Corporate responsibility toward the local community:

Over the past year, the
company has always been proactive
and active in fulfilling its
responsibility towards the local
community through programs such
as: mobilizing all laborers to
participate in supporting the "union
shelter fund", "support fund for the
poor family" of the locality;
Coordinating with the locality to
carry out the work of encouraging and supporting policy families, families with
revolutionary contributions; supporting products for livestock farmers in poor

areas...

The actual results of the activities show that supporting the community is not
only a spiritual link between the manufacturer and the customers, but it also
brings significant economic benefits due to trust in the products and reputation of
the Group, increasing the connection between the Group and the locality.
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IT1. REPORT OF EVALUATION OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

1. Evaluation of production and business performance

The year 2024
marked a challenging
period but also opens
up a period of brilliant
development for the
Group. In the face of
strong fluctuations in
the global economy,
the decline of many
export markets and
especially the natural
disaster of storm Yagi
which seriously
affected the supply
chain, the Group not
only stay stable but
also rose strongly,
affirming its leading

position in the
agricultural and food
industry.

With a

comprehensive strategy of upgrading 3F Value chain, focusing on technological
innovation and expanding international cooperation, the Group has made great
strides, achieving proud achievements. This is not only a year of flexible
adaptation but also a year of breakthroughs, when the Group continuously sets
important milestones, affirming the brand in internal market with over 100
millions people and transboundering to the international market.

Outstanding progress in 2024:

- (1) Expanding strategic cooperation: The Group has signed many important
agreements with strategic partners from Europe, the US and Asia, contributing to
enhancing its position on the international agricultural map. Cooperation with the
world's leading corporations not only helps improve product quality but also

DABACO.COM.VN | 89



ANNUAL REPORT 2024 Q DABACO GROUP

creates opportunities to access the most advanced technologies, promoting digital
transformation in production and management.

- (2) Developing a large-
scale super-productive pig
herd: In order to improve
competitiveness and meet
increasingly stringent
market demands, the Group
has invested heavily in
expanding its high-quality
pig herd, applying modern
genetic  technology  to
create superior generations of breeds, helping the domestic livestock industry
reach international standards.

- (3)Breakthrough in product research and development: 2024 witnessed the
launch of many breakthrough products, including high-quality nutritional cooking
oil with optimal micronutrient supplementation formula, Cage-Free chicken eggs,
Mia No. 1 chicken breed, new generation Ngu Sac chicken - a turning point in the
free-range chicken farming industry, especially completing the research and
development of the Dacovac ASF 2 African swine fever vaccine after a long
period of research and development. Trade promotion activities continue to be
promoted, helping the Group expand its market to potential countries such as the
Philippines, Singapore, Indonesia and the UAE.

- (4) Comprehensive restructuring to optimize efficiency: The Group continues
to take strategic steps to streamline its apparatus, improve labor productivity and
optimize operating costs. Member units are restructured to become more
professional and flexible, ensuring maximum production and business efficiency
in an increasingly competitive market.
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- (5) Upgrading the quality control system:
By applying traceability technology and
automating the inspection process, the Group
has enhanced its ability to control the quality of
input materials, ensuring products meet the
highest standards at competitive prices. The
standardization system of additives in animal
feed has also been upgraded, helping to
optimize nutritional formulas and increase
livestock farming efficiency.

- (6) Applying science and technology to
production: In the past year, the Group has
successfully conducted 20 in-depth nutritional

trials on livestock (10 trials on pigs and 10 trials on chickens), bringing many
breakthrough results such as improving meat quality, enhancing the natural

immunity of livestock and optimizing feed costs without using antibiotics.

- (7) Promoting training and developing high-quality human resources: The
Group has organized a series of international training programs for senior
management and technicians, including courses on strategic management,
biosafety, advanced livestock technology and leadership skills. Experts from
Germany, the Netherlands and Japan have directly taught, helping to improve the
professional qualifications and practical skills of the staff.
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2. Financial situation
a. Asset situation
The total assets of the company as of December 31, 2024 are VND 14,121

billion, an increase of 8.5% compared to 2023. The Group's asset structure is
inclined towards short-term assets, long-term assets account for 44.5% of total
assets, short-term assets accounted for 55.5% of total assets in 2024. The
company's asset structure has a reasonable balance between short-term and long-
term assets. The company is maintaining a high ratio of short-term assets,
ensuring solvency and effective operation in the short term, while also investing
sufficiently in long-term assets to ensure long-term and sustainable development.

b. Liabilities situation

By the end of 2024, the company's total debt was VND 7,355 billion, down
11.8% compared to 2023. This significant reduction was mainly due to the
reduction of short-term debt, reflecting the company's active efforts in debt
control to help reduce financial pressure and limit risks in the context of many
market fluctuations.

In addition, the debt structure is still mainly focused on loans and payables to
sellers; in line with the business model and operating characteristics of the
Company. This shows that the company maintains a good credit rating with credit
and trade partners.

Maintaining a reasonable debt ratio, combined with stable growth of assets,
affirms the company's effective financial management capacity and strengthens
confidence in the ability to develop sustainably in the future.
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3. Improvement of structure, policy and management
2024 marked a period of strong

transformation in the Company's
governance and operations, with
extensive improvements in
organizational structure, policies
and management processes to
improve operational efficiency,
optimize resources and increase
competitiveness. The Company has
reviewed, revised and supplemented
a number of important processes to
adapt to changes in the legal environment and economic context, including:

- Revising and supplementing regulations on the assignment of tasks of the
Board of Directors, helping to improve coordination, respond quickly to market
fluctuations and maximize development opportunities.

- Standardizing the process of using feed for sows and pigs, ensuring optimal
livestock quality and production efficiency.

- Establishing specialized working groups to support units in implementing
practical solutions to achieve the set production and business goals.

- Synchronously deploying management solutions, optimizing production
costs; invest in science and technology, digital transformation; train to improve
the quality of human resources to master new technology, modern technology and
effectively apply it to production and business activities. The Group currently has
8 livestock and poultry farming units that have been granted the Certificate of
High-Tech Agricultural Enterprise.

These improvements not only improve management capacity but also lay a
solid foundation for sustainable development, helping the Company stand firm in
the face of challenges and be ready to break through in the coming period.
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4. Business production plan in 2025

Entering 2025, the global economy continues to face many complex
fluctuations, from inflationary pressure to monetary policy adjustments by central
banks. In that context, Vietnam still maintains its growth rate but also faces
internal challenges and impacts from external factors. The Board of Directors
clearly defines the core strategy: leveraging internal strengths, maximizing the

Dién bién gia heo hoi tir d5u ndm 2024 dén ngay 21/2/2025 advantages of the closed value
(o vi; nghin donafia) chain 3F (Feed - Farm - Food) -

Farm to Fork and expanding the
business sector in a modern and
sustainable direction.

With a vision to 2030, the
Company is committed to
continuing to consolidate its

" leading position in the industry,

focusing on  breakthrough

.!1...1.:11-:1 3/2024 5/3024 7/024 89/0234 11/2024 12015 solutions to Optimize operational

efficiency and increase brand
value. The Company will accelerate investment and put into operation strategic
projects, especially focusing on strongly developing value-added food products
such as green-shelled chicken eggs, instant chicken eggs, cooking oil and
processed meat products. At the same time, the Company will promote the
consumption of ASF vaccines in the market immediately after receiving the
vaccine circulation certificate, creating a breakthrough in the field of disease
prevention. In addition, the Company will tighten biosafety procedures in
livestock  farming by strictly
implementing  vaccination  and
epidemic prevention procedures to
protect the health of livestock and
poultry, as well as strengthen
supervision and improve production
processes to limit risks, improve
productivity and product quality.

To optimize costs, increase
productivity and production
efficiency, the Company will review
cost norms, thoroughly save and reduce losses, and apply technology to improve
productivity, reduce costs, and ensure products are highly competitive in the
market. The Company will also maximize the advantages of the 3F value chain,
effectively connecting departments in the production chain from animal feed,
farms to processed food products, while expanding the distribution system and
optimizing the supply chain to improve production efficiency and product
commercialization.

In the process of digital transformation and expanding customer access
channels, the Company will apply digital technology to management and
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business, strengthen customer access strategies through multiple channels, take
advantage of e-commerce and digital marketing platforms to maximize revenue
and enhance brand recognition.

The Company will also manage financial risks and optimize cash flow by
maintaining a safe threshold in financial operations, minimizing exchange rate
risks, closely managing inventories and closely monitoring raw material market
developments to have appropriate regulatory policies. To ensure success in the
new period, the Company will focus on developing elite human resources,
improving leadership capacity by streamlining the apparatus, improving the
quality of human resources, building a strong management team, empowering
initiative and encouraging innovation. The Company will also attract talent,
ensuring competitive remuneration policies to retain good laborers, contributing
to sustainable development.

The Company is committed to strictly complying with State regulations and
sustainable development strategies (ESG) through savings programs, anti-waste,
financial transparency, and at the same time committing to green development,
fulfilling social responsibilities, ensuring harmonious interests between the
Company, laborers, shareholders and the community. With large-scale strategies
and plans, 2025 promises to be a pivotal year to bring the Company to a new
level, affirming its solid position in the industry, enhancing brand value and
creating a foundation for sustainable development for the future.

* Some key production and business plan indicators for 2025

ML FaLFE L LETER TAA

1.007 billion VND

\CCELERATE THE PROGRESS OF EEY PROTECTS
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* Growth target to 2030
Strive for revenue (including internal consumption) to grow 1.5 times
compared to 2024, equivalent to VND 38-40,000 billion by 2030 and pre-tax
profit to grow at an average of at least 7%/year in the period 2026-2030
* Gidi phdp chii yéu Tap doan dé ra nham thwe hién nhiém vu, ké hoach dé
ra nhw sau:
Accelerate investment progress and put into operation projects in core areas

such as the expanded Oil Crushing plant, vaccine plant, livestock areas; develop
high value-added food product lines such as green-shelled chicken eggs, instant
chicken eggs, cooking oil, and processed meat products

a1

- - Review and strictly implement the

[
] | Biosafety livestock farming processes,

vaccine  processes, and  disease

prevention and hygiene to ensure

absolute safety for livestock and

poultry.

\ - Strictly and better implement the
issued indicators according to the
standard framework; Review and

optimize costs; save thoroughly; improve productivity, reduce loss, and lower
production costs.

- Effectively exploit the advantages of the product set in the Group's 3F closed
value chain, take advantage of opportunities, support each other in production,
supply and consumption activities to increase product value and develop Dabaco's
brand in the market.

- Strengthen the application of digital technology, multi-channel strategy in
product access, goods consumption to promptly meet market demand.

- Strengthen research and development (R&D) activities to create livestock and
poultry breeds, new products with high superiority, economic value and brand
enhancement, master the entire production and business chain and in each
specific field, in line with the Group's
strategic orientation.

- Update fluctuations in the
domestic and international situation,

have policies to manage safe debt
thresholds, minimize risks of
exchange rate fluctuations, and
effective cash  flow. Manage
inventory well, closely monitor raw
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material price movements, have reasonable and optimal regulation policies.

- Improve the management and governance capacity of the leadership team;
focus on training and developing lean, high-quality human resources; boldly
delegate authority, build a team of laborers who dare to think and know how to
do; attract talent, provide appropriate compensation, motivate laborers to improve
their capacity and skills, overcome their own limits to contribute to their work.

5. Environmental and social responsibilities of the company

a. Evualuate related to environmental indicators

The Group always complies with the provisions of the law on environmental
protection; implements environmental protection measures well, continuously
researches, improves, and applies high technology to production, contributing to
better environmental protection.

The Group's specialized staff regularly monitors and performs the following
tasks well:

- Prepare annual environmental protection reports to the Department of Natural
Resources and Environment according to regulations.

- Measure and prepare periodic environmental monitoring reports according to
the program and submit reports to the provincial Department of Natural
Resources and Environment according to regulations, declare and pay periodic
discharge fees (every 3 months).

- Daily operation, monitoring of environmental treatment systems (wastewater
treatment system, odor treatment system, exhaust gas treatment system...),
recording full daily operation logs, troubleshooting when incidents occur and
periodically performing maintenance every 6 months. Periodically performing
dredging of rainwater and
wastewater drainage pipes every 6
months; Signing contracts for
transferring domestic and industrial
solid waste, hazardous waste;
Clearly confirming the volume by
transfer minutes and archiving
records and documents for
inspection.

- Raising  awareness  of
environmental protection through
practical actions, calling on all
laborers to litter and collect waste
according to regulations.

b. Evaluate related to labor issues

The Group always implements well and fully policies related to laborers:
Salary, bonus, welfare and laborer policies (working time, rest time, health
insurance, social insurance, etc.) comply with the regulations of the State and the
Labor Code. In addition, the Group has its own mechanisms to ensure social
security for all laborers to motivate, encourage, and create the most favorable
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working environment for laborers to
feel secure in their work and stay
with the Company for a long time.

The Group always focuses on
policies on recruitment, training and
human resource development. When
deemed necessary, the Group
invites foreign experts to train
laborers. In 2024, the Group
organized 29 training courses taught
by external experts.

c. Corporate responsibility towards the local community

On the journey of construction and development, in addition to its
contributions to the stability and economic development of the country,
DABACO Group, with the cooperation of its laborers, has taken specific actions
and annual activities demonstrating a sense of responsibility in maintaining and
implementing well social security programs and community responsibility.

Along with production and business activities, Dabaco is always active and
proactive in implementing social security activities, contributing to taking care of
the lives of workers and people in difficult circumstances, especially in remote,
rural areas and localities where Dabaco is present. On the occasion of the
traditional New Year every year, Dabaco and its member units and the staff
regularly organize and coordinate programs to show gratitude, support people
with meritorious services, care for, visit, and give gifts to people with meritorious
services to the revolution, sponsor activities to help poor children, children in
especially difficult circumstances, etc., promoting the tradition of mutual love and
support, contributing to improving the quality of life for the people.

PROGRAM “TET UNION - SPRING SHARING 2024”

On February 1, 2024, Mr. Nguyen Khac Thao - General Director of Dabaco
Group represented to visit and present 100 gifts to policy families and households
in difficult circumstances in Lac Ve commune, Tien Du district, Bac Ninh
province. This
meaningful activity is
part of the program of
2,500 gifts on the
occasion of “Tet Union
— Spring Sharing 2024”
of Dabaco Group on the

occasion of Spring Giap
Thin 2024 with the
wish that everyone will
have Tet.
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ASPIRATION TO SET SAIL — LEADING THE VAST SEAS THROUGH
THE 2024 YOUNG LEADERS’ VOYAGE

Following the success of the Leader Summer Camp 2023, in 2024, the 2nd
Leader Summer Camp took place for 5 days and 4 nights (from July 31 to August
4) with the
participation of 55
students who are s - !
outstanding students R0 UAN T BRRAED | .

-
-

of VNU. After a .-:_"-n—m-_.'um... =

period of o=
conc.e.ntra.tlon an'd _fg

partlc1pat'1ng n pr e } ¥ gl
extracurricular J N
activities in Ba Vi, @ "] Ty . -

the students had a § Hl '
field trip to :
DABACO Group in Bac Ninh.
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-

Dabaco Group is a unit that
always accompanies and
supports the Leadership
Summer Camp Program of
VNU - a top educational
institution in Vietnam, VNU
always strives to promote core
values, focusing on in-depth
training 1in Dbasic scientific
knowledge, while combining capacity building, basic knowledge of life skills and
social skills. Thanks to the companionship and support of domestic and foreign
enterprises, including
DABACO Group, VNU is
gradually developing,
combining  learning  with
practice, helping students have
the opportunity to exchange,
intern and practice work right
from when they are still in the

university.
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DDABACO GROUP AND TIEN PHONG NEWSPAPER PRESENTED
GIFT SETS TO PEOPLE AFECTED BY FLOOD IN CHUONG MY.

On August 9th, The delegation of Dabaco Group in coordination with Tien
Phong Newspaper, organized a visit to encourage and presented gift sets to people
severely affected by the heavy rains and floods in three communes of Chuong My
district, including: Hoang Van Thu, Nam Phuong Tien, and Tan Tien.

In Hoang Van Thu commune, the delegation presented 50 boxes of instant eggs
and donated 5 gift sets
in cash to households

n difficult
circumstances.

In Tan Tien
commune, the

delegation donated 47
boxes of instant eggs
and 5 cash gift sets to
households in difficult

circumstances. In
Nam Phuong Tien
commune, the

delegation presented
70 boxes of instant
eggs and donated 5
gift sets in cash to households in difficult circumstances, as well as 30 boxes of
instant eggs and 500 fresh eggs to the Nam Phuong Tien kindergarten.

In total, the delegation presented total of 6,000 instant eggs, 500 fresh eggs,
and 15 gift sets in cash, with a total value of approximately 50 million VND.

With the spirit of mutual support, “the good leaves protect tattered ones” the
Group decided to appropriate

funds to assist households in
difficult circumstances due to
the floods in Chuong My.
These small gift  sets,
represent the heartfelt support
of the Group's staff, laborers,
and workers, aiming to help
the flood-affected people
overcome their challenges and
stabilize their lives.
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DABACO GROUP SUPPORT PEOPLE TO OVERCOME DAMAGE
CAUSED BY YAGI STORM (NO. 3)

Faced with the serious consequences caused by storm No. 3 in Bac Ninh
province, in addition to the programs implemented by the Group, and at the same
time responding to the Launch of the Vietnam Fatherland Front Committee of
Bac Ninh province, on
01 AR WA TIA T N WY A TN A i the morning of

PHAT PONG September 11, 2024,
D ) ERE TUACH I THRLT iA0 DO EAL M 3 G Lk Dabaco Group, in the
spirit of  "mutual
support," donated 100
million VND and is
donating many more
essential  items  to
support  people  to
overcome this difficult

period.

SHARING LOVE TO FILL THE GRIEF OF THE NU VILLAGE

On  September 14, a
volunteer group from Tien
Phong newspaper, on behalf of
benefactors, donated 500
million VND in support to the
family with died victims of
YAGI storm in Lao Cai
province and went to Nu village
in Bao Yen district to share the
grief of the people there.

Mr.  Nguyen Ngoc Duc,
representative of Dabaco Group, presented 2,000 instant eggs (equivalent to 400
bags), 200 liters of cooking oil, 500 pork stew cans and donate 19.5 million VND
to the people here.

EACH LABORER DONATES 1 DAY’S WAGE; ACTIVELY
IMPLEMENTS A SERIES OF ACTIVITIES TO SUPPORT PEOPLE
AFFECTED BY STORM NO. 3

On the morning of September 16, 2024, the Group's Leaders held a meeting to
review and evaluate the prevention of Yagi storm (No. 3) - the strongest storm in
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decades and the situation of responding to widespread flooding in many northern
provinces.

Mr. Nguyen Nhu So - Chairman of the Board of Directors highly appreciated
the sense of responsibility, efforts and flexibility of the Group's Executive Board
and the Managers of member units, especially the laborers and workers directly at
the units, in the preparation, scenario building, human and material resource
arrangement, adequate
equipment and timely action to
respond to the wunfavorable,
complicated and unpredictable
developments of the weather
situation. Thanks to that effort,
all Feed Mills, Pig and Chicken
Breeding  Companies  and
member units of the Group
were safe through the storm and in flash flood area, without any direct damage to
property and people; all production and business activities basically took place
normally during and after the storm and flood.

As an agricultural enterprise,
the Group's leaders understand,
sympathize, grieve, and share the
serious impacts and losses of our
people, especially farmers -
whose pigs, chickens, and fish
are their livelihoods and their
entire fortunes, all of which were
wiped out in a flash by storms
and floods. Therefore, beside to
responding to the call of the
Central Committee of the Fatherland Front, the Group has mobilized its dozen of
thousands of laborers and workers to donate at least 1 day's wage to support and
donate to those affected by Yagi storm and the floods after the storm, in order to
share with those in difficult circumstances, contributing to spreading the spirit of

solidarity and mutual love throughout society.

On September 13, 2024, the Pioneer Team to help people severely affected by
Storm No. 3 and the floods after the storm was also established to directly
participate in the distribution of denoted goods in heavily affected areas in Lao
Cai, Tuyen Quang, Phu Tho provinces..., especially in Nu village, Bao Yen
district, Lao Cai province; coordinate with local authorities and functional forces
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in aid work and overcoming the consequences of natural disasters. The Team
donated cash and provide timely essential products of the Group including:
10,000 Devi instant eggs, 1,000 liters of Coba cooking oil, and 3,500 stew pork
cans to provide essential necessities for people in storm and flood areas. These
are important food sources, helping people overcome difficulties and stabilize
their lives in the emergency period.

Dabaco Group hopes
that all people affected by
storms and floods,
especially farmers,
livestock breeders, and
people working in related
services will soon
overcome the
consequences, restore the
economy and return to
normal life. Dabaco is
committed to always being a trusted companion, supporting and sharing
difficulties with people in all circumstances, especially in the reconstruction of
people's lives after storms and floods.

DABACO HAI PHONG BREEDING PIG COMPANY LIMITED
SHARES DIFFICULTIES OF PEOPLE AFTER THE STORM.

Although affected by the storm, Dabaco Hai Phong Breeding Pig Company
Limited (Dabaco Group), presented 32 gift sets, equivalent to 3 million VND/set
to households in difficult circumstances, severely affected by storm No. 3 in Luu
Kien commune and Luu Ky commune, Thuy Nguyen district..

the Company also presented 30 more gift sets of similar value to the company's
officers and laborers and
some other households in
Thuy Nguyen district with
similar circumstances to
share and encourage each
other in the spirit of
"mutual love and support",
helping each other to
overcome difficulties and
stabilize their lives soon.
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DABACO PIONEERS IN SUPPORTING PEOPLE TO RESTORE
LIVESTOCKS AND AQUACULTURE PRODUCTION AFTER THE
STORM AND FLOOD WITH PRACTICAL PRODUCTS.

Agriculture is the sector that has suffered the most damage from storm No. 3
and the floods after the storm. Responding to the call of the Ministry of
Agriculture and Rural Development for coordination in supporting the recovery
of livestock and aquaculture production after storm No. 3, Dabaco pioneered in
supporting a number of
essential products including
20,000 colored chicken breeds
and 5,000 kg of animal feed to
help people restore production
and create livelihoods.

Dabaco always hopes that
even small actions, products
of small value but essential
and meaningful will warm the
hearts of people in difficult

and deprived circumstances, true to its commitment to always accompany farmers
and people in every step of its journey.
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IV. EVALUATION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON THE
COMPANY’S ACTIVITIES

1. Evaluation of Board of Directors on the company’s acctivities:

Implementing the Resolution of all Shareholders, the Board of Directors and
the Board of Managershave strongly, synchronously and resolutely deployed
solutions to implement the 2024 production and business plan. With tireless
efforts, closely following the set goals and strategies, the Board of Directors and
the Executive Board have organized and operated the production and business
activities of the units in a flexible, creative and completely suitable manner to the
actual situation, making the most of opportunities for development.

In 2024, the business situation of the Group and its member units underwent a
strong and breakthrough transformation. Despite facing challenges from external
factors, with the right strategy and determination of all staff, Dabaco has achieved
extremely impressive results, far exceeding expectations. Other financial and
operational indicators have made significant progress, affirming the Group's
remarkable development and flexible adaptability in the new context. 2024 has
truly been a year of strong breakthrough, marking an important milestone in the
Group's development journey.
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- Equity as of December 31, 2024: VND 6,766 billion, up 45% compared to
2023.

Total assets of the Group as of December 31, 2024: VND 14,122 billion,
increasing 8.5% compared to 2023, of which: short-term assets: VND 7,838
billion, increasing 10.4% compared to 2023 and long-term assets VND 6,283
billion, decreasing 6.3% compared to 2023.

- Total short-term and long-term debt as of December 31, 2024: VND 7,355
billion, decreasing 11.8% compared to 2023.

- Consolidated revenue (including internal consumption): VND 24,264 billion,
reaching 96 % of the plan.
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- Consolidated profit after tax:
VND 769 billion 105% of the plan.

- In 2024, the Group actively . - - ;qﬁ L
deployed and invest in completing - = 8= o
unfinished projects and speed up the i =t & e 154
progress of approved projects such as: E SF= e B *a

H2 Road Project under BT form and

reciprocal projects; Oil Crushing Plant

Expansion Project Phase II at Tan Chi

Industrial Cluster, Tien Du District, Bac Ninh Province; Vaccine Factory
Project...

- Completed construction of Dacovet vaccine factory which was granted GMP-
WHO certificate and granted license for commercial circulation of ASF vaccine

- Expand cooperation and learning to improve technical qualifications through
visits and work with domestic and foreign delegations.

- Increase the scale of high-quality grandparent pigs, aiming to bring to the
market high-yield piglets, serving domestic Breeding Pig production to meet the
goal of sustainable development.

- Research, crossbred and develop new breeders such as: No. 1 Mia chicken Ho
Chicken, Blue egg laying chicken and high quality pigs as: DUDA S400 boar,
DUDA S500 boar; GenMax swine; indigenous IMUDO pig, indigenous Lung Pu
black pig, Huong pig, I pig....

- The Party's policies and regulations of the law are all well implemented by
the Company.

- Organize stable production and business, ensure jobs, policies and income for
workers.

- Maintain and expand social activities, for the community, promptly join
hands with the country and the Vietnamese people to overcome difficulties.

- Synchronously deploy management solutions, optimize production costs;
invest in science and technology; train to improve the quality of human resources,
firmly pursue the goal of green growth and sustainable development.

- Recognizing that environmental protection is an important task in the
operation of the enterprise, all production plants and livestock units of the
company are invested in modern environmental treatment systems, strictly
complying with environmental standards according to current regulations. The
company always ensures that business development is closely linked to ensuring
environmental protection requirements. The company has properly implemented
the policies and laws of the State, actively protected the environment, and
fulfilled its social responsibilities to the local community.
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2. Evaluation of the Board of Directors on the performance of the Board of
Managers

- Regarding the supervision and operation activities:

+ The Board of Directors
assesses that the Chairman of F&=
the Board of Directors and the =
Board of Managers have
managed the production and
business process of the
company in line with the FE=& & i
orientation targets of the Tt '- &
Board of Directors' [#s4); ¥ Y ;, ;",}‘ |
Resolution, in compliance ™ %% TV BG TR
with the regulations of the i =
company and the law.

+ Directing the strict implementation of the Board of Directors' decisions and
effectively implementing the key solutions approved by the Board of Directors.

+ During the operation process, the executive board has complied with the
management hierarchy in the Charter, the Management Regulations, the internal
regulations of the Group as well as the decisions of the Board of Directors.

- Regarding the organizational structure:

The total number of members of the Board of Managers currently consists of 9
people: 1 General Director and 8 Deputy General Directors. The Board of
Managers has issued regulations assigning specific tasks to each member of the
Board, in order to promote the capacity and experience of each member in the
assigned fields. In February 2024, the Group dismissed 01 Deputy General
Director at her personal request.
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3. Plans and orientations of the Board of Director

In 2025, the market is forecast to be unpredictable, the world economy
continues to face many challenges, and is difficult to predict with unstable factors
such as geopolitical tensions in many regions of the world, domestic enterprises
face many difficulties such as high prices of many goods, input materials, energy
prices, production and transportation costs, and complicated developments of
livestock and poultry diseases. African swine fever re-emerges in many provinces
and cities across the country, seriously affecting the organization of herd
restoration.

In this context, the Board of Directors identifies and directs the Executive
Board to firmly implement the strategic goals of: Focusing resources; actively
research and apply solutions to develop core agricultural and food sectors to
upgrade the 3F closed value chain (Feed - Farm — Food & Future); take
advantage of opportunities from other business sectors to improve
production and business
efficiency, ensuring the goal of
green growth and sustainable
development.

In 2025, the Board of Directors
will continue to maintain the
regular quarterly meeting regime
as prescribed to implement the
resolutions of the 2025 Annual
General Meeting, carry out
company management and direct
the implementation of key tasks in
2025 at the Group. The Board of
Directors will continue to promote
the role of its members to consult
the Board of Directors on senior
personnel, business strategy and
investment activities; promote inspection and supervision through internal audit,
risk management and compliance to improve business performance and preserve
capital.

Continue to attend meetings and directly direct monthly meetings with member
units and other specialized areas, ensuring that decisions are issued in line with
the actual situation and achieve optimal efficiency.
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X7 MAANTACCTNAIELTANTT

1. Board of Directors

a) Members and structure of the Board of Director

Member of Board of . Share .
No Directors Position ownership
ratio (%)
01 | Mr. Nguyen Nhu So Chairman of Board of Directors 23.89
Vice Chairman of the Board of
02 | Mr. Nguyen Khac Thao Directors cum General Director 0.93
Mrs. Nguyen Thi Thu Member of the Board of Directors
03 : 1.38
Huong cum Deputy General Director
Member of the Board of Directors
04 | Mr. Nguyen The Tuong cum Deputy General Director 1.05
05 Mr. Nguyen Hoang Member of the Board of Directors 0.07
Nguyen
06 | Mr. Le Quoc Doan Member of the Board of Directors 0.23
07 | Mrs. Nguyen Thanh Huong | Independent Member 0.01
08 | Mr. Bui Van Hoan Independent Member 0.01
09 | Mr. Hoang Nguyen Hoc Independent Member 0.01

b) Sub-committees under the Board of Directors

- The Board of Directors assigns each member to be in charge of specific
areas of the company.

- The members of the Board of Directors assigned to be in charge of each
production and business area play well their roles, actively monitor. To direct and
supervise the units closely following the orientation of the Group..

¢) Activities of the Board of Directors:

The Board of Directors always promote the spirit of responsibility, together
with the Board of Managers directs, operates and implements the planning targets
according to the Resolution of the Annual General Meeting approved, performs
well the function of strategic planning, organizes, directs and supervises all
aspects of the company's operations, appraises and approves investment and
construction projects serving production and business activities, decides on
personnel and management issues of the Company under the authority of the
Board of Directors. The Board of Directors' direction and supervision activities
are conducted directly and/or in writing.

During the year, the Board of Directors held 09 meetings and issued timely
resolutions and decisions based on the actual production and business situation of
the Company:
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No

Resolution
number

Date

Content

Approved
rate

No
01/2024/N
Q-HDQT

24/01/202
4

- Approving ABC bonus in 2023; Tet
bonus in 2024 and deploy tasks in 2024;

- Finalise the List of shareholders and
organise the 2024 Annual General
Meeting;

- Approve the policy of terminating the
operation of the Representative Office of
Dabaco Vegetable Oil Company Limited.

100%

No
02/2024/N
Q-HDQT

01/04/202
4

- Evaluating the business production
situation in the first and
implementing tasks in the second quarter
of 2024;

- Approving the content to be submitted to
the 2024 Annual General Meeting;

- Approving the investment policy and
adjusting some projects;

- Some other contents.

quarter

100%

No
03/2024/N
Q-HDQT

06/05/202
4

- Approving the implementation of the
plan to offer shares to the public for
existing shareholders and the plan to issue
shares under the laborer stock option
program;

- Approving the Regulations on issuing
shares under the laborer stock option
program, the list of laborers purchasing
ESOP shares and assigning tasks for
implementation;

- Approving the investment in Dabaco
Vegetable Oil Company Limited;

- Approving the document for registration
of additional public offering of shares of
Dabaco Group submitted to the State
Securities Commission;

- Approving the transfer of land use rights
in Hong Lac village, Dong Tam commune,
Yen The district, Bac Giang province;

- Approving the policy on personnel
changes and assigning tasks.

100%

No.
04/2023/N
Q-HDQT

05/06/202
4

- Approval of the plan to offer shares to the
public for existing shareholders and the
plan to issue shares under the laborer stock
option program;

- Approval of the dossier for registration of

100%
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additional shares to the public of Dabaco
Group submitted to the State Securities
Commission;

- Approval of the investment in Dabaco
Vegetable Oil Company Limited (a
subsidiary 100% owned by Dabaco Group)
to implement the project of Investing in the
construction of Dabaco soybean Oil
Crushing and refining factory;

No
05/2024/N
Q-HDQT

28/06/202
4

- Preliminary review of the business
production situation in the second quarter
of 2024 and implementation of tasks in the
third quarter of 2024;

- Approval of the selection of an
independent auditor for 2024;

- Approval of the authorization for the
Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors
cum General Director to select the
registration due date to exercise the right to
purchase shares from the public offering of
shares to existing shareholders and the
roadmap for implementing the offering of
shares.

100%

No
06/2024/N
Q-HDQT

10/07/202
4

Approval of the Regulations on issuance of
shares under the laborer stock option
program, the List of laborers purchasing
ESOP shares and the assignment of
implementation tasks.

100%

No
07/2024/N
Q-HDQT

23/08/202
4

- Approving the results of registration to
buy and payment for shares of existing
shareholders in the public offering of
shares to existing shareholders up to
August 15, 2024;

- Approving the plan to handle the
remaining undistributed shares of the
public offering of shares to existing
shareholders according to the Resolution
of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of the
Company;

- Approving the results of registration to
buy and payment for shares of laborers in
the issuance of shares under the laborer
selection program up to August 15, 2024;

- Approving the number of ESOP shares to
continue to be distributed and the plan to

100%
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distribute undistributed shares;

- Approving the adjustment of the Dabaco
Soybean Oil Crushing and Refining plant
Project;

- Approving the plan to borrow capital at
Agribank Bac Ninh Branch.

- Approving the results of the public
offering of shares to existing shareholders
according to the Certificate of Registration
for Public Offering of Shares No.
111/GCN-UBCK issued by the Chairman
of the State Securities Commission on July
3, 2024;

- Approving the results of the issuance of
shares under the Laborer Stock Option
Program (ESOP) of Dabaco Group;

- Approving the change of the Enterprise
Registration Certificate and amending the
Charter of Organization and Operation of

No 20/08/202 the Company according to the new charter
8 08/2024/N 4 capital after completing the public offering 100%
Q-HDQT of shares to existing shareholders and
issuing ESOP;

- Approving the registration of additional
shares at the Vietnam Securities
Depository and Clearing Corporation
(VSDC) and registration of additional
listing of shares at the Ho Chi Minh City
Stock Exchange (HOSE) for the number of
shares issued in the public offering of
shares to existing shareholders and issuing
ESOP;

- Assign tasks and implement;

- Approve amendments to the Decision on
assigning tasks to company leaders.

No 12/12202 Approving adjustment of the investment
9 09/2024/N 4 project progress to build the Nutreco Ha 100%
Q-HDQT Tinh feed mill.
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d) Activities of independent members of the Board of Directors:

Independent members of the Board of Directors have performed their
functions, duties and powers in accordance with regulations; fully participated in
meetings and gave opinions and voted independently on issues under the
decision-making authority of the Board of Directors; participated in supervising
the activities of members of the Board of Directors, the Executive Board and
managers as assigned by the Board of Directors, contributing to the completion of
the internal governance regulations of the Group.

e) List of members of the Board of Directors with management training
certificates:

Members of the Board of Directors, Supervisors, members of the Board of
Managers, persons in charge and other managers regularly update and study new
legal regulations on company management. In addition, members actively
participate in training courses, forums, and seminars related to company
management organized by the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange (HSX) with the
support of the State Securities Commission, the International Finance Corporation
(IFC), ITA Vietnam and the Vietnam Institute of Directors (VIOD).

Most members of the Board of Directors have participated in training courses
on company management organized by the State Securities Commission and have
been granted certificates of training.

2. Board of Supervisors

a. Members ans structure of the Board of Supervisors.

Member of Supervisors . Share .
No Board Position ownership
ratio (%)
Head of the Board of 0
1 Mr. Ho Sy Quy Supervisors 0.02%
2 Mr. Nguyen Thanh Ha Supervisor 0%
3 Mrs. Nguyen Thi Bich Supervisor 0,02%
b. Activities of Board of Supervisors.
No Meeting Passage rate
No Resolution date Content
1 | 01/2024/BB | 29/3/2024 | - Contents prepared for the 100%
-BKS Annual General Meeting.

- Approving report on
evaluation of the board of
supervisors’ activities 2023.

- Evaluation of the business
production situation in 2023.
- Announcement of some
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policies and directions of the
Board of Directors and the Board
of Managers in the first 6

months of 2024.
2 | 02/2024/BB 28/8/2024 | - General  evaluation  of 100%
-BKS production and business
activities in the first 6 months of
2024.

- Monitor the implementation of
the contents approved in the
Resolution of the 2024 Annual
General Meeting.
- Announce a number of policies
and guidelines of the Board of
Directors and the Board of
Managers in the last 6 months of
2024

- Review and appraise the
audited 6 months financial

statements.
3 | 03/2024/BB | 12/26/202 | - Evaluation of the Board of 100%
-BKS 4 Supervisors’ activities in 2024
- Evaluation of the Group’s
production and business

activities in 2024; plan for 2025.
- Announcement of some
policies and directions of the
Board of Directors and the Board
of Managers at the end of 2024.

c. Supervisory activities of the Board of Supervisors:

For the Board of Directors:

- The Board of Directors held meetings in accordance with the provisions of
the Charter, the Regulations on the organization and operation of the Board of
Directors, and the Company's governance regulations to carry out the supervision
and orientation of the Company's business production activities. At the meetings,
the Board of Directors listened to the Board of Managers' reports on the
Company's busness production activities; reviewed and evaluated the
implementation of the set targets and plans and proposed solutions to perform
specific tasks for each unit, in order to remove difficulties in production and
business activities.

- The Board of Directors' meetings and monthly Company meetings chaired
by the Chairman of the Board of Directors, the Board of Supervisors were
invited to attend in order to promptly get the Company's operating situation,
actively participate in contributing opinions, regularly make timely
recommendations to improve policies, procedures, and regulations to improve
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management and operation capacity and prevent risks in the Company's
operations.

- The resolutions of the Board of Directors are in compliance with the
provisions of law and closely follow the actual production and business activities
of the Company, ensuring democracy and high unity. The implementation of the
resolutions of the Board of Directors is carried out seriously and effectively. The
contents of the resolutions are disclosed in accordance with the provisions of law

For the Board of Managers :

- The Board of Managers manages and operates production and business
activities in accordance with the objectives approved by Shareholders and the
Board of Directors. Members of the Board of Managers are assigned to be in
charge of units in specific fields, responsible for directing and inspecting all
business production activities of the unit, thereby pointing out the shortcomings
in the business production process and providing solutions to support units to
overcome them effectively.

- The Board of Managers works with a high sense of responsibility for the
benefit of the Company and shareholders; constantly innovates management and
operation, builds policies and mechanisms suitable to the actual production and
business situation of the Company, and pays attention to improving the material
and spiritual life of laborers.

For shareholders:

- Strictly implement information disclosure in accordance with the regulations
of the State Securities Commission and the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange.

- Fully post information related to the Company's business production activities
on the website, creating favorable conditions for shareholders and investors to
promptly grasp.

- Regularly meet, exchange, and promptly answer information about the
Company's operating situation with shareholders and investors in need.

Coordination of activities between the Board of Supervisors and the activities
of the Board of Directors, the Executive Board and other managers:

- The Board of Supervisors conducts quarterly financial statement appraisals,
ensuring that the reports honestly reflect the Company's business production
activities and financial situation.

- Check and review issued internal management documents, ensuring
compliance with legal regulations.

- The Board of Directors provides full Resolutions and Decisions of the Board
of Directors to the Board of Supervisors and the Board of Managers and creates
favorable conditions for the Board of Supervisors to collect information and
documents related to the Company's production and business activities when
requested. The activities of the Board of Supervisors are respected and ensure
objectivity and independence.

- The Board of Supervisors coordinates well with the inspection teams and
working groups of the Company to carry out inspection and supervision work at
member units.
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- The opinions of the Board of Supervisors sent to the Board of Directors and
the Board of Managers are fully and promptly feed back.

Other activities of the Board of Supervisors :

- Checking and supervising the implementation of the Resolutions of
Shareholders for the Board of Directors and the Board of Managers of the
Company.

- Reviewing the appropriateness of the Decisions of the Board of Directors and
the Board of Managers in management and operation; checking the order and
procedures for issuing documents of the Company in accordance with the
provisions of law and the Company's Charter.

- Reviewing and appraising the quarterly, 6 months and annual financial
reports.

- Supervising the enforcement of the law, the implementation of the regulations
and rules issued by the Company as well as reviewing and recommending the
Company to develop and issue internal regulations.

3. TRANSACTIONS, REMUNERATION AND BENEFITS OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS, BOARD OF MANAGERS AND THE BOARD
OF SUPERVISORS

a) Income of member of the Board of Directors, the Board of Managers,
and the Board of Supervisors:

Regarding income and other benefits of members of the Board of Directors,
members of the Board of Supervisors and other managers in 2024 were accounted
for and shown in the 2024 Audited Financial Statements.

b) Stock transaction of internal people:

Reasons for
Number of shares owned R .
at the beginning of the Number of shares owned increasing,
Position/ period at the end of the period decreasing
No Transactio | Relationship (:)el;l)i,:lng’
* | nexecutor | with internal &
persons Number of | Percentage | Number of | Percentage converting,
shares (%) shares (%) rewarding,
etc.)
Sell 1,000,000
Nguyen Daughter of shares from
1 Thi Tan | Mr Nguyen 5,384,977 2.23% 4,384,977 1.81% | January 11,
Hoa Nhu So 2024 to January
12,2024
Nguyen guy shares on
2 Tue - Deputy - 0.00% 5,000 0.002%
Van Tuan January 31,
General
) 2024
Director
Vice
Neuven chairman of Sell 300,000
3 KﬁazThao the  BOD, | 2,249,248 0.93% | 1,949,248 0.81% | shares on April
General 4,2024
Director
Sell  150.000
Nguyen Board shares from
4 | Hoang Member 150,000 0.06% - 0.00% | July 24, 2024
Nguyen to August 14,
2024
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Exercise the
right to buy

Deputy :
s | Newyen G eral 19,284 0.01% 25,712 3:1,  purchase
Van Tue . quantity 6,428
Director
shares on July
29, 2024
Nguyen l:fvr(())ltl}?égr of Mr ELS%P SS?I.E?r(Z:g
6 | Van 224 0.0001% 50,224 0.02%
Chuyen Nguyen Nhu on July 29,
So 2024
Buy 50.000
Hoang
7 | Nguyen | Boad : 0,00% 50,000 0.02% | ESOP  shares
Hoc Member on July 29,
2024
Buy 2.000.000
Nguyen Chairman of o o, | ESOP  shares
8 Nhu So the BOD 58,474,590 24.16% | 60,474,590 23.81% on August 8,
2024
Exercise  the
right to buy
. 3:1, purchase
9 Eﬁ“-‘fgg géaé“ggn of | 58.474,500 24,16% | 77,966,120 quantity
. 19.491.530
shares on
August 8, 2024
Exercise  the
right to buy
Daughter of 3:1, purchase
10 | Neuyen Mr Nguyen | 2,778,173 1.15% | 3,704,230 quantity
Thu Hien
Nhu So 926.057 shares
on August 8§,
2024
Exercise  the
right to buy
Daughter of 3:1, purchase
1| Newen Ha v Nguyen | 2,314,342 0.96% | 3,085,789 quantity
Nhu So 771.447 shares
on August 8§,
2024
Exercise  the
right to buy
Nguyen Daughter of 3:1, purchase
12 | Thi Tan | Mr Nguyen 4,384,977 1.81% 5,846,636 quantity
Hoa Nhu So 1.461.659
shares on
August 8, 2024
. Buy 50.000
Young sister
13 | Neuyen b e nir Neuyen - 0.00% 50,000 ESOP  shares
Thi Thuy Nhu So on August 13,
. 2024
Viee Buy  500.000
Nguyen chairman = of ESOP  shares
14 suy the BOD, 1,949,248 0.81% 2,449,248 0.96%
Khac Thao on August 13,
General
. 2024
Director
Exercise  the
Vice right to buy
chairman of 3:1, purchase
15 | Neuyen the  BOD, 1,949,248 0.81% | 2,598,997 quantity
Khac Thao
General 649.749 shares
Director on August 13,

2024
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Board
Member,
Nar |3 B, 0
16 | Thi Thu . 4,111,812 1.70% 4,611,812 1.82%
Huong Directors, on August 13,
Chief 2024
Financial
Officer
Board Buy  100.000
Nguyen Member, ESOP  shares
17 suy Deputy 2,567,373 1.06% 2,667,373 1.05%
The Tuong on August 13,
General
. 2024
Directors
Exercise  the
right to buy
Board 3:1, purchase
Member, quantity
18 I;f?ﬁ‘on Deputy 2,567,373 1.06% | 3,423,163 855.790 shares
€ | General from  August
Directors 13, 2024 to
August 14,
2024
Nguyen Buy  250.000
19 | Hoang Board 150,000 0.06% | 400,000 0.16% | CSOP  shares
Neuven Member on August 13,
gy 2024
Exercising the
right to buy
3:1, purchase
20 Iﬁean Quoc E/{Oﬁ ) 432,036 0.18% 576,047 quantity
© embe 144.011 shares
from  August
13, 2024
Buy  200.000
Le  Quoc | Board N o, | ESOP  shares
21 Doan Member 432,036 0.18% 632,036 0.25% on August 13,
2024
Nguyen Buy 50.000
22 | Thanh Board : 0.00% 50,000 0.02% | ESOP  shares
Huon Member on August 14,
uong 2024
Buy 50.000
Bui  Van | Board o o, | ESOP  shares
23| Hoan Member ) 0.00% 50,000 0.02% | on August 13,
2024
Head of e ESOP  shares
24 | Ho Sy Quy | Supervisory - 0.00% 80,000 0.03%
Board on August 13,
2024
Buy 60.000
Nguyen . o o, | ESOP  shares
25 Thi Bich Supervisor 2,800 0.00% 62,800 0.02% on August 13,
2024
Buy  250.000
Deputy
26 | Pham Van | qoeral 19,284 0.01% | 269,284 0.11% | ESOP  shares
Hoc . on August 13,
Director 2024
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Exercise the
right to buy

Deputy 3:1, purchase
27 ;ham Van | General 19,284 0.01% 25,712 quantity 6.428
o¢ Director shares from
August 14,
2024
Buy  100.000
Deputy
2g | Neuyen General 19,284 0.01% 119,284 0.05%, | ESOP  shares
Van Tue Director on August 13,
2024
Buy  200.000
Deputy
g9 | Hoang Van = o ; 0.00% 200,000 0.089 | ESOP  shares
Chung Director on August 14,
2024
Buy  100.000
. Deputy
30 |Le  Minh | o eral 125 0.00% 100,125 0.049 | ESOP  shares
Tuan Director on August 13,
2024
Buy  200.000
ESOP  shares
. Deputy
31 | DO Viet) General 148 0.00% 200,148 0.089 | from  August
Quan Director 12, 2024 to
August 13,
2024
Buy  200.000
. | Deputy
3 if Thi | G eneral 6.192 0.00% 206,192 0.089 | ESOP  shares
inh Thu Director on August 13,
2024
Nguyen Buy 80.000
33 | Thi Thanh | SPief 5,000 0.00% 85,000 0.03 | ESOP  shares
Huven Accountant on August 13,
uy 2024
Head of the
Board Office,
Nguyen Authorized Buy  200.000
34 | Thi  Hue | Disclosure 1,004,619 0.42% | 1,204,619 0.479 | ESOP  shares
. Officer, on August 12,
Minh Corporate 2024
Governance
Officer
Young Buy 30.000
Nguyen brother of o o, | ESOP  shares
33 Anh Duc Mrs Nguyen ) 0.00% 30,000 0,01% on August 13,
Thi Hue Minh 2024
Young sister Buy 50.000
Nguyen
36 | Thi  Thu | °F Mrs ) 0.00% 50,000 0,020, | ESOP  shares
Hon Nguyen Thi on August 12,
& Hue Minh 2024
Dinh  Thi | Head of the E‘SI(YDP 3(1)1'000
37 | Minh Internal Audit - 0,00% 30,000 0,01% Shares
Thuan Committee gngugust 13,
Nguyen Member  of Buy 30.000
38 | Thi  Thy | the  ntemal . 0,00% 30,000 0,01% | ESOP  shares
Huong Audit on August 14,
Committee 2024

DABACO.COM.VN | 119




ANNUAL REPORT 2024 a.é DABACO GROUP

Nguyen Member  of Buy  100.000

39 | Xuan the . Internal 291 0.00% 100291 0.04% ESOP  shares

Quan Audit on August 14,
Hang Committee 2024

¢) Contracts/transactions of insiders:

The company has transactions with subsidiaries and affiliated companies
according to regulations. Details in the 2024 Audited Financial Report

d) Implementation of Company management regulations:

As a listed company operating in many fields, Dabaco is always aware that
building an effective company management system will ensure the sustainability
of the Company for the best interests of shareholders and other stakeholders.

The Company strictly implements the regulations on company management in
2024:

- Comply with the regulations on procedures for convening Shareholders
according to the provisions of the Enterprise Law, Decree 155/2020/ND-CP
guiding the Securities Law 2019, the Company Charter and Internal Regulations
on company management, Arrange a reasonable location and time for
shareholders to attend the 2024 Annual General Meeting; Reports of the Board of
Directors, the Executive Board, the Board of Supervisors and documents of
Annual General Meeting are disclosed according to regulations.

- The Company's governance reports are fully disclosed and on time. The
Company always strictly implements the regulations on company management
and discloses information in a timely manner, in accordance with regulations, and
in accordance with the provisions of the law on company management applicable
to listed companies.
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Dabaco Group

GENERAL INFORMATION

THE COMPANY

Dabaco Group ("the Company”) is @ joint stock company incorporated under the Law on Enterprise
on Vietnam pursuant to the Enterprise Registration Certificate Mo. 2300105780 issued by the
Department of Planning and Investment of Bac Ninh province on 23 December 2004 and the
subsequent amended Enterprise Registration Cetificates, with the latest is the 24" amendment being
granted on & September 2024,

The Company’s shares are listed and traded at the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange since July 2019
with the stock code DBC,

The current principal activities of the Company ara:

» Production of animal feed, production and trading of catile, poultry, watarfow! and agquatic breeds,

* Real estate business, housing and investment in infrastructure construction of new urban areas,
small and medium-sized industrial parks; and

» Producing, processing and trading of livestock, poultry and waterfowl meat; producing, processing
and trading of aquatic feed, raw materials for animal feed praduction; raising and breading herds
of griginal breeds: cattle, poultry and aguatic products.

The Company's head office is located at No. 35, Ly Thai To street, Bac Ninh city, Bac Ninh province
and its branch located at No. 22, hamlet 4, street 18, Binh Hung commune, Binh Chanh province, Ho
Chi Minh city.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Members of the Board of Directors during the year and at the date of this report are:;

Mr Mguyen Mhu 5o Chairman

Mr Mguyen Khac Thao Deputy Chairman
Ms Nguyen Thi Thu Huang Member

Mr Mouyen The Tuong Member

Mr Nguyen Hoang Nguyen Member

Mr Le Quoc Doan Member

Ms Nguyesn Thanh Huong Member

Mr Hoang Mguyen Hoo Member

Mr Bui Van Hoan Member

BOARD OF SUPERVISION

Members of the Board of Supervision during the year and at the date of this report are:

Mr Ho Sy Quy Head of Board of Supervision
Mr Nguyen Thanh Ha Member

Ms Nguyen Thi Bich Meamber

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

Membess of the Internal Audit Function during the year and at the date of this report are:

Ms Dinh Thi Minh Thuan Incherge of function
Ms Mguyen Thi Thu Huang hMember
Mr Nguyen Xuan Quang Member
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Dabaco Group

GENERAL INFORMATION {continued)

MANAGEMENT
Members of management during the year and at the date of this report are:
Mr Naguyen Khac Thao General Director

Ms Nguyen Thi Thu Huong Deputy General Director
cumn Chief Financial Officer

Mr Pham Van Hoc Deputy General Director

Mr Nguyen The Tuong Deputy General Director

Mr Nguyen Van Tue Deputy General Directar

Mr Hoang Van Chung Deputy General Director

Mr Le Minh Tuan Deputy General Director

Mr Do Viet Cuan Deputy General Director

Ms Le Thi Minh Thu Deputy General Director

Mz Bui Hai Huyen Deputy General Director resigned on 1 February 2024
LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE

The legal representatives of the Company during the year and at the date of this report are Mr Nauyen
Nhu So and Mr Nguyen Khac Thao.

AUDITOR

The auditor of the Company is Emst & Young Vietnam Limited.
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Dabaco Group

REPORT OF MANAGEMENT

Management of Dabaco Group (the Company”) is pleasad to present this repart and the consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "Group”} for
the vear ended 31 December 2024,

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the consolidated financial statements of each financial year which give
& true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Graup and of the consolidated results
of its operations and its consolidated cash flows for the year. In preparing those consolidated financial
statements, managemeant is raquired to;

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
» make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

» state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject toc any material
departures disclosed and explained in the consolidated financial statements; and

» prepare the consolidaled financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate
o presume that the Group will continue its business,

Management is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept which disclose, with
reasonable accuracy at any ime, the consclidated financial pesition of the Group and for BNSUring
that the accounting records comply with the applied accounting system. It is also responsible for
safeguarding the assels of the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other ireqularities.

Management confirmed that it has complied with the above requirements in preparing the
accompanying consolidated financial stataments.

STATEMENT BY MANAGEMENT

Management does hereby state that, in ks opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial
statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2024 and of the consolidated resulls of its operations and its consalidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Enterprise
accounting System and the statutory requirements relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
: ftated financial statements.

‘Mouyen Thi Thu Hoong
Depulty General Director

Bac Minh, Vietnam

21 March 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REFPORT

Ta: The Shareholders of Dabaco Group

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Dabaco Group (“the
Company”) and its subsidiaries {collectively referred to as the “Group”) as prepared on 21 March 2025
and set out on pages & o 48, which comprize the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2024,
the consclidated income statement and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended
and the notes thereto

Management's responsibility

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
stalements In accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting
System and the statutory requirements relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated
financial statements. and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatament whether due to fraud or emor,

Auditors' responsibility

Our respansibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards
raquire that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and parform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement

An audit invelves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consclidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of materal misstatement of the consalidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal contral
relevant to the Group's preparation and fair presentation of the consalidated financial stetements in arder
to cesign audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control. An audit alsa includes
evaluating the appropriatensss of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of sccounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the averall presentation of the consolidated
financial statemants.

We beliave that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In aur opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects, of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2024, and of the consolidated results
of its aperations and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in sccordance with Vielnamesa
Amnunlh'lg Standards, Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting Systern and the statutory requirements

the preparation and presentation of tha consolidated financial statements.

Bui Anh Tuan Mguyen Quy Manh

Deputy General Direclor Auditor

Audit Practicing Registration Audit Practicing Registration
Certificate Mo 1067-2023-004-1 Certificate Mo, 4482-2023-004-1

Hanoi, Vietnam

21 March 2025
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Dabaco Group BO1-DNHN
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
as at 31 December 2024
Currency: YD
Code | ASSETS hates Ernchirig balance Eeginning balance
100 | A. CURRENT ASSETS 7,838,139,952,903 7,101,240 626,454
110 | f. Cash and cash equivalents 4 4398 331,953,874 582 137,027 608
111 1. Cash 251,855 181 588 571.879.101.699
112 2. Cash equivalenis 187 476.772.268 20,257 925 T4
120 | I Shor-term investments 1,270,880 520 510 459,883.400.837
123 1. Held-for-trading securities 5 1,370,690,520,510 488 883 400,831
130 | IV, Current accounts recelvable 402,126,060,200 424,294 692,650
131 1. Short-term trade receivables 6.1 197,363,643 4685 2224956522 121
132 2.  Shorl-tarm advances (o
supgpliers 6.2 104,702 300,518 140,359 580,900
136 3. Other short-term receivables 71 29 872 916 216 61,350 4808 620
140 | IV, Inventories 8 8,376, T81,7T58,000 5,494,431, 478,923
144 1. Inventories 5,516, 781,758 000 5499 908 000,755
1439 2. Provision for pbsolete
imventories - (5,5966.621,832)
150 | V. Other current assels 109,009,660,319 100,494 026,342
151 1. Short-term prepaid expenses 16 41,675,598, 047 31,292,143, 582
152 2. Deductible value-added tax 18 46,975,126, 322 44 682 BEDB 825
153 3. Tax and other receivables
fram the Siate 18 4213718 248 4 56T, 794 867
155 4. Other curent assels a 16,144 217 702 18,851 280, 564
200 | B. NON-CURRENT ASSETS B.283,415874,694 | 5,910,463,631,418
210 | I. Long-term receivables 38,827,323,609 36,857,580,999
216 1. Other long-term receivables 72 3B8,827.323.609 36,857 .500,000
220 | I, Fized assels 4,788,772 451 0BS5S 5,148 429 144, 344
221 1. Tangible fixed assels 10 4.318,221,168 927 4 533 770,857 929
222 Crost 7,815 B49 050 128 7.453.231.013,002
223 Accumulated depreciation (3,457 627 881,193} | (2,819.460,155,073)
224 2. Finance leases 11 471,551,282, 138 G14 658,286 415
225 Cost G54, 005,307 Ba5 783,724 174,598
226 Accumulated depreciation {182 454 115,747} {1489 065,838 18.3)
230 | M. Investment properties 13 108,007, 808,000 -
23 1. Cost 108, 084,808,000
232 Accumulated depreciation 5 3
240 | IV, Long-term assets in progress 12 1,083,475 270,748 475,694 083,517
242 1. Long-term work-in-process 1,083 475 270,745 475 6594 0B3,517
250 | V. Long-ferm investments 116,730,417,629 119,560, 794,629
252 1. Investments In associates 15 106,130,417 629 108,560,704 G20
255 2. Held-to-maturity investments 1 10,000,000,000 10,000,000,000
260 | VI. Other long-term assets 146,208,603,643 129,922,027,929
261 1. Long-term prepaid expenses 16 123,778.100.097 128,822,027 624
262 2. Deferred tax assats 0.3 22 429 503 546 -
270 | TOTAL ASSETS 14,121,665,827.697 | 13,011,704,267.872




Dabaco Group BO1-DN/HN
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET {continuad)
&8s at 31 Decamber 2024
Crrrency: VND
Code | RESOURCES Motes Ending balance |  Beginning balance
300 | € LIABILITIES T,355476,127,696 | B,345,469 400,426
20 | L Current Nabilities B.420 604 102,808 7,141,605 465,752
31 1. Short-term frade pavablas 171 TE2,647T 450,928 T85,800,820,770
312 2. Short-term advances from
customers 17.2 207 417 787 622 Z21,365,130,340
313 3. Siatutory obligations 18 100,250,908,048 32,466,081,244
314 4. Payables fo employees 86 273,324 190 78,318,647 202
315 & Shor-term acorued expenses 19 53,127 382 B3B 104,358 524 479
318 g, Other shorf-term payables 20 260,903 154 474 1.037, 387,548,457
320 T. Shor-term loan and finance
lease obligations 21 4,828 462 261,704 | 4 840,720,808, 254
322 8. Bonus and welfare fund 22 13.515.592.207 33 387,305,807
330 | . Non-current labilitias 934, TB2 024 BET 1,203,863,034,674
3ar 1. Other long-term liabilities 20 170,485, 163430 177 448,382 418
338 2. Long-term loans and finance
lzase obligations 21 764,256 B61,397 1,026,414 552 258
400 | . OWHNERS' EQUITY B,TEE,073,659 501 4, 66E,234, 65T 446
410 | Owners'equity 231 6, 766,079,699.907 | 4,666,234,857 446
411 1. Contributed charer capital 3,346 691 450 000 2,420,018, 580,000
411a - Onfinary shames with
voting righis 3,346,691,450,000 | 2.420,018,590 000
412 . Share pramium B21,521 222 221 418,432 992 221
418 3. Investment and devetopment
fund 1,624 BYE 671,818 1,795,871 477 604
431 4. Undistributed eamings 771,988,355 68681 27,911,797 821
4218 = Lindiztrbided eamings by
tha Bnd of prior year 2,904, 603, 406 2,804, 603,406
421h - Undizinbited eamings of
ciiment year 769 083,752 455 25,007, 194,215
424 5. Mon-controlling interests 1,000, 500,000 =
440 | TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
OWNERS' EQUITY 14,121,656,827,597 | 13,011,704,257 672 y

A
0
'1%"

=% VIET NAM

21 March 2025

Preparer Chief Accountant

Mguyen Thi Ngan

Mguyen Thi Thanh Huyen

Chairman of the Board of Directar
Nauyen Nhu So



Dabaco Group B2-DN/HN
CONSIOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
for the year anded 31 December 2024
Cumency: VND
Pravious year
Code | ITEME MNotes Cument year (Festalad)
01 . 1.  Revenue from sale of goods and
rendering of services 24.1 | 13,739,362, 734,289 | 11,241,184,150,311
02 | 2. Deductions 24.1 {165,839,502,281) {131,163,393.498)
10 | 3. Met revenue from sale of goods
and rendering of services 24.1 13,673,623,231,888 | 11,110,000,7556,812
11 | 4. Costof goods sold and services
rendered 256 |(11,640,078,007 663) | (9,995,7568,533,961)
20 | 5  Gross profit from sale of goods
and rendering of services 1,933,445 224 215 1,114,241,222 851
29 | 6. Finance income 24.2 38,213,281, 756 35, 776,736,369
22 | 7. Finance expenses 26 (274,645,107 ,584) (280,735,411,691)
23 In which; inferest expenses (263, 668, 548, 328) {261,799 262, 786)
24 | 8. Shares of loss of associates 15 {1,430,377,000) (2,765 450,666)
25 | 9. Selling expenses 27 {489,088 B57,795) {432,440,161,015)
26 | 10. General and administrative
EXPENSEs 27 {391,719,812,986) (356,355,806,770)
30 | 1. Operating profit B3E,764,450 626 77, 721,029,178
3 | 12. Other Income 28 21,626,693,787 21,668,113,423
32 | 13. Other expenses (3,142 588,213) {1,640,931,259)
40 | 14. Other profit 18,484,005 ,578 20,028 182,174
B0 | 15. Accounting profit before tax 854,248 546 204 87,748.211,352
B1 | 16, Current corporate Income tax
expense 0.4 {107,594,297,295) (72,742,017,137)
52 [ 17. Deferred tax expense 30.3 22,428,603,646
€0 | 18. Met profit after corporate income I
tax 769,083,762,465 25,007,194,2156
B1 | 19, MNet profit after tax attributable to
shareholders of the parent TE9, 083,752 45656 ' 25,007,184,216
70 | 20. Basic earnings per share 32 2,626 . 8
71 | 21. Diluted earnings per share a2 | )
Bac Minh, 'u!fétn_ e am
21 March 2025
/
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Freparer

Mglryen Thi Ngan

Chief Accountant

Mguyen Thi Thanh Huyean
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Mguyen Mhu So



Dabaco Group BO3-DN/HM
CONSQLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 December 2024
Curranoy: VND
Code | ITEMS Notes Cinrent year Previous year
I. CASHFLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
01 | Profit before tax B54,248,546,204 a7,748,211,352
Adjuslments for
02 Depreciation of fixed assets 10 11 639,207,743,578 547 283,343,319
03 Reversal of provisions (5,56B,521,832) (3,245,580, 624)
4 Foreign exchange losses/igains)
arizen from revaiuation of
monetary accounts denominated
in foredgn curmrency 568,738,073 (58.033,361)
05 Profits from investing activities (35,018,284, 000) (28,140 456,807)
0& Interest expenses 25 253,068,548, 326 261,799,262 TRE
08 | Operating profit before changes In
working capital 1,716,208,771,250 BT5, 367,736,666
1L Decrease in receivables 4 340 692 73 145,915,546 408
10 Decreaselincrease) in Inventores 56,652 880,133 (284,082 561,213)
11 Decrease in payables (325,239,6813,544) | (1,309,325837,720)
12 Increase in prepaid expenses (4,241 526,233) (2,264 400,662)
14 Interest paid (263,624 4TDETT) {254,212,019,637)
15 Corporate income tax paid {38,403, 843,047) (76,543,362,224)
17 Other cash outflows for oparating
activities 22 (19.871.713,000) (B2,145,340,000)
20 | Net cazh flows fromi{used in)
operating activities 1,125.820,977,7T61 {967,300,258,383)
Il. CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
21 Purchase and construction of fixad
assels and other long-term assets (870,285 552 815) (375,110,099, 380)
22 Proceeds from disposals of foed
assets 6,105,532 572 B3,514,025,727
23 Loans to other entifies and
payments for purchase of debt
instruments of ather antities {937,441,623 860} (116,656,691,2659)
24 Callections from borrowers and
proceeds from sale of debt
instrumants of other enfities 56,434 504 281 121,658,817,525
2T Interest and dividends received 31,264),801,007 28,682,580 336
30 | Net cash flows used in investing
activities (1,713,936,238,9185) [257,833,557,181)
. CASH FLOWS FROM
FINAMCING ACTIVITIES
g Capital confribution and issuance
of shares 1,328,761,000,000 -
33 Drawdown of borrowings 13,695 572,374,958 12,273,807 160 542
34 Repayment af bomowings {14,347 121,357 ,283) | {10,947 ,B92,010,652)
39 Paymant of principal of finance
lease liahilities (142,748,534 503) {135,744, 140,178)
40 | Net cash flows from financing
activities 435,463,673,082 1,1590,171,029, 701




Dabaco Group BO3-DNHN
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)
far the year ended 31 December 2024
Currancy: WD
Code | ITEMS 1 Mates Current year Prewvious year
50 | Met decrease In cash and cash
equivalents for the year (152 ,651,688,072) (34,962,785,863)
&0 | Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year 592,137,027, 608 B627,011,780,110
E1 | Impact of foreign exchange rate
fluctuation [153,385,662) 88,033,361
70 | Gash and cash equivalents at the
end of the year 4 439,331,953, 874 592 137,027,608
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Preparer
Mguyen Thi Ngan

Chief Accountant
Nguyen Thi Thanh Huyen

10

Mguyen Mhu So
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Dabaco Group

BOS-DNHM

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Dabaco Group (“the Company”) is a joint stock company incorporated under the Law on
Enterprise on Vietnam pursuant to the Enterprise Registration Certificate No. 2300105790
issued by the Department of Planning and Investment of Bac Ninh province on 23 December
2004 and the subsequent amended Enterprise Registration Certificates, with the latest is the
24" amendment being granted on 5 September 2024,

The current principal activities of the Company are:

» Production of animal feed, production and trading of cattle, poultry, waterfow! and aquatic
breads,

¢ Real estate business, housing and investment in infrastructure construction of new urban
areas, small and medium-sized industrial parks; and

» Producing, processing and trading of livestock, poultry and waterfowd meat; producing,
processing and trading of aguatic feed, raw materials for animal feed production; raising
and breeding herds of ariginal breeds: cattfe, poultry and aguatic products.

The normal course of business cycle for real estate activities of the Group is from the
acceptance date as project investor and implementation of site clearance, construction unfil
the completion date and hand over properties to customers. Accordingly, the average
business cycle for real estate activities can extend beyond 12 months. The Group’s normal
course of business cycla for other actvities is 12 months,

The Company's head office is located at No. 35, Ly Thai To street, Bac Ninh city, Bac Ninh
province and its branch located at No, 22, hamlet 4, 18 street, Binh Hung commune, Binh
Chanh province, Ho Chi Minh city,

The number of the Group's employees as at 31 December 2024 ks 6,905 {31 December 2023
8,515),

Corporate structure

As at 31 December 2024, the Company has 27 subsidiaries {31 December 2023; 27),
including:

Vating  Equity

rights  intevest Head office's
Mo, Subsidianysmame (%) (%)  address

1 Dabaco Muclear 100 100

Frincipa! acfivities

Tan Chi commune,
Tien Du district,

- Raising catfla, pouliry,

Breading Pig
Company

Bac Minh province

production and trading of
breeding pigs, meat pigs.
pig semen, buffaloes, cows,

2  Lac Ve Breeding 100 100 Ho Ve village, Lac Fig breeding, poultry
Fig Company Ve commune, Tien breeding and somea types of
Limited D district, Bac livestock; production and

Minh province frading of breeding pigs,
maal pigs, pig essence,
pork belly and other squatic
bresds.

3 Investment and 100 100 Lac Ve commune Livestock, livestock suppart
Davelopment Industrial Cluster, aclivittes, trading  and
Breed Processing Tien Du district, agents.

Comparry Limited Bac Minh province

4  Dabaco Pig 100 100 Lac Ve commune Mesat pig breeding, dairy pig
Ralsing Industrial Cluster, breeding, breeding pigs,
Investment & Tien Du disirict, livestock support activitias;
Development Bac Ninh province production and frading of
Company Limited meat pigs, breeding pigs

i1

and commarcial pigs.



Dabaco Group BOS-DN/HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuad)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION {continued)

Corporate structure (continued)

Violing  Eguity
fights  inferest Head office’s
Moo Subzidiary's name (%) (%) address Principal aciivities
5 Debaco Breeding 100 100 Ho Ve villags, Lac - Breeding and tading of
Chicken Company Ve commune, Ten breeding chickens.
Limited Du district, Bac Minh
province
&  Hiep Quang 100 100 Khac Niem Industrial ~ Food  production  and
Trading Company Park, Bac Minh cify, trading; PP, PE, composite
Limitad Bac Minh province plastic packaging products;

trade and senices.
7 BacHMinh Trading 100 100 Ehac Miem Industrial Buying, seling, importing

Company Limited Cluster, Khac Niem and exporting raw materials
commune, Bac Minh for animal feed production,
city, Bac Ninh providing services in hotels,
province restaurants, supermarkets,

and commercial cenfers,

8  Tan ChiFort & 100 100 Huen CQuang - Construction of  works,
Logistics street, Minh Xa installation  of electical
Company Limited ward, Bac Ninh city, systems, water supply and
™) Bac Minh province drainage, trading of building

materials, frading and
leasing of vehicles,

machinery and equipment.
8  MNulreco Company 100 100  Dai Dong - Hoan Son Production of animal feed,
Limited Industrial Park, Hoan poultry feed, and aquatic

Son communeg, Ten feed; trading in feed and raw
Du digtrict, Bac Minh matesials for animal, poultry,

province and aguatic fesd.

10 Dabaco Hai 100 100 Tral Vien village, Pig  breeding, poultry
Fhong Breeding Luu Kiem commune, breeding and some types of
Pig Company Thuy Mguyen ivestock; production  and
Limitad diztrict, Hai Phong trading of breeding pigs,

city meat pgs, pig essence, pork
belly and other aquatic
breeds

11 Dabaco Ha Nam 100 100 Thuong Vy village, Pig breading,  pouttry
Breading Fig Khan Chinh breeding and some types of
Company Limited commune, Ly Mhan livestock; producton  and

district, Ha Nam rading of breeding pigs,

provinces meal pigs, plg essence, pork
belly and other aquatic
breesds.

12 Masaco Ha Mam 100 100 Hoa Mac Industrial Production af animal feed,
Animal Feed Park, Hoa Mac poultry feed, and aguatic
Company Limited town, Duy Tien feed; rading in fead and raw

district, Ha Nam materials for animal, poultry,
province and aquatic feed.

13 Dabaco PhuThe 100 100 Area i, Tele Pig  breeding, poultry
Breeding Pig commdnea, Tam breeding and some types of
Compary Limited Momg district, Phu livestock, production and

Tho province frading of breeding pigs,

miéat pigs, pig essence,
pork belly and other aquatic
breads.

12



Dabaco Group

BOS-DNHN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and far the year then ended

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued)

Corporate structure (continued)

Ma
14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

Varing  Eguily
Subsidiary's nghis inferast
name %) (%)  Head office’s address Principal activities
L'Indachina 100 100 Mou45, Mguyen Dang Accommodation,
Tourist and Dao Street, Sus Hoa restaurant, catering,
Haospitality Ward, Bac Ninh City commercial and service
Company Limited SEMVicEs,
Dabace Luong 100 100 Thanh Khe village, Pig breeding, poulfry
Tal Breeding Pig Lai Ha communs, breeding and some types
Company Limited Lusng Tai disirict, of livestock; production
Eac Ninh province and trading of breeding
pigs, meal pigs, pig
essence, pork belly and
ather aguatic bBreeds.
Dabaco Tuyen 100 100  Dinh Trung village, Production and breeding
Quang Company Fhuc Ung communa, of livestock and poultry
Limited Son Duong district, breeds; raising Ivestock
Tuyen Quang and poultry and other
Pro NG related fields.
Dabaco Qi 100 100 Tan Chi Indwstrial - Production of animal and
Company Limitad Cluster, Tan Chi vegeiable alls and fats.
commune, Tien Du
district, Bac Ninh
prevince
Dabaco Binh 100 100 Sugi Dol hamlet, Tan Raising pigs, poullry, and
Phuoc Company Hung commune, gome other fypes of
Lirnited Dong Phu district, livestock.
Binh Phuos province
Dabaco Binh 100 100 Suoi Doi hamlet, Tan Production of animal feed,
Phiuoe Anirmal Hung commune, poultry feed, aquatic feed,
Feed Company Dong Phu district, and cther related fields,
Limited Binh Phuoc province
H2 Construction 100 100 No. 35 Ly Thai To Construction of raibway
Company Limided sireat, Vo Cuong and road warks,
wiard, Bac Minh city,
Bac Minh provinces
Dabaco Quang a5 93  Trung Luong village, + Production and trading of
Minh Joint Stock Trang Luong vestock and pouitry
Company commune, Dong Trieu breeds; animal feed and
town, Quang Minh other related falkds
provinge
Dabaco Thanh 100 100 Cong Hang arag, Production and trading of
Hoa Comparny Thach Tuomg livestock and  pouliry
Limited commune, Thach breeds, animal feed and
Thanh district. Thanh other retated fislds,
Hoa pravince
Yiet Mhat Organic 100 100 Khu Son, Hap Linh Production ol  organic
Ferilizer ward, Bac Minh city, microbial fertilizers,

Company Limited

Bac Minh province

13



Dabaco Group

BOS-DMNMHN
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended
CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued)
Corporate structure [continued)
Voling  Equily
mghts
Mo, Subsidiary's name (%) Head office's address  Prncipsl activities =
24 Dacovet 100 Khac Miem Indusirial - Production of drugs,
Pharmacautical and Chuster, Khas Miam pharmaceutical
Animal Health commune, Bac Minh chemicals and
Company Limited city, Bac Ninh province madicinal materials,
25 Van Mieu Bac Ninh 100 35 Ly Thai To strest, = Construction of civil
Resenvoir Vo Cuong ward, Bac enginearing  works,
Construction Minh city, Bac Minh houses, roads.

Company Limited

26  Khuc Xuyen 100
Industrial Park
Invastment and
Development
Company Limited
**)

27  Dabaco Hea Binh 100
Company Limited
**

pravince

Khuc Toai arsa, Khug
Kuyen ward, Bac Ninh
city, Bac Minh province

Lumg hamlet, Cuol Ha
commune, Kim Boi
district, Hoa Binh
PIOVITICE

Trading In real
estale, land use
rights befonging to
CAWTNES, UEErs o
tenants,

Pig farming and pig
breeding.

{*}  On 10 January 2024, Dabaco Infrastructure Investment and Development Company
Limited changed its name to Tan Chi Port & Logistics Company Limited.

{**) On 1 April 2024, the Board of Directors of the Company approved the plan to dissalve
Van Mieu Bac Ninh Reservoir Construction Company Limited after the completion of
the project, as well as Khuc Xuyen Industrial Park Investment and Development
Company Limited and Dabaco Hoa Binh Company Limited at appropriate times in the

future,

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Accounting standards and system

The consclidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group™),
which are expressed in Vietnam dong ("WND"), are prepared in accordance with Vietnamese
Enterprise Accounting System and Vietnamese Accounting Standards issued by the Ministry

of Finance as par:

e Decision Mo, 1482001/Q0-BTC dated 31 December 2001 on the Issuance and

Promulgation of Four Vietnamese Accounting Standards (Serfes 1};

* Decision No. 1652002/Q0-BTC dated 31 December 2002 on the Issuance and
Promulgation of Six Vietnamese Accounting Standards (Series 2);

* Decision No. 234/2003/QD-BTC dated 30 December 2003 on the Issuance and
Promulgation of Six Vietnamese Accounting Standards [Series 3);

#  Decision No. 122005/QD-BTC dated 15 February 2005 on the Issuance and
Pramulgation of Six Vietnamese Accounting Standards (Series 4); and

B Decision Mo, 100W2005/Q0D-BTC dated 28 December 2005 on the Issuance and

FPromulgation of Four Vietnamese Accounting Standards (Series 5).



Dabaco Group BOS-DN/HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuad)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

3.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Accounting standards and system (continued)

Accordingly, the accompanying consolidated financial staterments, including their utilisation
are not designed for those who are not informed about Vietnam's accounting principles,
procedures and practices and furthermore are not intended to present the consolidated
financial position and the consolidated results of operations and the consofidated cash flows
of the Group in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally accepted in
countries other than Vietnam

Applied accounting documentation system

The Company’s applied accounting documentation system is the General Journal Voucher
sysbam.

Fiscal year

The Group's fiscal year applicable for the preparation of its consolidated financial staterments
staris on 1 January and ends on 31 December

Accounting currency

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in VND which is also the Company's
accounting currancy,

Basle of consalidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2024,

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date an which the
Group obtains control, and continued to be consolidated uniil the date that such contral
CERsEs.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the
parent company, using consistent accounting palicias.

All intracompany balances, income and expenses and unrealised gains or losses resubted
from infra-company transactions are efiminated in full.

Non-contrelling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets not held by the
Group and are presented separately in the consclidated income statemant and within equity
in the consolidated balance shest

Impact of change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
recorded in undistributed eamings.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, cash in banks and short-term, highly
fiquid investments with an original maturity of not more than three months that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change
in vaiue,
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Dabaco Group BOS-DN/HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

3.

3.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Inventories

Inventories are measured at their historical costs, The cost of inventories comprises costs of
purchase, costs of conversion (Including raw matenials, direct labor cost, other directly related
cost, manufacturing general overheads allocated based on the normal operating capacity)
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

In case the net realizable value is lower than the criginal price, it must be calculated sccording
to the net realizable value.

Met realisable value ("NRV") represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the astimated costs to complete and the estimated costs necessary io make
the sabe.

Raw matenals, (ivestock feed products, and commercial goods
The perpetual method is used to record inventories, which are valued as follows:
Raw materials, consumables - cost of purchase on a weighted average basis,

and tools and spare parts

Fimshed goocds and work-in - cost of finished goods and semi products on a weighted
process of feed products and average basis.
breeds

Provizion for ohsolale nventormes

An inventory provision is made for the estimated loss arising due to the impairment of value
(through diminution, damage, obsolescence, etc.) of raw materials, finished goods, and other
inventories owned by the Group, based on appropriate evidence of impairment available at
the balance sheat date.

Increases or decreases to the provision balance are recorded into the cost of goods sold
account in the consolidated income statement. When inventories are expired, obsalescence,
damage or become useless, the difference between the provision previously made and the
historical cost of inventories are included in the consolidated income statement.

Inventony propeny

Properly acquired or being constructed for sale in the ordinary course of business, rather than
to be held for rental or capital appreciation, is held as inventory property and is measured at
the lower of cost and NRV.
Cost of inventary property comprise:
» Purchase cost. freehold and leasehold rights for land;

Amounts paid to contractors for construction; and

» Borrowing costs, planning and design costs, costs of site preparation, professional fees
for legal services, property transfer taxes, construction overheads and other relatad costs,
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Dabaco Group BOS-DN/HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then anded

3.2

3.3

3.4

a5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (confinued)
Inventories (continued)

Inventory praperly (confinued)

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the business, based
on market price at the balance sheet date, and less cost to complete and the estimated selling
price,

The cost of the inventory praoperty sold recognized in the consolidated income statement
based on specific identification method,

Recelvables

Receivables are presanted in the consolidated balance sheet at the carrying amounts due
from customers and other debtors, after provision for doubtful debts.

The provision for doublful debts represents amounts of outstanding receivables at the balance
sheet date which are doubtful of being recovered. Increases or decreases o the provision
balance are recorded as general and administrative expenses in the consolidated Income
statement. When bad debts are determined a8 unrecoverable and accountant writes off thase
bad debts, the differences between the provision for doubthul receivables previously made
and historical cost of receivables are included in the consolidated income statement.

Tangible fixed assels
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation,

The cost of a tangible fixed asset comprises Its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the tangible fixed asset to working condition for its intended use and the
costs of dismantling and removing the asset and restoring the site on which it is located, if
any.

Expenditures for additions, improvemants and renewals are added to the carrying amount of
the assets and expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to the consolidated
income statement as incurred.

When tangible fixed assets are sold or retired, any gain or loss resulting from their disposal
(the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carmying amount) is included in the
consolidated income statement

Leased assefs

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a Jease is based on the
substance of ihe arrangement at inception date and requires an assessment of whether the
fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset and the armangemant
conveys a right to uze the assat.

A lease is classified as a finance lease whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantialky
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to the lessee. All other leases are classified

as operating leases.
Wiharg the Group is the lessee

Assets held under finance leases are capitalised in the consolidated balance shest at the
inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased assels or, if lower, at the net present value
of the minimum lease payments. The principal amount ineluded in future lease payments
under finance leases are recorded as a liability. The interest amounts included in lease
payments are charged to the consolidated income staternant over the lease term to achleve
a constant rate on interest on the remaining batance of the finance lease liability.

17

o,

At gl Ch e



Dabaco Group BOS-DN/HN

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

3.6

a6

a7

3.8

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leazed assels (continued)
Where the Group /s the lessee (continued)

Capitalised financial leased assets are depreciated using straight-line basis over the sharter
of the estimated usaful live of the asset and the lease term, if there is no reascnable certainty
that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term. The depreciation period for
lzased assels is as follows:

Machinery and equipment 6 - 10 years
Means of ransportation B- 7 years

Rentals under operating leases are charged to the consolidated income statement on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Depreciation

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets are calculated on a strakht-line basis over the estimated
useful life of each asset as follows:

Buildings and structuras 5 - 40 years
Machinery and equipment 3= 20 yaars
Means of transporiation 3-10 years
Office aguiprment 3 =10 years
Investment properties

Investment properties are stated at cost including transaction costs less accumulated
depreciation and'or amorisation. Investment properties held for capital appreciation are not
depreciated/amartised but subject to impairment review.

Subsequent expenditure relating to an investment property that has already been recognised
is added to the net book value of the investment property when it is prabable that future
economic benafits, in excess of the originally assessed standard of performance of the
existing investment property, will flow fo the Group.

Depreciation and amertisation of investment properies are calculated on a straight-line basis
ower the estimated uselul life of each asset as follows:

Buildings and structures 20 years
Machinery and eguipment 10 years
Construction in prograss

Construction in progress represents the costs of acquiring new assets that have not yet been
fully instalbed or the costs of construction that have not yet been fully complated. Construction
in progress is stated at cost, which includes all necessary costs to construct, repair, renovate,
expand, or re-equip the projects with technologies, such as construction costs, tools and
equipment costs, project management costs, consiruction consulting costs, and borowing
costs that are eligible for capitalization,

Construction in progress will be transferred to the appropriate fixed asset account when these

assets are fully installed or the construction project is fully completed, and depreciation of
these assets will commence when they are ready for their intended use.
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Dabaco Group BO3-DNHN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the yvear then endead

3.
3.8

39

3.10

3111

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (confinued)
Construction in progress (continued)

Construction costs are recognized as expensas when such costs do not meet the conditions
to be recognized as fixed assets.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group incurs in connection with
the borowing of funds.

Borrawing costs are recorded as expense during the year in which they are incurred, except
to the extent that they are capitalised as explained in the following paragraph

Borrowing costs that are directly altributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
an asset that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or
sale are capitalised as part of the cosi of the respective asset.

FPrepaid expenses

Prepald expenses are reported as short-term or long-term prepaid expenses on the
consolidated balance sheet and amortised over the period for which the amounts are paid or
the period in which economic benefits are ganerated in relafion to these expenses.

Investments
Invesiments in associates

The Group's investment in its associale i accounted for using the equity method of
accaunting. An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant influence that is
neither subsidiznes nor joint ventures. The Group generally deems they have significant
influence if they have over 20% of the vating rights.

Under the equity method, the investment Is carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost
plus post acquisition changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the associates. Goodwill
arising on acquisition of the associate is included in the carrying amount of the investment
Goodwill ks not amortised and subject to annual review for impairment.

The share of post-acquisiion profit{loss) of the associates is presented on face of the
consolidated income statement and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves |s
recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investment, Dividend sharing received or receivable from aszociates
reduces the carrying amount of the investment.

The financial staterments of the associates are prepared for the same reporting period and
use the same accounting policies as the Group. Where necessary, adjustments are made to
bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

Hetd-to-malurity investments
Held-to-maturity investments are stated at their acquisition costs, After initial recognition, held-
to-maturity investments are measured at recoverable amount. Any impairmant loss incurred

Is recognised as finance expenses in the consolidated income statements and deducted
against the value of such investmants.
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Dabaco Group BOS-DN/HMN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

3.12

413

3,14

.15

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Payables and accruals

Payables and accruals are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods and
services received, whether or not billed to the Group.

Foreign currency fransactions

Transactions in currencies other than the Group's reporting currency (VND) are recorded at
the actual transaction exchange rates at transaction dates which are determined as follows:

» Tranzactions resulting in receivables are recorded at the buying exchange rates of the
commarcial banks designated for collection;

» Transactions resulting in liabilities are recorded at the selling exchange rates of the
commercial banks designated for payment. and

» Payments for assets or expenses without Babilities initially being recognised is recorded
at the buying exchange rates of the commercial banks that process these payments.

At the end of the year, monetary balances denominated in foreign currencies are transiated
at the actual transaction exchange rates gt the balance sheet dates which are determined as
fodllowes:

* Monetary assets are translated at buying exchange rate of the commercial bank where
the Group conducts transactions regularly; and

» Monetary liabilities are translated at selling exchange rate of the commercial bank where
the Group conducts transactions regularly.

All foreign exchange differences incurred are taken to the consaolidated income statement.
Share capital

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are recognised at issuance price less Incremental costs directly attributable
to I:he issue of shares, net of fax effects. Such costs are recognised as a deduction from share
prermiLm.

Share premium

Share premium is the difference batween the par value and the issuance price of the shares,
minus the actual expenses incurred for the izsuance of the shares.

Appropriation of net profits

Net profit after tax (excluding negative goodwill arising from a bargain purchase) is available
for appropriation to shareholders after approval in the annual general meeting, and after
making appropriation to reserve funds in accordance with the Company's Charter and
Vietnam's regulatory reguirements.

The Group maintains the following reserve funds which are appropriated from the Group's net
profit as proposed by the Board of Directors and subject to approval by shareholders at the
annual general meeting:

imvestment and developrmen! fund

This fund is set aside for use in the Group's expansion of its operation or of In-depth
investment.
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Dabaco Group B09-DN/HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

3.
3.75

316

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Appropriation of net profits (continued)

Bonus and welfare fund

This fund is set aside for the purpose of pecuniary rewarding and encouraging, common

benefits and improvement of the employees' benefits, and presented as a liability on the
cansolidated balance sheat

Revenus recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benafits will flow to
the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured. Ravenue is measured at the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable, excluding trade discount, rebate and sales return.
The following specific recognition criteria must alse be met before revenue Is recognised:

aale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the significant nsks and rewards of ownership of the goods have
passed to the buyer, usually upan the delivery of the goods.

Revenue from consfruction conlracls

When the contract outcome can be reliably estimated, revenue is recognized based on the
stage of completion of the work. The stage of completion is determined according to the
acceptance certificate of the completed work volume confirmed by the customer.

It the contract cutcome cannct be reliably estimated, revenue is enly recognized to the extent
of the recoverable costs that have been incurred.

Sale of mveniory propeny
Revenue from sale of invenlory property is recognised when the significant risks and returns
associated with the cwnership of the property have been transferred to the buyer, typically

coinciding with the transfer of the property, and the ability to recaver the real estate ransfer
price is reasonably assured.

If & transaction does not meet the above conditions, the progress payments received from the
customer are recorded as deferred revenue on the consclidated balance shest until gl the
aforementioned conditicns are met.

Interast income

Interest is recagnized on an accrual basis based on the time and actual Interest rate for each
pEriod,

Dividend and profit distribution income

Dividend and profit distribution Income are recognized when Group s entitled to recetve
dividends or when the Group are entitled to receive profits from its capital contributions.
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Dabaco Group BOG-DN/HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuead)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the yvear then ended

317

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation
Curren! income fax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the
amount expecied to be recovered from of paid to the axation authorties, The tax rates and
tax laws used to compuie the amount are those that are enacled as at the balance shest date.

Current income tax is charged or credited to the consolidated income statement, except when
it relates to items recognised directly to equity, in which case the current income tax is also
dealt with in equity.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are offsat when there s a legally enforceable right
for the Group to set off current tax assets against current tax lHabilities and when the Group
interds to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis,

Defarred fax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the balance
sheet date between the tax base of assets and labilities and theér carrying amount for
consolidated financial reporting purposes.

Dafarred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, axcept

» where the defemred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or Eability in
a transaction which at the time of the related transaction affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

k in respect of taxable temporarily differences associated with invesimenis in subsidianes
and associates, and interasts in joint ventures where timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference can be controfled and it is probable that the temporary difference
will nok reverse in the foresesable future,

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible tempaorary differences, carmried forward
unused tax credit and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which deductible lemporary differences, carmied forward unused tax credit
and unused tax losses can be utilised, axcept:

» where the deferred tax asset in respect of deductible temporary difference which arises
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability which at the time of the related
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

» in respect of deductible temporarily differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, assoclates, and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assels are
recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable fulure and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assels is reviewed at each balance sheet date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset io be ufilised. Previously unrecognised deferred
tax assets are re-assessed at each balance sheet date and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tzx assets to be
recoverad,

22

Wy Fi



Dabaco Group BOS-DN/HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

3.
397

318

319

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation [conlinued)
Deferred fax (conlinied)

Deferred tax assels and liabilities are measured at the lax rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the asset is realised or the liabllity |s settled based on tax rates and tax laws
that have been enacted at the balance sheet date,

Deferred tax is charged or credited to the consolidated income statement, except when it
relates to items recagnised directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with
in the equity account,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right far the
Group ta off-set current tax assets against curnent tax llabilities and when they relate to income
taxes |lavied by the same taxation authority on:

* gither the same taxable entity; or

k when the Group intends aither to settle current tax liabilities and assaets on a net basis or
to realise the assets and settle the kabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected lo be settled or
recovenad,

Eamnings per share

Basic earmings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net profit/{loss) after tax for the
year attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company (after adjusting for the banus and
welfare fund) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares cutstanding during the year.

Diluted eamings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit after tax
altnbutable to ordinary equity holders of the Company (after adjusting for interest on the
convertible preference shares) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would
be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares,

Segment information

A segment is a component determined separately by the Group which is engaged in providing
products or related services (business segment) or providing products or services in a
particular economic envirenment (gecgraphical segment), that is subject to risks and returns
that are different from those of other segments.

Management defines the Group’s business segments in the fields of production and sale of
animal fead and raw materials for animal feed production; breeding and food processing; real
estate business, construction services, and other business activilies. Accordingly,
management prasents business segment information as stated in Mote 33, All business
aclivities take place within the territory of Vietnam; therefore, management does not present
sagment Information by geographical area.
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Dabaco Group BOS-DIN/HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
a5 at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

3.20

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Related parties

Parties are considered to be related parties of the Group if one party has the ability fo, directly
or indirectly, control the other party or exercise significant influence over the cther party in
making financial and operating decisions, or when the Group and other party are under
common control or under eamman significant influence. Related parties can be enterprises or
individuals, including close members of their families.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Curency: VND
Ending bafance Beginning balance
Cash an hand B,533,269, 407 17.545,571,709
Cash at banks 245221012179 554,333 530,190
Cash equivalents () 187,476, 772,288 20,257 925 709
TOTAL 439,331,953,87T4 592,137,027.608

i*) Cash equivalents as at 31 December 2024 are depaosits in YND with terms of less than 2
months at commercial banks and eaming interest at 1.8% - 4.2% per annum (31 December
2023 3.2% per annum),

HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

Currency; VND
Carrying amount {Cosf)
Ending balance Beginning balance

Short-term

Deposits (%) 1,370,880,520,5610 489 883,400,831
TOTAL 1,370,890,520,510 488,883,400,931
Long-term

Bonds (**) 10,000 000,000 10.000,000,000
TOTAL 10,000,000,000 10,000,000,000

(*} Held-to-maturity investments as at 31 December 2024 are VND deposits at commercial
banks with remaining term of less than 12 months, earning interast from 2.8% to 6% per
annum {31 December 2023: from 2,5% to 8.2% per annum). Daposits with total value of
approximately VND 748.8 billion have been used as collateral for loans of the Company
and its subsidiaries at the banks as presented in Note 21.1.

{**) Bonds issued by a commercial bank with term of 10 years, maturing on 20 July 2033 and
eaming Interest at 7.6% per annum
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Dabaco Group

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

6.1

6.2

7.1

7.2

BO9-DMHM

SHORT-TERM TRADE RECEIVABLES AND SHORT-TERM ADVANCES TO SUPPLIERS

Short-term trade receivables

Trade receivable from animal feed production
actvitizs and ather aclivities
Trade receivable from real estate activities

TOTAL

Short-term advances to suppliers

Tha Packaging Technology Company Limited
Hanai Fire Prevention & Extinguishment
Construction Joint Stock Company

Thinh FPhat Kim Son 1 Joint Stock Company
Cong Minh Construction Company Limited
CPT Group Joint Stock Company

Mewgreen Environment Equipment and
Technology Development Joint Stock Company
Dther suppliers

TOTAL

OTHER RECEIVABLES

Other short-term recelvables

Advance to employeas

Dreposits to open leters of credit at bank
Interest receivables

Receivables from key management member on
the fransfer of shares in an associate (Mole 37}

Othars
TOTAL

Other long-term receivables

Cumancy: WVND

Ending balance Beginning balance
188,619,345 523 215,341,714 838
8,734,497.043 7,153 807 282
197,353,843 466 222495622121
Curramcy: WVND

Ending balance Beginning balance
12,022,642,028 -
&, 500,000,000 =
§,000,000,000 -

4 BGE 415,803 4.868,415.903
4,513,740, 556 20,000,000,000
3,574,215,689 3,574,215 689
B7 920,286,342  111,956,949,308
104,799,300,518  140,399,580,900
Currency: VIND

Ending balance Beginning balance
31,807,716,353 26,505,403,724
13,265,915,000 18,068,564,595
16,870,597,589 11.968,071,835
1.00:0,000,000 1,000,000, 000
37.028,687 274 3,856,449.471
99,972,916,216 61,399,489,629

Other long-term receivables as at 31 December 2024 are deposits used as collateral at
Vietnam International Leasing Company Limited for several finance lease contracts signed

with this company (Note 21.3).
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Dabaco Group BO9-DN/HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continuad)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

B. INVENTORIES

Curmeney: WND
Ending balance Beginning balance =
Cost Provision Cosf Provision
Goods in transit 193.5?&45&,&1& - 1685 858 078 635 -
Ry materials 1,078 443,315,115 - 876, 351,616,608 .
Tools amd supplies 15,5688,0159,621 . 21,532 153,214 =
\Waork in process 3.875381.912 453 - 4,088 024,806,268 (5566521832
- FReal estale

buziness aclivilies Gd6 436,018 733 - 1,080 387 069 68T -

= Dfher business
achivities 3,028 9045 893 760 = 3007 643 737287 (5 566527 832
Finished goods 285,087 471 B66 - 2T2.178 494 455 -
Merchandise B7 520 670,260 = 76,042 850,745 -
TOTAL 5.516,781,758,000 - 5.489.858.000,755 ([5,566521,832)

As at 31 December 2024, inventory balance of approximately VND 1,641,3 billicn has been
used as collateral for loans of the Company and its subsidiaries at commercial banks as
presented in Mola 21.1,

-3 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Other curent assats mainly include value-added tax deductible from finance lease activities.
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Dabaco Group

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {confinued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

11. FINAMNCE LEASES

Cost:

Beginning balance

- Additional leasas

- Chher reductions

- Transfer to tangible fixed
azsets (Noke 10)

Ending balance

Accumulated depreciation;

Beginning balance

- Depreciation for the year

- Diher raductions

- Transfer to tangible fixed
aszels (Nole 10)

Ending balance

Met carrying amount:
Beginning balance

Ending balanca

BO9-DMHN
Currency: VND

Mackinery and Means of
enqupTeH transportalion Toral
750, 806, 02T 325 3918147273 763, TEd 174,508
22821210224 1,705,322 461 24 57F 532 BAS
(5,475,186 667) = (5,475,186 667}
(117,306,804,549) {1,463,318,182)  (118,770,122,731)
B50 B45 245 313 4.160,151,552 664 005 397 885
147 613,191,535 1,452 606 6438 149 065 EAR 183
85,387 B33 467 719.932. 818 a7 117,766, 285
(203,133,930) - (303,133,930)
(52,890.268.421) (B27,136,370) (53,526,404, 781)
120 908 6822 651 1,545 4593 0545 1892 454 115,747
G812, 192 835,780 2,465 450,625 814 B5E 2BE 415
458 936 523,682 2,614 658 456 471 651 282,138

The Group leases livestock farming equipment and transportations under finance lease
contracts signed with leasing companies, Commitments related to fulure lease payments

12,

under these finance lease confracts are presented in Mote 21.3.

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Ending balance
Cil production factary phase 2 (*} 722,440,955 018
Waccing factory 190,243 183 B45
Lac Ve vocational college T3, 436,637,378
Dabaco Cuang Minh project 34,907,308, 000

Tarpaulin manufacturer 27, 756,109,800
Huyen Quang Shopping mall *
Dabaco port project - phase 2 =
Others 34 691,025 806

Cufrency, VIND
Beginning balance

121,276,910,557
166,874,564, 563

109,001,808,020
32,483,135,765
45,047 664,603

TOTAL 1,083,475,270,748

475.694,083,517

(") Tha assets belonging fo this project are being used as collateral for the loans of the

Group as presented in Note 21.2.
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Dabaco Group BOS-DN/HN

NOTES TQ THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

13.

14.

15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Currency: VND
Machinery and
Suildings eglipment Todal
Cost:

Beginning balance = : =
- Trangfer from construction in
progress 100, 964,068,418 8,037 739,582  109,001,808,000

Ending balance 100,064, 068,418 E-UE?’.TEE.EBE 100,007,608,000

Accumulated depreciation:

Beginning balance - - )
- Depreciation for the year = * x

Ending balance = . -

Net carrying amount:
Beginning balance = = =

Ending balance 100,964,068,418 8,037,739,582  109,001,808,000

Ag at 31 December 2024, the Group has not bean able to determine the fair value of thasa
investment properties due to insufficient information necessary for the valuation of thess
investmant properties,

CAPITALISED BORROWING COSTS
During the year, the Group capitalized borrowing costs amounting to VND 21.7 billien (2023

VND 42 bilion). These bormowing costs relate to specific borrowings taken to finance the
construction of fixed assets,

LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS

Currency: WND
Camying amount %)
Ending balance  Beginning balance
Investments in associates 106,130,417 529 100,560,794 629
TOTAL 106,130,417,629 109,560,794 629

(") The Group has not been able to detarmine the fair value of these associates because these
companies were not listed on the stock market at the date of these consolidated financial
statements.
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Dabaco Group BOS-DN/HN

NOTES TO THE CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

15,

LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS (continued)

Details of investmeants in associates:

Ending balance ) Beginning balarnce

Vale Waling Value Vaoting
MName {WND  Owamarship righi (WMD) Owership righd
Dabaco Food
Frocessmg
Joimt Stock
Company (i) 74,375,314 568 49.656% 49.66% B0.343 006473 40 56% 4958%
Transeco
Joind Stock
Company (ih 31755102861  23333% 33.33% _ 29.216.798,1565 33.33% 33.33%
TOTAL 108,130,417 629 108,560,794,629
(i} Dabaco Food Processing Joint Stock Company

(i)

Dabace Food Processing Joint Stock Company is a foint stock company incorporated
pursuant lo the Enterprise Registration Certificate Mo, 2300345682 issued by the
Department of Planning and Investment of Bac Ninh province on 4 September 2008 and
the subsequent amended Enterprise Registration Certificates. The principal activities of
this company according to the Enterprise Registration Certificate are slaughtening and
processing livestock and poultry; food and beverage production.

The company's head office is located at Nam Vien, Lac Ve commune, Tien Du district,
Bac Minh province,

Transeco Joind Stock Company

Transeco Joint Stock Company is a joint stock company incorporated pursuant to the
Business Registration Certificate Mo. 2300942823 issued by the Department of Flanning
and Investment of Bac Ninh province on 13 July 2016, The principal activitie of this
company according to the Business Registration Certificate is providing transportation
and logistics senvices.

The company’s head office is located at Khac Mism Industrial Cluster, Khac Niem
communeg, Bac Minh city, Bac Minh province,

Details of these investments in associates as at 31 Decamber 2024 are as follows:

Currency: VND
Dabaco Food
Transaco Jaint Processing Joint
Stock Company Stock Company Total
Cost of investment:
Beginning balance 20,000,000,000 114,000,000,000  134,000,000,000
Ending balance 20,000,000,000 114,000,000,000  134,000,000,000
Accumulated share in post-acquisition profiti{loss) of the associates:
Beginning balance 9.216,798,156  (33,656,003,527) (24.430,205,371)
- Share in post-
acquisition profit/(loss) 4 538 304,805 (5,068 ,681,805) (1.430.377,000)
- Dividends (2,000,000,000) - (2,000, 000,000)
Ending balance 11,755,102 961 (39,624,685,332) (27,869,582 371)
Met carrying amount:
Beginning balance 20,216,798 156 80,343 896473  109,560,704,629
Ending balance 31,755,102 961 74375314868  106,130,417.629
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Dabaco Group

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then endad

16.

17.
171

17.2

PREPAID EXPENSES

Short-term
Tools and supplies
Feal estate brokerage fees

COthers
TOTAL

Long-term
Tools and supplies
Breeding costs
Cthers

TOTAL

BOS-DNIHN

Currency: VND

Ending balance  Beginning balance
37 437,560,501 26,975.513,489
- 262 027 518
4,239,037,546 4,050,802 875
41,676,598,047 31,292,143 ,982
60,460,324 547 43,092 689,905
60,225,799, 464 84,880,457 &08
3,092 576,088 1,848,840 215
123,779,100,097 129,922,027,929

SHORT-TERM TRADE PAYABLES AND SHORT-TERM ADVANCES FROM CUSTOMERS

Shaort-term trade payables

Trade payables {o foreign suppliers

- [Desmet Ballestra Singapore
Oifvars

Trade payables to domestic suppliers

= Asia Goldman invesiment Joint Stock
Company
Chhers

Trade payables fo related parties (Nole 31)

TOTAL

Short-term advances from cusfomers

Advancs from customers for construction

cantracts
Cther advances from customers

Unbilled trade discount (*)
TOTAL

Currency: VIND

Ealance (Amount payable)
Ending balance  Beginning balance
40,947 486,405 7.262,572,370
30,603, 338,366 -
10,330, 148,039 7262 572,370
F06,9688,390,071 778,910,096 896
35. 414,750,250 60, 930 954,020
671,683 639,821 Fi7.879.132 876
14,706,614, 462 9.428,151,504
762,647,490 938 795,600,820,770
Currancy: VIND

Balance (Amount payabia)
Ending balance  Beginhing balance
14,025,546,520 1.3,480,000.000
30,827,935 277 70,440, 163,276
162,563,905 825 128,434 567 073
207 417,787 622 221,365,130,349

("} The valuee of trade discounts that have been incurred but not yet paid at the end of the
year will be deducted from the amount receivable from customers in the subsequent

pefiods
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Dabaco Group B03-DN/HN
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuad)
835 at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended
18. STATUTORY OBLIGATIONS
Currensy: VWD

Beginning  Fayabls forthe  Payment made in

balance VB the year Ending balamse
Payables
Value added fax 301218577 178,743,274 208 (181,217,322 638} 4 BZTAT0ATT
Corparate incoms ax 25,862 825 B85 107 504 207 205 (30403843047} 95053280113
Import duties X2,7Tr 6E5 2598 (32,777,585 2453) -
Other taxes 302,036,802 17.074,279,657 (17,005 858 701) a70,457, 758
TOTAL 32,466,081,244 337,180,436,548 (269,404,609,744) 100,250,908 048
Fecaivalde for - Paymenit received
balance the year in the year Ending balance
Recelvables
Value added lax 44 BR2.B06.828 03411851380 (01.119,531.887) 48975126322
Diher taxos 4 567,794 867 213,700, S (567,777,713 4 213718244
TOTAL 49,250,601,796 93.625552,374 (91,687,309,600) 51,188.844,570
14, SHORT-TERM ACCRUED EXPENSES
Currency: VND
Ending balance  Beginning balance
Accrued cost of real estate construction and
development 47,597 490 435 BF rT2.011.177
Intarest expenses 3,406 GE8 484 3,362,608 829
Fees for opening letters of credit - 27,105,107 426
Ciithers 2123203817 6.119.196,047
TOTAL 63,127,382 836 104,358,924,479
20. OTHER PAYABLES
Currency: VND
Ending balance  Beginning balance
Short-term
Deposits related to real estate projects 237 617 B44 270 285,793,734 323
Payables from LIC UPAS - BHE, 258 553,711
Cithars 31,381,710,204 65,335,258 423
TOTAL 268,999,354,474 1,037,387 546,457
Long-term
Grants from the Peaple's Committes of
Bac Minh Province (*) 116,122 867 420 131,058 667,000
Long-term deposits received 35 441 482 5971 36,576 462,871
Others 18,920,833, 089 5,814,252 447
TOTAL 170,485,163 490 177,445,382 418

(%) These are grants received from the People's Commitiee of Bac Ninh Province for certain
investment projects of the Company.
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Dabaco Group BOS-DN/HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then andad

21. LOANS AND FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATIONS (continued)

21.1  Bhort-term loans from banks

Bank lcans Ending balance Principal and inferast Intarest rabe

(VN repayment lerm

Bank koans in WND 4,558,135, 833,945 The term for each draw-down  3.5% - 6.5%

i5 a8 maximiwm of 1 year.
Interest is pavable monthly.

TOTAL 4,558,135,833.945

The foliowing assets are used to secure short-tarm bank loans:

L3

Short-term deposits as presented in Note 5, all assets on land as presented in Note 10
and land use right cerificates paid anually for 4 plots of land owned by the Company in
Bac Minh province;

Assets of the high-quality ammal feed processing factory located in Hoan Son Industrial
Park, Bac Ninh province of the Company as presented in Note 10;

The office bullding, now is Le Indochina hotel of L'indochina Tourist and Hespitality
Company Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, as presented in Note 10 (which also serves
as collateral for long-term loans at this bank);

Real estate, machinery and equipment, capital contributions, property rights arising from
land lease contracts and other collateral assets al Nasaco Ha Nam Animal Feed
Preduction Factory of Nasaco Ha Mam Animal Feed Company Limited - a subsidiary of
the Group as presented in Note 10;

Assals attached with land arising from the veterinary diagnostic center project in Khac
Niem |ndustrial Park, Bac Ninh city. Bac Ninh pravince of the Company as presented in
Mote 10;

The shopping center located in Den Do urban area, Dinh Bang ward, Tu Son city, Bac
Minh province of Bac Ninh Trading Company Limited - a subsidiary of the Group as
presentad in Mote 10;

All real estates, structures on land, machineries and equipments located on 19,208 m? of
land in the Hap Linh Industrial Cluster belonging to Dabaco high-end animal feed project
as presented in Mote 10;

Inventory formed from borrowings as presented in Note 8; and
The remaining s unsecured,
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Dabaco Group BOZ-DN/MHN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then endead

1.

21.2

LOANS AND FINAMCE LEASE OBLIGATIONS (continued)

Long-term loans from banks

Details of the long-term lcans from banks are as follows:

Barnk loans Ending balance Principal and interest interest rate

{VND) repayment term

Bank loans in WHMD B25.272,838,564 The term is from 3 to 6 years. 7.8%-10.0%

The principal loan amount i
repayable from July 2025 to
January 2029, Interest s

payable monthly.
TOTAL B25,272,838,564
I wiich:
Current portion 254, 173 162,578

Mon-ciment portion 571,088 677 045

The following assets are used to secure long-term bank loans:

]

Assets on land of the "Dabaco Binh Phuoc High-Quality Animal Feed Production Factory”
project belonging to Dabace Binh Phuoc Animal Feed Company Limited — a subsidiary of
the Group, located in Suai Dol hamilet, Tan Hung commune, Dong Phu district, Binh
Phuoc province as presanted in Mote 10;

Azsets on land of the "Binh Phuoc Breeding Chicken Farm” project, machineries and
equipments, fand use rights, house ownership rights and other assets of Dabaco Binh
Phuoc Company Limited — a subsidiary of the Group, located in Suoi Doi hamlet, Tan
Hung commune, Dong Phu district, Binh Phuoc province as presented in Note 10

All real estates, structures on land, and machineries and equipments located in the oll
production factory of Dabaco Oil Company Limited — a subsidiary of the Group, and the
oll praduction factory project — phase 2 of the Company in Tan Chi Industrial Cluster, Tan
Chi commune, Tien Du district, Bac Ninh province as presented in Nate 12;

The administrative building and production factory of Hiep Quang Trading Company
Limited - a subsidiary of the Group az presented in Mote 10;

Land use rights. house ownership rights and assets on land belonging to Dabaco Que Vo
supermarket of Bac Ninh Trading Company Limited — a subsidiary of the Group, located
in Gue Vo town, Bac Minh province as presented in Mote 10; and

Assets on land formed in the fulure, machinery and equipment for rearing cages arising
from the pig breeding project in Thach Tuong and Thach Lam commune, Thach Thanh
district, Thanh Hoa province as presented in Mote 10,
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Dabaco Group

NOTES TC THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuad)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

21.
21.3

22.

Finance lease obligations

LOANS AND FINANCE LEASE S OBLIGATIONS (continuad)

Details of finance lease obligations as at 31 December 2024:

Finance leases

Finance lgases

Ending balance Principal and interest
(VND) repayment term

BOS-DM/HM

Interes! rafe

308,350,449 682 The term ranges from 5 to 12 B.4% - 10.5%

vears. The principal amaunt
is payable from July 2025 to
April 2029, Interest is

payable monthly.
TOTAL 308,350,449, 682
In which:
Current portion 116,153 265331
Mon-curment portion 183,187, 184,357
As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the future lease payments are presented
as below:
Currenci WIND
31 December 2024
Total minimum lease
paymants Finance charges Lease labilities
Current Habilities
Less than 1 year 124 473 597 B02 8,320 332 471 116,153,265,331
Non-current Nabilities
From 1 - 5 years 206,607 305,535 13,410,122 188 193,197, 184,351
TOTAL 331,080,904,341 21,730,454 659 309,350,449 682
_ 31 Dacembear 2023
Total minimum lease
paymants Finance charpes Leasea fakilities
Current Habilities
Less than 1 year 119,858,356 754 11,369,628 87T  10B,480,727.777
Non-current labilitles
From 1 -5 years 334,487,180.571 24 550 648,961 309,945 531,610
TOTAL 454 358 537,325 35,920,277,938  418,426,259,387
BONUS AND WELFARE FUND
Currancy: VIND
Current yvear Frevious year
Beginning balance 33,387 ,305,907 85 532 645907

- Litilisation during the year

Ending balance

(18,871,713,000}

(62,145 340 0003)

13,515,582 907

33,367,305,907
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Dabaco Group BOS-DN/HN
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the yvear then endead
23, OWHNERS' EQUITY (continued)
£3.2  Capital transactions with owners and distribution of dividends, profits
Currancy, WVND
Current year Pravious year
Contributed capital
Beginning balance 2420018,520,000 2420 018 580,000
- Increase during the year 926,672,860,000 -
Ending balance 3,346,601 450,000 2420 018,500,000
23.3 Shares
Currancy: WND
Cuantity
Ending balance  Beginning balance
Authorised shares 334,668,145 242,001,859
Issued shares 334,669,145 242,001,859
Ordinary shares {*) 334 B50 145 242 001,859
Shares in circulation 334, 669,145 242,001,859
Ordinary shares (*) 334,569,145 242 001,859

Par value of outstanding share: VND 10,000 per share (31 December 2023:VND 10,000 per
share),

("} Including 12,000,000 shares issued under the employee stock option program in 2024
according to the Resclution No. 01/2024/NQ-DHDCD dated 27 April 2024, which are subject

24.1

to & 12-manth fransfer restriction from the complation date of the issuance

REVENLUES

Revenue from sale of goods and rendering of services

Gross revenue
I wehich
Sale of finished goods
ESale of merchandise
Sale of real eslales and construction
sErvices

Deductions
Trade discounis
Sales allowances
Sales returm

Met revenue

irr witich:
Sale of finished goods
Sale of merchandise
aale of real esfates amd canstruction
SErVices

Curren! year
13,739,362,734,289

12,812 491,083 790
643,731,246 437

283, 140,394,062

Currency: WD
Pravious year
11,241,164,150,311

8,873,.386,213,6843
598,402 851,047

769 284 585 421

(165,839,502,381)  (131,163,393,499)
(162,563,805 825) (128 .434,967.073)
(278,803,021} %
(2,808,733 545) (2,728,425 426)
13,573,523,231,898 11,110,000,756,812

12,646,657,597,399
6543 731,246,437

283 140,394,062

8,742 222 820, 344
508,492 951,047

765 284 885,421



Dabaco Group

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as at 31 December 2024 and far the year then ended

24, REVEMNUES [continuead)

24.2  Finance incoma

Interast income and late payments
Forgign exchangs gains

TOTAL

235, COST OF GOODS SOLD AND SERVICES RENDERED

Cost of finishad goods
Cost of merchandise
Cost of real astates and construction senvices

Reversal of provision for obsolete inventories

TOTAL

26. FINAMCE EXPENSES

Loan interest
Foreign exchange losses

Others
TOTAL

BO9-DR/HMN

Currency; WND

Current year Pravious year
34,162 426,781 33675841171
5,050,954 9495 2,101,095,198
38,213,381,756 35,776,736,369
Curency WND

Currant year Previous year
10,856 142,715,886 9,061,072 507 955
504 286,805,045 473 BT3 138,477
245 214 918,564 460,813 887 528
{5,566,521,832) -
11,640,078,007,663 9,995 759,533,961
Currancy: VIND

Cument paar FPrevious. year
253,668 549 326 261,789 262 706
2,499 135,004 671,218,028

8,477 423 164 18,264,%30,777
274,645,107 584 280,735,411,5M

27. SELLING EXPENSES AND GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Selling expenses

- Labour costs

- Expenses for external services
- Depreciation expenses

- Toal and suppliers

- Others

General and administrative expenses
- Labour costs

- Deprecigtion expenses

- Expenses for external services

= DOthers
TOTAL

32

Curreni year

469,098 B57,795
258,476,326,977
95,705,638 562
36,919,002 165
18,103 950,358
5H,883,939.733

381,719,812,986
228,797 126,767
54.6895,731,456
51,419,937 .248

Currency. VWD
Pravious year

432,440,161,015
216,888,354 676
125,335,242, 849
33,177,879,576
18,838,845,590
37,150.838,224

356,355,906,770
207 436,244,368
58,395,651,467
39,935.821,102
50,588 189,833

56,807,017,515
860,818,670,781

788,796,067,785




Dabaco Group BOS-DN/HN
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the yaar then ended
28. OTHER INCOME
Currency- WND
Currant pear Freviols year
Gavernment grants 14,835,799, 580 16,382,333,000
Gains from disposal of assets 3,186,235 478 B63,465 6574
Cihers 3,504 658 741 4,623 314 859
TOTAL 21,626,693,797 21,669,113,433
29. PRODUCTION AND OPERATING COSTS
Currency: VD
Current year Frevious year
Raw materials 8557 772,850,032 5263477 258075
Labour costs B856.571,523,221 B4 421 590,847
Depreciation B38.207.743,5T8 547 283,343,319
Expenses for external services 442 B2 648 826 400,945 187 846
Others 353,967,729.016 358,926,307 404
TOTAL 11,850,322,503,673 11,375,053,777,492
30, CORPORATE INCOME TAX

The corporate income tax (“CIT") rate applicable to the Company and its subsidiaries is 15%
of taxable income for animal feed production, cultivation and processing in the agricultural
and aquatic sectors and 20% for other activities, except for:

Subsidiaries including Dabace Nuclear Breeding Pig Company, Lac Ve Breeding Pig
Company Limited, Dabaco Pig Raising Investment & Development Company limited,
Dabaco Ha Mam Breeding Pig Company Limited, Dabaco Phu Tho Breeding Pig
Company Limited, Dabaco Luong Tai Breeding Pig Company Limited, Dabaco Tuyen
Quang Company Limited, Dabaco Breeding Chicken Company Liméted, Dabaco Binh
Phucc Company Limited and Investment and Development Breed Processing Company
are entifled to high-tech agricultural enterprise incentives with a tax rate of 10% and are
exempt from corporate income tax for 4 years, with a 50% reduction in the tax payable
for the next 9 years starting from the first year of taxable income according to Certificates
of high-tech agricultural enterprises issued by the Ministry of Agriculture and Rural
Development

Masaco Ha Nam Animal Feed Company Limited, Dabaco Binh Phuoc Animal Feed
Company Limited and Dabaco Thanh Hoa Company Limited are enfitied to tax incentives
for new investment projects in areas with difficult socio-economic conditions with a tax
rate of 17% and are exempt from corporate income tax for 2 years, revelve a 50%
reduction in the tax payable for the next 4 years starting from the first year of taxable
income according to the Investment Certificats,

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the corporate income tax rate applcable to the
subsidiaries including Dabaco Nuclear Breeding Pig Company, Dabaco Pig Raising
Investment & Development Company Limited, Dabaco Phu Tho Breeding Pig Company
Limited and Dabaco Luong Tai Breeding Pig Company Limited Is 5%.
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Dabaco Group

BOS-DNHN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

30.

CORPORATE INCOME TAX (continued)

The corporate income tax rate applicable to subsidiaries including Dabaco Breeding Chicken
Company Limited, Dabace Binh Phuoc Company Limited, Investment and Development
Breed Processing Company and Lac Ve Breeding Plg Company Limited is 10%.

Nasaco Ha Nam Animal Feed Company Limited has an applicable tax rate of 8.5% for the
year due to tax reduction and subsidiaries including Dabaco Ha Nam Breeding Pig Company
Limited, Dabaco Tuyen Guang Company Limited and Dabaco Thanh Hoa Company Limited
are exempled from fax.

The tax retums filed by the Group are subject to examination by the tax authorities. As the
application of tax laws and regulations is susceptible to varying interpretations, the amounis
reported in the consolidated financial statements could change at a later date upen final
determination by the tax authorities.

CIT expenses
Currancy: VND
Current yvear Preiious year
Current (ax expenses 107,594 297 285 72742017137
Deferred tax income (22 428,503 546) -
TOTAL B5,164,793,749 T2, 742017137

The reconciliation between CIT expenses and the accounting profit before tax mulfiplied by
CIT rale is presented balow:

Currency: VND
Ciment pear Previous year
Acocounting profit befare tax BS54, 248 546,204 97, 748,211,352

Corporate income tax according to tax rate of each
activitias
n which:

Tax rate of T5% for animal feed produchion

118,055,069,327

36,355491 668

activities 68 082 005, 446 27838202 T

Tax rate of 20% for other activities 5075.018,987 38 006422 522

Tax incenthve for vesfock aclivities 43,098 243 044 (30477, 133,747}
Depreciation expenses in excess of the deductible
limit 714 577 562 59T 391,130
Mon-deductible inferest expenses 285 856 359 4,478,148 590
Mon-deductible inleres! expenses in previous years
deducted in current vear (4,775,841 545) (1,390,795, 363)
Tax exempted {38,534,933,931) (1,350,492 273)
Tex losses camed forward from previous years {15,357 859,061 (802,226,738)
Unrecognized defarred tax related io taxable losses 23,700,474 670 35,003,383 405
Other increasel{decrease) 1,071,350,368 (148,857 2B60)
CIT expenses B5,164,793,749 TET42.047 137
Current tax

The current CIT payable is based on taxable Income for the current year. The taxable income
of the Group for the year differs from the accounting profit before tax as reported in the
consoldated income statement bacause it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are not taxable ar
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted by the balance sheel dats.
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Dabaco Group BOS-DN/HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and far the year then ended

30,
30.3

CORPORATE INCOME TAX [continued)
Deferred tax

The following are the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities recognised by the Group,
and the movements thereon, during the current and previous years:

Currency: VIND
Consolidated Consolidaled
halance sheet income statemean!

Ending balance Begiwning balance Current year  Prevous year

Deferred tax assels

LUnbilled frade
digcounts 22 479 503 548 =

22,429 503,545

Met deferred fax assefs 22,429,501, 546 = 2420 503 548 =

Net deferred fax credit
o consolidated
inceme sfatement 22,479 503 546 z

Unrecognised deferred tax assets
Tax losses carried forward

The Group Is entitied to carry tax loss forward to offset against taxable income arising within 5
years subsequent to the year in which the Ioss was incumed. At the balance sheet date, the
Group had aggregated accumulated tax losses of VND 564,383 950,975 (31 Decamber 2023
WND 562,307,867 800) available for offset against future taxable income. These are estimated
lax losses as per subsidiaries’ corporate income tax declarations and have not been audited by
the tax authorties as of the date of these consolidated financial statements.

No deferred tax assets were recognised as at 31 December 2024 because future taxable
Income cannot be ascerained

Interest expenses exceeding the prescribed thrashold

The Group is entitled to carry forward interest expenses exceeding the prescribed threshold
that have not been deducted when calculating CIT for the current vear (“non-deductible
interest expenses’) to the following years when determining the total deductible interest
expenses of the following years. The subsequent period that the interest expenses can be
carried forward 1o will not exceed consecutive period of § years subsequent to the year in
which the non-deductible interest expenses incurred. At the balance sheet date, the Group
has aggregated non-deductible interest expenses of WVND 58 986,790,181 (31 December
2023 VND 101,956,398 820). These are estimated non-deductible interest expenses as per
the subsidiaries’ corporate income tax declarations and have not been audited by the tax
authorities as of the date of these consolidated financial statements.

Mo deferred tax assets were recognised as at 31 December 2024 because future taxable
income cannot be ascertained
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Dabaco Group BOS-DN/HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuad)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

M.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

List of related parties that have a controlling relationship with the Group and other related
parties that have significant transactions with the Group during the year and as at 31
December 2024 is as follows:

Related paries Raiativnzhip

Transeco Joint Stock Company  Associates
Dabaco Food Processing Joint  Associates

Slock Company

Mr Mguyen Mhu So Chairman of the Board of Director

Mr Mguyen Khac Thac Deputy Chairman the Board of Directar cum General Direcior

Mz Mauwyen Thi Thu Huong Mermber of the Board of Director cum Deputy General Director

Mr Mguyen The Tuong Member of the Board of Directer cum Deputy Genera! Direcior

Mr Nguyen Hoang Nguyen Member of the Board of Direcior

Mr Le Quoc Doan Member of the Board of Direcior

ks Mguyen Thanh Hueong Member of the Board of Director

Mr Hoang MNguyen Hoc Member of the Board of Director

Mr Bui Van Hoan Member of the Board of Director

Mr Mguyen Van Tue Deputy General Direcior

Mr Hoang Wan Chung Deputy General Direcior

MrLe Minh Tuan Deputy General Director

Mr Do Viet Quan Deputy General Direcior

Mr Pham Van Hoc Dapauty General Direcior

Ms Le Thi Mink Thu Creputy General Direclor

M= Bui Hai Huyen Deputy General Director until 1 February 2024

Ms Mguyen Thi Hue Minh The Chief of the Board of Directors Office, who is authorized to
disclose information and also responsible for comporate govenance

Mr He Sy Quy Head of Board of Supervision

Mr Mguyen Thanh Ha Member of Board of Supervision

Ms Nguyen Thi Bich Member of Board of Supenvision

Ms Dink Thi Minh Thisan Head of Internal Audit Function

Mz Mguyen Thi Thu Huong Member of Internal Audit Funclion

Mr Nguyen Xuan Quang Member of Internal Audit Funclion

Mz Mguyen Thi Thank Huyen  Chief Accountant

Significant transactions with related parties in current year and prior year were as follows:

Cumency, WND

Related parties  Relationship  Transachions Current yaar Previous year
Transeco Joint Assotiates  Providing 83,558.251,154 37 426,578,904
Stock Company transportation senices

Allocation of assat - 451,876,894

usage cosls

Dividends 2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000
Dabaco Food Aszoclates  Providing goods 402,077 252 -
Processing Joint
Stock Company

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The Group allocates asset usage costs to the associates based on the actual depreciation
expenses of assels. The Group uses services from related parties on the basis of contractual
agreemenis.

Outstanding balances at 31 December 2024 are unsecured, interest free and will be settied
in cash. For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group has not made any provision for
doubtful debis relating to amounts owed by related parties (31 December 2023: nil). This
assassment is undertaken each financial year through the examination of the financial position
of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.
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Dabaco Group

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

M. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES {continued)

BOS-DMNMHN

Amounts due to and due from related parties at the balance sheet dates were as follows:

Cuirrency: VND
Related parties Relationship Ending balance Beginning balance
Other receivables from key management 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
membar on the transfer of shares in an
associate (Mote 7.1)
1,000,000,000 1.0:00,000,000
Short-term trace payables (Note 17.1)
Transeco Joint Stock Company  Associate 14,304,537 210 9,428 151 504
[Cabaco Food Processing Joint  Associate 402,077 252 =
Stock Company
14,706,614,462 9,428,151,504
Remuneration of members of the Board of Directors and management
Currency: VIND
incivicluals Positian Rearmuneralion
Currerd year  Previous pear
Mr Mguyen Mhu So Chairman of the Board of Directar 2,729, 701,000  1,933,300.000
Mr Mguyen Khac Thao Deputy Chairman the Board of 1,764, 700,000  1,330,308,000
Directar cum General Director
M5 Mguyen Thi Thu Huong Member of the Board of Director 1.3259,700,000 B438 309,000
cum Deputy Ganeral Directar
Mr Nguyen The Tuong Member of the Board of Director 1,328.700,000 848,309,000
cum Depuly General Director
Mr Hoang Van Chung Depuly General Director 1,100,000,000 1,052 125,000
Mr Mguyen Hoang Nguven Member of the Board of Director 945,000,000 521,704,000
Mr Le Quoc Doan Member of the Board of Director 963,549,000 542 216 481
Ms Mguyen Thanh Huong Member of the Board of Direcior 320,000,000 240000000
Mr Hoang Nguyen Hoc Member of the Board of Direcior 320,000,000 240,000,000
Mr Bui Van Hoan Member of the Board of Direclor 320,000,000 241,000,000
Mr Pham Van Hoc Deputy General Direcior &:08, 700,000 £48 304,000
Mr Mguyen Van Tue Deputy General Direcior 808,700,000 548 309,000
Mr Le Minh Tuan Deputy General Director 809,700,000 848 309,000
Mr Do Viet Quan Daputy General Director 808,700,000 248 3092 000
M= Le Thi Minh Thu Deputy General Director 808,700,000 650,219,000
Ms Bui Hai Huyen Deputy General Director 85,000,000 425045000

{resigned on 1 Febneary 2024)

TOTAL

15,776,150,000 12,265,785,481

Salaries and operating expenses of the Board of Supervision:

Curency: WIND
Current year Previous year

Salaries and operating expenses of the Board of

SUpEnvision

966,025,000  B44,960,000

44

S Al

el e R —

Yok



Dabaco Group BOS-DN/MHN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuad)
a5 at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

32.

33,

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following refiects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted eamings per
share computations.

Currenoy: WD

FPrawvious year
Current year (Restated)

Met profit after tax atiributable to ordinary shareholders 769,083,752 4656  25,007,184,215
Distribution to bonus and welfare fund = -

——— -

Met profit attributable to ordinary shareholders
adjusted for the effect of dilution 769,083,752, 455  25,007,194,215

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

(excluding treasury shares) for basic eamnings
per share [*) 202 8458139 276,241 930

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
(excluding treasury shares) adjusted for the

effect of dilution 292,846,138 276,241,930
Basic eamings per share 2,626 a1
Diluted eamings per share 2625 o1

(*) Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic earnings for the year 2023 was
restated to refiect the effect of the right issue of shares to existing shareholders in 2024,

There have been no other transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares
between the reporiing date and the date of completion of these consolidated financial
statemenis

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The pnmary segment reporting format is determined to be business segments as the Group's
nsks and rates of return ame affected predominantly by differences in the products and
services produced. The operating businesses are organised and managed separately
according to the nature of the products and services provided, with each segment
representing a strategic business unit that offers different products and serves different
markets.

Business segment

All of the main business activities of the Group are conducted within the teritary of the
Socialist Republic of Vietnam.

The fallowing fables present revenue, expenses and profit and certain assets and liability
information regarding the Group’s business segment:

W AR e LT L iy
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Dabaco Group BOI-DN/HN

NOTES TOQ THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

34,

35,

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Operating lease commitmeant
As at the balance shest date, the fulure lease payments related to the land lots used for

production plants, offices, leasing barns, livestock farms and for real estate projects under
operating lease contracts are as follows:

Currancy: VND

Ending balance Beginning balance

Less than 1 year 88,958,839,511 B8, 037 227 502
From 1 to 5 years 140,841,489 467  137,155,041.431
Mare than 5 years 363,241,509,020  451,021,055,060
TOTAL 593,041 837,998 676,213,324,893

Commitment related to recycling packaging

Accarding to Decree No. 08/2022/ND-CP dated 10 January 2022 ("Decree 08") and Dacres
No. 05/2025/ND-CP ("Decree 05") dated 6 January 2025 of the Government amending and
supplementing several articles of Decree No. 0B detailing certain provisions of the Law on
Envircnmental Frotection dated 17 November 2020, the Company and cerfain subsidiaries
are obligated to recycle packaging produced from its business activities or pay recycling fees
to the State from 1 January 2024. On 28 February 2025, the Ministry of Natural Resources
and Environment issued the Circular No. 07/2025/TT-BTNMT detailing the calculation and
applicable recycling fees for companies that pay recycling fees, As of the date of these
consolidated financial statements. the Group is in tha process of calculating and determining
the recycling obligations for the products and packaging that the Company and its subsidiaries
have produced and sold in the market.

Commitment related to the investment costs for the construction of the Qi Produetion
Factory project phase 2

As at 31 December 2024, the Group has commitments related to the construction and
development of the Oil Production Factory project phasa 2 with a total estimated value of VND
311 billion,

OFF BALAMNCE SHEET ITEMS
Ending balance Beginning balance
Foreign cumencies
= usp 17.790.48 363 40371
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Dabaco Group BOS-DN/HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then endad

36, EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

There is no matter or circumstance that has arisen since the balance sheet date that requires
adjustment ar disclosure in the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Preparer Chief Accountant Chairman of e Board of Director
Mguyen Thi Mgan Mguyen Thi Thanh Huyen  Mguyen Nhu So
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